
Town of Sullivan’s Island

Council Workshop

Monday, February 1, 2016

6:00 p.m.

Town Hall, 2050-B Middle Street

1. Administrator’s Report

2. Finance Committee

3. Public Facilities Committee

4. Land Use & Natural Resources Committee

5. Administration Committee

6. Water & Sewer Committee

7. Public Safety Committee

8. Recreation Committee



1
Public Safety Committee: January 28, 2016 Minutes

TOWN OF SULLIVAN’S ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL

MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 28, 2016

A meeting of the Public Safety Committee of Council was held at 8:30 a.m., Thursday, January
28, 2016 at Town Hall, 2050-B Middle Street, all requirements of the Freedom of Information
Act having been satisfied. Present were Committee members, Chauncey Clark, Chair, Council
members Mayor Pat O’Neil and Sarah Church. Staff included Administrator Benke, Police
Chief Howard, Fire Chief Stith, Zoning Administrator Henderson and Asst. to Administrator
Darrow.

I. Call to Order. Chair Clark called the meeting to order, stated the press and
public were duly notified pursuant to state law and noted that all Committee members were
present. Approximately five residents and four media members (Island Eye News, Moultrie
News, Post & Courier News and Channel 5) were in attendance.

II. Coyotes
Committee members received a staff update from Administrator Benke and Police Chief Howard
regarding the coyote presence on the Island and the Town’s management activity:

 No incidents to report of aggressive contact between coyotes and humans, to date.
 A dog was attacked in a neighborhood recently. The Town cannot confirm it was a

coyote attack on the dog as there were no witnesses to the incident.
 Police staff continues tracking and mapping reported coyote sightings over the past year.

The Town has, for approximately one year, set box traps on Town property identified
from the sighting analysis; however, no coyotes have been caught.

The Town of Sullivan’s Island has an established Plan, crafted with assistance from the SC
Department of Natural Resources (SCDNR), for co-existing with coyotes.

Soft-leg traps
 The next step in the Plan, should Police Chief Howard deem it necessary, is the use of

soft-leg traps on Town-owned property.
 This strategy would require the Town to obtain a depredation permit from SCDNR prior

to placement.
 The Town would place soft-leg traps in more isolated/remote areas of the Island, not

heavily populated or trafficked sites. Appropriate safety signage would be installed to
warn people that trapping was underway.

 Administrator Benke and Police Chief Howard have completed interviews with a short-
list of trapper vendors. The next step is to obtain depredation permits from SCDNR.

 It was noted residents are allowed to use soft-leg traps on private property and many have
done so, using some of the same potential vendors the Town interviewed.

Committee Discussion:
Councilmember Church expressed her objection to the use of soft-leg traps. Her concerns
included:

 Safety to children and pets who might be injured by the traps;



2
Public Safety Committee: January 28, 2016 Minutes

 Other wildlife being injured from the traps;
 The use of soft-leg traps now may be premature; noted that the coyote population

traditionally begins its annual retreat at this point;
 This trapping method is inhumane to the coyote.

Committee Member inquiries:
 Safety incidents with soft-leg traps on private property;
 Frequency trappers would check traps, and, potential use of web-cameras

Chief Howard reported that the only incident of which he was aware involved a dog (Labrador)
trapped in a soft-leg trap. He was released and returned to his owner unharmed.

Administrator Benke noted that trappers would check the traps every 24 hours. Use of web-
cameras could be investigated, but the feasibility in using these devices would depend upon the
location of traps. He noted that trappers have advised against checking traps more than once
every 24 hours as every check leaves traces of human scent that deters coyotes from moving
toward the traps.

Committee members agreed that the primary concern was for the safety of children and family
pets. The majority of the Committee agreed the use of soft-leg traps was the appropriate next
step, noting Councilmember Church’s opposition.

Committee acknowledged that the Police Chief had the discretion and was authorized, under the
Town Plan, to move toward the use of soft-leg traps. This activity did not require an affirmative
vote from the Public Safety Committee or Town Council.

Chair Clark invited residents to offer comments; no comments made

III. Parking Plan Summer 2016

Chair Clark made introductory comments
 The Town continues work toward a policy on an island-wide parking plan to include a

parking and traffic analysis conducted last year at Town Council’s direction.
 Meanwhile, neighboring City of Isle of Palms announced it will execute its parking plan

this year, restricting visitor parking to its City.
 Submitted it was important for Sullivan’s Island to keep pace with Isle of Palm’s parking

plan activity as the Town’s parking and traffic flow will certainly be impacted by Isle of
Palm’s parking changes.

Administrator Benke provided Staff report:
Background

 Noted the Town began studying parking in 2008-2009, initially from a potential revenue
perspective.

o Town evaluations of staff expenses and general obligation fund expenditures
identified a significant percentage of Town monies were used to manage the



3
Public Safety Committee: January 28, 2016 Minutes

impact of visitor/tourist-related activity: traffic and parking, beach path repairs,
patrol presence, fire and rescue operations, sanitation/debris removal, etc.

o Conversely, the Town receives very little revenue associated with tourist/visitor
activity (i.e. Accommodations Tax), particularly compared to other beach
communities. The Town has no bed-breakfast or hotels, a very limited pool of
vacation rentals, a small commercial district with a handful of restaurants and
does not maintain paid municipal parking lots or other paid parking spaces.

 The more important focus for the Town is providing good public safety services to
residents and the influx of Town visitors who frequent the Island through the
“tourist/high” season:

o Traffic control and law enforcement protection
o Search and rescue operations for water and beach incidents, in addition to medical

calls and fire suppression activity.
o Ability to navigate emergency vehicle through streets and on/off the Island

remains a critical concern for the public safety chiefs.

 External pressures on the Town’s public safety and public works department operations
have increased over the decades as the tri-county area population has grown:

o 1972-1973:
 It was common to see bumper-bumper cars from the Island down the Ben

Sawyer Causeway to Shem Creek bridge in Mt. Pleasant.
 At that time Sullivan’s Island was the only way to access Isle of Palms
 Mt. Pleasant’s population was approximately 6,200 people and Sullivan’s

Island had approximately 1,400 residents
o 1990’s:

 Isle of Palms Connector opened to provide a direct route to Isle of Palms
beaches from Mt. Pleasant. This relieved some pressure on Sullivan’s
Island beach traffic.

o 2010:
 Mt. Pleasant’s population tops 68,000 residents while Sullivan’s Island’s

population has grown to approximately 1,800 people. The only two places
for East Cooper residents to go to the beach continue to be Isle of Palms
and Sullivan’s Island.

 Tri-county area continues to experience dramatic population increases as
well, adding to the pressure of weekend visitors to the Island.

Parking Plan Study:
 First Step: evaluate the potential supply of Town parking spaces.

o Staff identified a maximum of 4,967 parking spaces:
 Approximately 2,280 parking spaces are seaside of Middle Street
 Approximately 2,229 parking spaces are marsh-side of Middle Street
 458 spaces are on I’On Avenue

[NOTE: Some of those spaces have obstructions and other right-of-way conditions (i.e.
ditches) that would have to be addressed in order to reach this maximum parking number]



4
Public Safety Committee: January 28, 2016 Minutes

 Second Step: evaluate traffic flow and quantify parking demand
o In 2015 the Town retained Stantec Consulting Services to conduct a

parking/traffic study of the Island. These are the same traffic engineers Isle of
Palms used for its traffic and parking study.

o Stantec’s 2015 study findings:
 An average of 1,565 cars are parked on Sullivan’s Island in peak summer

afternoons
 Bottle-neck intersections see degradation of service: Middle Street and

Hwy 703, Jasper Boulevard and Hwy 703)
 Caveat: it was not possible to differentiate between resident and visitor

cars, and, difficult to evaluate through traffic travelling to Isle of Palms.
o Town staff estimate an average of three (3) people in each car, which brings 4,695

extra people on the Island. This influx increases the Town’s population
temporarily to almost 6,500 during the summer peak period.

 Noted that the population increase from 1,800 to 6,500 significantly impacts public safety
 The Town’s streets were designed and installed in the late 1940’s to accommodate post-

WWII traffic demands. The roads were not designed for, nor can they adequately
accommodate the impact of contemporary traffic volumes and vehicle configurations.

Parking and Traffic
What the Town cannot control that negatively impacts traffic flow and levels of service:

 Traffic accidents occurring on the Island, Ben Sawyer Causeway, Isle of Palms, Isle of
Palms Connector or in Mount Pleasant on Coleman Boulevard;

 Frequency of Ben Sawyer Bridge openings and closings.

What the Town can do:
 Manage how cars are parked on the Island, to allow for a good flow for public safety

vehicles and resident vehicles;
 Manage how many visitor cars can park on the Island
 Mitigate the impact that the Isle of Palm’s 2016 parking plan, which reduces visitor

parking spaces, will have on Sullivan’s Island’s parking demands (could potentially
increase parking demands on the Town by approximately another 1,500 visitors)

Parking Plan Map
Administrator Benke and Zoning Administrator Henderson provided an overview of the parking
maps created through the Town’s GIS program.

 Staff used the SCDOT parking restrictions as a baseline to build parking spaces on a
potential parking plan map.

 Some parking spaces were marked for elimination due to right-of-way conditions that
made parking vehicles problematic.

 Opportunities for golf cart parking were identified and mapped. Golf cart only parking
was identified along some of the most popular beach access paths to facilitate public
safety apparatus and personnel access to the beach for rescue/safety operations.



5
Public Safety Committee: January 28, 2016 Minutes

 Town evaluated spaces with the understanding that all four-wheels of a vehicle would be
off the pavement and on the right-of-way.

 Sullivan’s Island Elementary School parking was not included in the parking inventory,
but could be included if desired.

Chief Stith:
 Recommended restricting parking (vehicle and golf carts) to one-side of the road, only,

on all roads where visitor parking is allowed. This would provide the opportunity for
cars to pull off the road onto rights-of-way when emergency vehicles have to navigate
streets for an emergency call.

Committee Discussion:
 Suggested Middle Street (North) should be opened to parking spaces, to help encourage

disbursement of visitor parking throughout the Island. Currently Middle Street (South)
bears the brunt of visitor parking demands on Middle Street.

 Discussed value of removing parking along I’On Street as the ditches and narrow roads
make on-street visitor parking a problem.

 Encourage golf-cart parking spaces near the beach accesses.
 Endorse municipal ordinance to require four-wheels off the pavement/road for parked

vehicles on public rights-of-way.
 Requested analysis of available parking space quantity for the following scenarios:

o Open parking to Middle Street (North);
o Restrict parking to one-side of street island-wide;
o Remove parking option from the staff identified restricted areas where right-of-

way conditions make parking problematic;
o Retain golf cart spaces, running parking numbers for one-side of street only golf

cart parking.
 Identify any additional problem areas for parking. One example might be residences

where property owners rely upon on-street parking due to lot configuration and house
access. The Town may have to develop some limited resident-only parking sticker plan
for residents in this situation.

 Noted that, while SCDOT has to approve any changes to a Town Parking Plan, the Town
has the flexibility to modify the Plan as needed, based upon assessments made during the
implementation phase.

 Committee acknowledged that an island-wide Parking Plan would be an approach that is
fair to the visitors of Sullivan’s Island, flexible enough for Council to evaluate its
efficacy and modify if necessary, and ensure public safety services can be properly and
efficiently provided to residents and visitors during the busy summer season.

Staff clarified the Parking Plan would be in effect for the entire year, not just the summer season.

Next Steps:
Staff indicated they would have the mapping modified and reanalyze parking space quantity
based upon the aforementioned scenarios. This information and proposed ordinance language (to
require four-wheels off the road/pavement) would be ready for the February Council Workshop
meeting next week (Monday, February 1, 2016).



6
Public Safety Committee: January 28, 2016 Minutes

It was estimated approximately 2,000 parking spaces might be available given the
aforementioned scenario changes; however, a better estimate would be available at the February
1, 2016 Council Workshop.

Committee discussed advertising a final proposed parking plan to the public to give residents the
opportunity to review it and provide feedback. Staff will work with Stantec to have the
consultant modify the proposed Parking Plan Map. This will give the Town current information
to provide to the public and SCDOT. It was noted SCDOT will have to approve a Town Parking
Plan before Town implementation.

Chair Clark invited residents to offer comments.
Public Comments

Mike Walsh, 2530 I’On Avenue
 Noted he re-sent an email to Council that he emailed approximately one year ago [he did

not circulate copies of the email or provide a copy to the recording secretary for
inclusion with these minutes]

o His letter centered on the blatant parking violations, debris and the general
negative impact of visitors during the Polar Bear Plunge 2015.

 Enforcement: advocated for strong enforcement of this Parking Plan when implemented.
Submitted enforcement will be the single most significant factor in the success or failure
of this Plan.

 Economic Component: questioned why Town Council will not pursue the potential for
revenue from the parking plan (charge for parking at least in some sections). Noted that
in northeastern states, municipalities push visitors to park near the beach in municipal lots
and charge $25/car. Submitted the Town should attempt to mitigate the cost of visitors
on the Island.

 Endorses one-side of street only parking: noted he lives at the corner of Station 26 &
I’On Avenue. Currently his yard from corner to corner is full of beach visitor cars on
warm weekends. He and his wife choose to keep their lawn free of fencing and should
not be mandated to install fencing to prevent people from moving cars onto their lawns.
Currently he places garbage cans at the end of his driveway to prevent cars from blocking
ingress/egress.

No other public comments offered

Staff will provide a presentation to Council at its February 1, 2016 Workshop, and,
continue work with Stantec on the proposed Parking Plan Map modifications.

IV. Adjourn
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned (Mayor O’Neil motion;
Councilmember Church seconded; unanimous approval) at approximately 9:45a.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Chauncey Clark, Chair
Public Safety Committee

For review/approval at the February 1, 2016 Council Workshop



ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 

February 01, 2016 

I. Council Correspondence 

New Correspondence: 

1. Catherine Main, East Cooper Land Trust, 01-14-16: 2015 
Monitoring Report for Station 19 and the Old Bridge. 

2. Iris Liban, DHEC Columbia, 01-22-16: Lead and copper sampling 
monitoring report for the period June 1 to September 30 2015. 

3. Manda Poletti, 1771 Atlantic Avenue, 01-25-16: Accreted Land 
Management Plan and buffer zone. 

4. Joe Blanchard, 1773 Atlantic Avenue, reprint of 10-28-15 letter: 
Accreted Land Management Plan and buffer zone. 

5. Hal Currey, 1768 Atlantic Avenue, 01-25-16: Accreted Land 
Management Plan. 

6. Michael Mithoefer, 407 O'Neil Street, 01-29-16: Accreted Land 
Management Plan and meeting conduct. 

7. Ian Watterson, I'On Avenue, 01-29-16: Parking issues. 

II. Construction Project 

A. Town Hall and Police Station Building — Hill Construction continues 
with wood framing of the second floor. An OAC meeting is scheduled 
for 02-02-16 at 10am. 



III. General 

A. Staff will be using the data provided by Stantec to complete the 2016 
summer parking plan. 

B. Boardwalk repairs necessitated by October flooding at Stations 18, 22 
and 25 have been completed. 

C. The Town previously submitted a grant application to DHEC-OCRM 
for coastal access improvement. The grant amount awarded is 
$12,500. The grant is subject to National Environmental Policy Act 
review by NOAA. Funds are expected to be made available by March 
2016. Staff will combine the DHEC-OCRM grant with the PART 
grant ($3000) and Charleston County Urban Greenbelt grant for 
boardwalk construction at Station 29 Street. 

D. Boardwalk installation at the Sullivan's Island Elementary School 
began on January 18, 2016 with completion expected on Tuesday 
February 02, 2016. Funding is by Charleston County. 

E. The Town Hall Brick Program has been widely advertised and is 
experiencing modest success. 

F. Attorneys Walker and Linton along with the Town Administrator 
attended a mediation with the Attorney Dennis O'Neill for defendant 
Vince Graham on January 15, 2016. Attorneys Linton and O'Neill are 
preparing consent orders for Town Council to review. 

G. A special meeting of Town Council was held on January 25, 2016 5pm 
to 7pm in the Fellowship Hall at Sunrise Presbyterian Church to 
continue work on the Accreted Land Management Plan. The next 
scheduled meetings for continued work on the management plan by 
Council are set for Thursday February 25, 2016 5-7 PM and Monday 
March 21, 2016 5-7 PM. Both meetings are at Church of the Holy 
Cross Episcopal 2520 Middle Street. 



H. St. Patrick's Day Celebration 

The Town has received several event applications for St. Patrick's Day 
2016. 

Establishment Date/Hours Date/Hours Service 
Dunleavy's 03-12-16 

to 7pm 
9am 03-17-16 	9am 

to 7pm 
Close Sta 22.5 to 
vehicles; 
beer/wine/food 
sales. 	NO 
INSURANCE 
CERTIF 
RECEIVED 

Poe's Tavern 03-12-16 
7pm 

8am to Food 	and 
served 	in 
parking 	lot 
Saturday 

beer 
the 
for 

High Thyme 03-12-16 
7pm 

8am to Food 	and 
served 	in 
parking 	lot 
Saturday 

beer 
the 
for 

I. Firefighter Don Harbaugh has completed his six month employment 
probation. The appropriate salary adjustment will be made. 



EAST COOPER
RLJ LS T 

Our Present for the Future 

January 14, 2016 

Andy Benke 
Town Administrator 
Sullivan's Island Town Council 
P.O. Box 427 
Sullivan's Island, SC 29482 

Dear Andy, 

I have enclosed a copy of the annual monitoring report for the Sullivan's Island Station 9 property 
conducted on October 19, 2015. I have not included the photos taken on site the day of the 
monitoring visit. If you are interested in receiving a copy of the photos taken at designated 
locations, please let me know and I will be glad to provide them for you. We keep printed copies of 
the photos as well as electronic files kept here at the office. 

I welcome your feedback on the report in case you find a discrepancy with any of the information 
listed. Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions at 843-224-1849. Thank you for 
your continued support of our organization and this worthwhile preservation property. 

Sincerely, 

Catherine M.M. Main 
Executive Director 

Board of Directors 
Richard Morrison, Chair 
Lawrence D. Middaugh, Past Chair 
Kevin L. Rourk, Vire-Chair 
William T. Eubanks, Serretan. 
Robert Scott Schlau, Treasurer 

Justin Craig 
Richard L. Habersham 
MaiT Martinich 
Alys Anne Wiedeke 

Advisory Council 
John C. L. Darby 
Kyle Ferrell 
James C. Thompson 
George K. Wood 
Michael N'eeck 

PO Box 2495 • Mount Pleasant, SC 29465 
info@eastcooperland.org  • 843.224.1849 • eastcooperland.org  



Monitor's Name: Lat v Midd lex Smith 

Signature: 

EAST COOPER 

A N D TRUST 

ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT 

Date of Visit: October 19, 2015 

Easement/Property Name: Sullivan's Island Station 9 

Current Ownership/Address/Phone: Andy Benke, Town Administrator / P.O. Box 427, Sullivan's Island, SC 
29482 / (843)883-3198 

Has the property been transferred to a new owner? 	Yes 	No 

If yes, include recording information below: 

Deed From: 	 Deed To: 

Town: 	 Book: 	 Page: 	Date: 	 

Was the landowner contacted prior to the visit? 	Yes 	No 
If yes, how? (Phone, letter) 

Did the owner or the owner's representative accompany the monitor? 	Yes 	No 

Current land use as outlined in conservation easement? 
Yes, consistent with management plan. 

List acts or uses prohibited by the conservation easement that have take place since the last monitoring 
visit. 
None. 

List alterations in land-use and/or land-cover that have taken place since the last monitoring visit. 
None. 

Additional Comments: 
The erosion at the end of the path noted during the last monitoring visit on August 26, 2014 continues to be a 
problem and should be looked into. The "Old Bridge Landing" sign was installed at the entrance to the path 
since the last visit. 

Others present at visit: None 

Name, Executive Director or designee: Catherine Main 

Signature 

 



rv 
	

REM JAN 2 5 2016 

EAST COOPER 

LAND TRUST 
Our Present fur the Future 

January 14, 2016 

Andy Benke 
Town Administrator 
Sullivan's Island Town Council 
P.O. Box 427 
Sullivan's Island, SC 29482 

Dear Andy, 

I have enclosed a copy of the annual monitoring report for the Sullivan's Island Station 19 property 
conducted on October 19, 2015. I have not included the photos taken on site the day of the 
monitoring visit. If you are interested in receiving a copy of the photos taken at designated 
locations, please let me know and I will be glad to provide them for you. We keep printed copies of 
the photos as well as electronic files kept here at the office. 

Thank you for helping us install the sign post at the entrance to the Old Dump. We also appreciate 
you taking the extra time to pose for a picture behind the sign, which was used in our 2015 annual 
report. 

I welcome your feedback on the report in case you find a discrepancy with any of the information 
listed. Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions at 843-224-1849. Thank you for 
meeting us at the property and your continued support of our organization and this worthwhile 
preservation property. 

Sincerely, 

01,4%.e/U41-,  
Catherine M. Main 
Executive Director 

Board of Directors 
Richard Morrison, Chair 

Lawrence D. Middaugh, Pas: Chair• 

Kevin L. Rourk, I rue Chair 
William T. Eubanks, Serretag 

Robert Scott Schlau, Treasurer 

Justin Craig 
Richard L. Habersham 
Mary Martinich 
Alt's Anne \Viedeke 

Advisory Council 
John C. L. Darby 
Kyle Ferrell 
James C. Thompson 
George K. Wood 
Michael Veeck 

PO Box 2495 • Mount Pleasant, SC 29465 
info@eastcooperland.org  • 843.224.1849 • eastcooperland.org  



EAST COOPER 

AND TRUST 

ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT 

Date of Visit: October 19,2015 

Easement/Property Name: Sullivan's Island Station 19 

Current Ownership/Address/Phone: Andy Benke, Town Administrator / P.O. Box 427, Sullivan's Island, SC 
29482 / (843)883-3198 

Has the property been transferred to a new owner? 	Yes 	 No 

If yes, include recording information below: 

Deed From: 	 Deed To: 	  

Town: 	 Book: 	 Page: 	Date: 	 

Was the landowner contacted prior to the visit? 	Yes 	No 
If yes, how? (Phone, letter) 

Did the owner or the owner's representative accompany the monitor? 	Yes 	No 

Current land use as outlined in conservation easement? 
Yes, consistent with management plan. 

List acts or uses prohibited by the conservation easement that have take place since the last monitoring 
visit. None. 

List alterations in land-use and/or land-cover that have taken place since the last monitoring visit. 
None. 

Additional Comments: 
There does not appear to be any change in the condition of the property. The canoe/kayak area near the creek 
access has not undergone any changes since the last monitoring visit on August 26, 2014. Although the pile of 
concrete rubble has been visible for some time and was noted in the photographic documentation last year, there 
also appears to be a pile of damaged furniture and garbage behind the rubble which was not documented during 
previous monitors. A sign post identifying the property as a conservation easement was installed during this 
monitor. 

Monitor's Name: Lajy Middy g , lex Smith 

Signature: 

Others present at visit: Town Administrator Andy Benke, Mayor Pat O'Neil, Catherine Main 

Name, Executive Director or designee: Catherine Main 

Signature  (12/-4  



PROMOTE PROTECT PROSPER 

Catherine E. Heigel, Director 

Promoting urulu 	rhoklfitATEl# and the environment 

January 22, 2016 

To: 	Greg Gress 
Town of Sullivans Island (1010003) 
PO Box 427 
Sullivans Island, SC 29482 

From: Idris Liban 
Drinking Water Compliance Monitoring Section 
Water Enforcement Division 

Re: 	Lead and Copper Sampling Results 

Enclosed are the Lead and Copper test results for the June 1 — September 30, 2015 monitoring period. 
Your water system did not exceed the action levels for lead or copper at the 90th Percentile. The 
action levels for lead and copper are 0.015 mg/1 and 1.3 mg/1, respectively. These results must be kept 
on file for at least twelve (12) years. 

Your water system is scheduled to sample again June 1, 2018 — September 30, 2018. Please 
remember to use the same sampling sites and their corresponding tracking codes (T-Codes). If a site is 
not available, a Justification for Change of Sample Site form must be submitted along with the type of 
plumbing and year it was installed. 

Please fill out the attached Customer Notification Certification page and send it back to the following 
address: 

S.C. Department of Health and Environmental Control 
Bureau of Water 
Drinking Water Compliance Monitoring Section 
ATTN: Lead and Copper Program Manager 
2600 Bull St. 
Columbia, SC 29201 

If you have any questions, please contact me at (803) 898-3573 or E-mail libani@dhec.sc.gov. 

Enclosure 

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL, CONTROL  
2600 Bull &met • Coln mbia, SC 29201 • Phone: (803) 898-3432 • wwwscdhecgov 



DHEC 

PROMOTE PRO-1P.M PROSPER 

Catherine E. Heigel, Director 

Promoting and protecting the health of the public and the environment 

Lead and Copper Sample Results 

SC1010003 SULLIVANS ISLAND TOWN OF (1010003) 

Lab ID 	32010 

Lead 90th Percentile: 0.0 mg/L 

Copper 90th Percentile: 0.026 mg/L 

The 90th Percentiles are based on 10 samples. 

Coll Date T-Code Sample Location Analyte Result UOM 

8/21/2015 T3A0018 1741 ION AVE COPPER, 0.015 MG/L 

8/21/2015 T3A0018 1741 ION AVE LEAD 0.000 

8/21/2015 T3A0017 1454 THOMPSON AVE LEAD 0.000 

8/21/2015 T3A0017 1454 THOMPSON AVE COPPER, 0.026 MG/L 

8/21/2015 T1A0015 1914 MIDDLE ST LEAD 0.000 

8/21/2015 T1A0015 1914 MIDDLE ST COPPER, 0.000 

8/21/2015 T1A0009 1418 MIDDLE ST COPPER, 0.000 

8/21/2015 T1A0009 1418 MIDDLE ST LEAD 0.000 

8/21/2015 TIA0007 2420 RAVEN DR COPPER, 0.043 MG/L 

8/21/2015 TIA0007 2420 RAVEN DR LEAD 0.000 

8/22/2015 T3A0012 1315 COVE AVE LEAD 0.000 

8/22/2015 T3A0012 1315 COVE AVE COPPER, 0.000 

8/22/2015 T1A0002 835 MIDDLE ST LEAD 0.000 

8/22/2015 T1A0002 835 MIDDLE ST COPPER, 0.016 MG/L 

8/24/2015 T3A0016 2730 JASPER BLVD COPPER, 0.011 MG/L 

8/24/2015 T3A0016 2730 JASPER BLVD LEAD 0.000 

8/25/2015 T3A0014 1722 MIDDLE ST COPPER, 0.000 

8/25/2015 T3A0014 1722 MIDDLE ST LEAD 0.000 

8/25/2015 T1A0001 951 MIDDLE ST LEAD 0.000 

8/25/2015 T1A0001 951 MIDDLE ST COPPER, 0.014 MG/L 

Page 1 of 1 

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL  
2600 Bull Street • Columbia,SC 29201 • Phone:(803) 898-3432 • wwwscdhec.gov  



Customer Notification Certification 

Water System Name: 

Water System # 	  

I confirm that all customers who were sampled for lead and copper monitoring have been 
given a copy of their results. . 

Certified by: Name: 	  

Title: 	  

Phone # 	  Date 	  



Andy Benke 

From: 	 1MPOLETT1@comcast.net  
Sent: 	 Monday, January 25, 2016 4:50 PM 
To: 	 Andy Benke; oneilp; crclark4si@gmail.com; sarahforsullivans@gmail.com; 

howardtowncouncil@gmail.com; rita4sullivans@gmail.com; 
susan.middaugh@gmail.com; Bachman Smith 

Subject: 	 Accreted land meeting 1/25 

January 25, 2016 

Dear Members of Town Council: 

I am unable to attend tonights accreted land meeting, but wanted to express my opinion on the issue. I have been a 
resident on Sullivan's Island for approximately 14 years. I have lived at 1771 Atlantic Avenue for 12 years. My 
property borders the accreted land. I have 10 year old twins, and step children that are 22 and 23 years old. Ten to 
twelve years ago, my step children had the freedom to play basketball, hide-and-go-seek, flashlight tag, etc. with 
neighborhood kids in the evenings. With the current condition of the accreted land, evening outdoor activities are no 
longer safe for my 10 year old twin children. Once dusk falls upon us, it is an automatic "in the house". The coyotes 
that have made their home in the underbrush of the accreted land have made many of the parents and kids of SI 
fearful to be outside at night. It is simply no longer safe to be in our yard after dusk. This time of year, I hear and/or 
see the coyotes on a regular, if not daily basis in my yard or in the bordering accreted land. I realize the risk is very 
low for a coyote to attack a human, but I am not willing to take that risk with my children, given the consequences if 
it did occur. For safety reasons, the properties that border the accreted land need a reasonable buffer between their 
homes and the underbrush that is harboring dangerous and nuisance animals. Again, it is upsetting and unfortunate 
that today, my 10 year old children cannot experience the same freedom on Sullivan's Island that their older siblings 
did. Please, help to make SI safer and vote to have a reasonable buffer between the accreted land and the 
bordering properties. 

Thank you for your service to Sullivan's Island. 

Manda M. Poletti 

1 



October 28, 2015 

RE: Transition Zone 

Mayor Pro-Tern Chauncey Clark, 

I hope this letter finds you well. My name is Joe Blanchard and my wife and I own 1773 Atlantic 
Avenue. I am writing you to express my concerns on the repeal of the 100 foot transition zone, 
approved by Council on May 20th, 2014, between my property and the accreted land. 

The accreted land is home to Norway rats. Rats carry diseases. I am unable to control the rats 
on the accreted land, however the 100 foot transition zone will give ample space between my 
property and these vermin, as Norway rats normally travel 100-150 feet in diameter from their 

burrows. 

The thick growth in the accreted land is also a breeding ground for mosquitoes. From DHEC's 

website, "Mosquitoes carry serious diseases, infecting millions of people worldwide each year. 
The most common existing or potential mosquito-borne viruses and parasites in South Carolina 
include West Nile virus, eastern equine encephalitis virus, La Crosse encephalitis and other 
California serogroup viruses, Saint Louis encephalitis virus, and dog/cat heartworm." Allowing a 

larger transition zone will lessen the likelihood that the mosquitoes will become a public health 
issue. 

A public safety concern is the spread of fire in the accreted land. Since this land is not 
uniformly maintained as a fire break, if the transition zone is repealed, my home could be 
substantially damaged by an unchecked fire. 

Lastly and most importantly, there are coyotes that live in the vegetation that is growing on the 
accreted land. This is of great concern to me as we have children and pets that play in our yard. 
The 100 foot transition zone would help in controlling this public safety issue. 

Thank you for taking the time to read my concerns and I hope you will decide to keep the 
current transition zone of 100 feet in place. 

Sincerely, 

Joe Blanchard 



Andy Benke 

From: 	 Hal Currey <hcurrey22@comcast.net> 
Sent: 	 Monday, January 25, 2016 2:41 PM 
To: 	 Andy Benke; Lisa Darrow 
Subject: 	 Fwd: tonights meeting 

andy or lisa 

if its possible would you pls get a copy of this to each council member and pat 

if so thank you very much 

hsc 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Hal Currey <hcurrey22@comcast.net> 
Subject: tonights meeting 
Date: January 25, 2016 2:37:51 PM EST 
To: Pat O'Neil <oneilp@musc.edu>, Sarah Church 
<sarahforsullivansgmail.com>, Chauncey Clark <crclark3©dmail.com>, 
howardtowncouncilgmail.com, Rita Langley <ritaplangley©gmail.com>, 
Susan Middaugh <susan.middaugh@gmail.com>, bsmith@sullivansisland- 
sc.com   
Cc: Andy Benke <abenke@sullivansisland-sc.com> 

Dear Mayor and members of council, 

This is a brief note to urge you to proceed with all haste toward the completion of the protected 
land management plan. 

I recall during a period of time when i was chair of the PC somewhere close to 2008 having what 
seems like endless discussions of the height to which myrtles could be cut. Its 2016 and we as a 
community are having the same discussion. Not only are we having the same discussion we are 
having it after substantial professional input. 

I also recall vividly the time when it became public that Nicky Bluestein had sued the town. 
Shortly after that i recall Nicky, as a member of the PC, saying in public that " they " would 
drag this out forever. That has turned out to be absolutely accurate. 

Therefore i am asking that you finalize a plan recognizing that some compromise must occur. In 
my view it is your job to make and accept as a group compromises that will result in an enduring 
agreement for the benefit of our community. 

Thank you for taking the time to read this and please complete this process. 



MICHAEL C. MITHOEFER, MD 
407 ONEIL STREET 

SULLIVANS ISLAND, SC 29482 

PHONE: (843) 883-9261 	 FAX: (843) 278- 
9188 

29 January, 2016 

Dear Mayor Oneil and members of council, 

Thank you for all your work on this challenging issue of transition zones. Thanks 
especially to Susan Middaugh for her hard work on a well thought out compromise. I 
agree that it is important for the majority to consider the desires of fellow residents even 
when they are in the minority, and I appreciate that Council is attempting to arrive at a 
reasonable compromise. I have several thoughts I would like to convey for your 
consideration: 

1) Please remember that for the majority of islanders the plan that Susan is 
suggesting is already a big compromise. This is evident in the results of the last 
election. To negotiate a further compromise from that is more like capitulation 
than compromise. As Susan said at the last meeting, there are many residents 
who disagree with having a 100 foot transition zone at all. 

2) I was serious when I said trees should be planted in the areas that have been 
illegally clear cut by certain property owners. This behavior is not only illegal it 
is highly disrespectful to the rest of us who actually own that land as public land. 
To let it stay free of trees just because they have been illegally removed seems to 
me very problematic public policy. Contrary to Chauncy's position, for many of 
us the ecology of this area is of paramount importance, not only for wildlife and 
beauty, but as protection from hurricanes and sea level rise. 

3) The recent illegal poisoning of trees has only led to a minimal fine, making that 
method of tree removal quite cost effective for property owners. I would like 
some assurances that strong measures will be taken to punish and prevent that 
kind of behavior. A compromise doesn't mean much if front beach owners are 
going to take matters into their own hands regardless. 

4) I am concerned that while you are making your best efforts to arrive at a 
compromise, many of the residents you're compromising with have still filed an 
intent to appeal their law suit against the Town. This behavior appears to 
represent an effort to get all they can from a "compromise", and then try to 



impose everything else they want against the will of Council and the majority of 
Island residents (and having us pay to defend the lawsuit to boot!). Do you have 
any indication that if transition zones are approved the lawsuits will stop? 

5) As a conservationist, the degree to which I would support a compromise in the 
transition zone is dependent on what is going to be done in the rest of the accreted 
land. It doesn't make sense to me to decide on the transition zone before we have 
any idea what is planned in the rest of the land. In the meeting last week, 
Chauncy made a comment about, "feathering in a transition in the rest of the 
land", revealing quite clearly that his agenda is maximum cutting in the 
"transition zone" and then more cutting in the rest of the forest to essentially add 
another transition zone in front of the one in discussion. I urge you to discuss and 
clarify your positions on the rest of the land before making a decision about the 
transition zone. 

6) I am troubled by the behavior of some residents at the meeting at Sunrise Church 
on last week. There was a group of residents who kept shouting interruptions as 
the rest of us waited respectfully while Council deliberated. The most egregious 
incident was when one front beach owner, who had already used his allotted time 
to express his desire for maximum cutting, shouted contradictions at Susan 
Middaugh as she was talking, and finally shouted, "stop lying." This behavior 
should not be allowed at Town Meetings. I have written before about the fact that 
we have often had heated disagreements over the years, but it should never 
degenerate into this kind of mean spirited, disrespectful and childish behavior, 
especially directed toward Council members. And of course, if this behavior is 
rewarded by further "compromise" it will be especially unfortunate. I would 
appreciate anything you could do to curtail this kind of thing at public meetings. 

Thank you again for your attention to this issue, and your hard work on behalf of the 
Island. 

Respectfully, 

Michael Mithoefer 



Andy Benke 

From: 	 oneilp 

Sent: 	 Friday, January 29, 2016 7:30 PM 

To: 	 Ian Watterson 

Cc: 	 Andy Benke 

Subject: 	 Re: Parking Issues 

Thanks for writing, Mr. Watterson. You make a number of good points. Re. your initial point, I hope it is apparent that our 

proposed plan is not designed to REDUCE the number of people visiting the Island on the average day, but rather to CONTROL 

THE INCREASE in numbers as the tri-county population continues to grow. 

Your point about encouraging people to fan out more is interesting. Certainly more consistent one-sided parking would 

encourage that. Frankly, I hadn't thought about the clustering you describe (I live near Station 18 which has one of the most 

popular paths) but will ask our officers about that. 

I am promoting our purchasing traffic cameras on the causeway that would be easily accessible online so that people 

contemplating a trip to the beach could check out the traffic and status of the bridge (with a picture of actual traffic rather 

than color-codes on a map). What are your thoughts on that? 

Thanks again for taking the time to write. Please continue to stay attuned to our Town matters and to participate. 

Pat O'Neil 

Patrick M. O'Neil 

Mayor 

Town of Sullivan's Island 

South Carolina 

843 670 9266 

From: Ian Watterson <iantwatterson@gmail.com> 

Date: Friday, January 29, 2016 at 4:09 PM 

To: E Miller <emiller@sullivansisland-sc.com>, Chauncey Clark <crclark4si@gmail.com>, Patrick O'Neil 

<oneilp@sullivansisland-sc.com>, Sarah Church <sarahforsullivans@gmail.com>, "howardtowncouncil@gmail.com" 

<howardtowncouncil@gmail.com>, "rita4sullivans@gmail.com" <rita4sullivans@gmail.com>, 

"susan.middaugh@gmail.com" <susan.middaugh@gmail.com>, Bachman Smith <BSmith@sullivansisland-sc.com> 

Subject: Parking Issues 

Dear Council Members, 

I wanted to write as you debate parking issues on Sullivans Island. While some on the island just wish fewer 
people would come to the beach. 1 wholeheartedly believe in public access to the beach and all public 
lands. While it is costly to the town, and presents nuisances to residents. it is part of what one must endure to 
live in such a nice place near the ocean. 



As I see it there are two distinct yet related issues with parking and traffic. The problems of the parked cars 
themselves, and the overall number of cars. 

I defer to Chief Stith on safety issues of overparked cars, particularly on I'on and in the areas from 19 to 24. On 
99% of the days of the year, parking around the whole island is woefully underutilized. To my mind, much of 
the problem is that many visitors to the island try to park as close to Ben Sawyer as possible when going to the 
beach. Perhaps closing access to Middle Street at some of those Stations would encourage people to go to the 
lower and higher number stations instead of browsing for parking starting at 22 1Z2. One side of the street 
parking might work well to spread cars out. Encouraging parking on the marsh side of Jasper would help 
also. Using signage etc to limit visitors' expectations on parking might help. Everyone here seems to believe 
they should be able to park a block from the beach. Of all the beach areas I have visited in this country, that is 
rarely the case. In most areas of California or the mid-Atlantic, or Northeast, very long walks from the car to 
the beach are the norm, in some cases well more than a mile. 

The overall number of cars is a harder thing to control without degrading access. The plans proposed for IOP 
are in my view more trouble than they are worth. Hiring outside companies is expensive, and managing such a 
large vendor would be tricky without enlarging town government. The truly epic traffic days are only several 
per year. In other beach towns I have seen a very low tech solution: At the access points to the town, colored 
cardboard placards are sold right through the car windows. They must be displayed, or the vehicle may be 
ticketed. The color, pattern, and letter/number changes each day. For Sullivans, this would really only be 
necessary Memorial Day, July 4fil, and several of the other busy Saturdays. Whether or not to charge for 
parking on a given day can be decided the morning of. If it rains, no placards required. And, the number of 
placards can be limited. In places where I have seen this system, Scouts or other school and youth groups raise 
money by being the vendors. 

A great many people drive themselves to the beach and meet there, my friends included. I have many times met 
up with a large group at the beach, and all of them drove in ones or twos to Sullivans. Charging even a token $8 
or $10 would encourage people to carpool, or even leave a car on the other side of the causeway for the ride 
over to the island. 

Thank you for your attention, 

Ian Watterson, I'on Ave. 

2 



SULLIVAN'S ISLAND 
FIRE AND RESCUE DEPARTMENT 

P.O. BOX 104 
SULLIVAN'S ISLAND, S.C. 29482 

To: 	Personnel Committee 

From: Anthony Stith, Chief 

Subj: Probation status 

Don Harbaugh came to work for the Town of Sullivan's Island Fire Department on June 
29, 2015. Since that time, he has proved to be an outstanding worker and asset to the Fire 
Department and the Town of Sullivan's Island. Don has taught many classes of CPR and 
Basic First Aid for the community in the short time he has been with us. At this time, I 
would like to change his status to full time employee for the town. I would also like to 
increase his salary by budgeted amount for coming off of probation in the Fire 
Department budget. 

Thank you in advance, 

Anthony Stith, Chief 
Sullivan's Island Fire & Rescue 



Bicycle or Wheeled Race 

TOWN OF SULLIVAN 5S ISLAND 

'aesLAW‘wo-) cov)L1  
caniciT _yu)VA(A, 

ertA 19m- 
voact\pulooki4a.eltAA,Ls 

SPECIAL EVENT PERMI 6 c),\)nc_ 

gebel'A mu./ maw Time:  	614144- - v-- 

_SC44-4)(to 22, 	pe,44, 	baq  
at4 4o.) - 

Event Type: 	Festival 	 

Event Location: Pub 6-thweiA,  itciddlf 

Font Race or Walk 	Parade/Procession 

"54   Other - Please describe:   A-Akkg) 	YiPri (dt4/24a0 

Event Name: vi`, g0 ipiebizi-pee,   Organization/Company: 

 

A0AQ4kli YIS 

  

Mailing Address:  	Z2 I/  /c  

Work Phone:  41) $81-PeFaesirni le: 

E-mail(s):  	 LI/i  

Has the organization planned an event or Sullivan's Island before: 

7-- 
	 (No) 

How many years has this particular event existed:   Ill   Where:   1271-beiwak_Kiellk  

P.O. BOX 427 • SULLIVAN'S ISLAND, SC 29482 
(843) 883-3198 • FAX (843) 883-3009 • WWWSULLIVANSISLAND-SC.COM  

Mobile Phone:  i3) 912/-1* 



Does the event planner have previous experience planning and running the type of event applied 
for: 

k   (Yes) 	(No) 

Event Website: 

Estimated Attendance: 

The event is: 

	Private; 	1/Open to General Public; 	Open to Public by Entry Fee 

The Town of Sullivan's Island does not allow the use of any Town property for the purpose 
of profit (unless for charitable donations). No admission fees can be charged except entry 
fees to races/walks for the purpose of raising funds for a designated 501(3)c charity. 

Application Approval — Town of Sullivan's Island Use Only 

Signature of Town Administrator 	 Date 

Comments and Special Conditions: 
1. Attendees must park in designated right of way areas and may not block the street. 
2. Event must comply with the noise ordinance (Si Code Sec. 14-15 and 14-16). 
3. Alcoholic beverages are prohibited on the beach (SI Code Sec. 4-24). 
4. Beach activity is prohibited after 11pm (S1 Code Section 4-12). 
5. Attendees must comply with the dog ordinance (SI Code Sec.3-8). 
6. Commercial activity is prohibited on the beach (SI Code 4-32). 
7. Attendees enter the ocean at their own risk. 
8. Applicant is responsible for beach clean up. 



I. PARK/FACILITY/SITE LOCATION 
If your requested location is not available or not suitable for the type of permit requested, 
alternate sites may be offered if available. 

Park/Facility/Site Requested for Event:  	LyA- 

Property Owner Name: 	  

Phone: 

***If the event occurs on private property, the property owner must sign the last 
page of this application before submission to the Town. 

2. DESCRIPTION OF THE SPECIAL EVENT 
Provide a brief description and purpose of the Special Event (attach a separate page as 
needed): 

AAA kta SL• q4-1,C eileb,z4;On -9 71, pkut6w14' 

*6 (kr are ,gyp 	1).1 (Ace elf 

ikekkokt4--  (i.fietf4)/  

3. DATE AND TIME OF SPECIAL EVENT, SETUP AND DISMANTLE 

3//2/de 
a) Setup:  31i-}h(.  (Day/Date): 	Start Time;  	7   Finish Time 

3//274 
b) Event:  1411,  (Day/Date);  	ID  	Stare Time;  	7, 	Finish Time 

342/IL 
c) Dismantle:3/i  4#  (Day/Date); 	Start Time; 	Finish Time 



Traffic Con 	Parking 
Amplified Sound 	Live Music 

Road sure 

4. COMPONENTS OF SPECIAL EVENT 
The Town of Sullivan's Island does not provide or rent to the public the following items: 
portable toilets, staging, sound systems, tents, trash cans, recycle cans, grease traps, 
sandwich boards, tables, chairs, barricades, road signs or other equipment. 

Circle the following items that are an element of your event: 

Retail Vendors 	Food Vendors 	Tents or Canopies 
Signs anclann 	Need for Electricity Admission Fee 
Inflaiafes/Jump Castle Grease Disposal Animals 
Other: 

Security 
(ftabrei----)testroom 

Stage or Bleachers 
Need for Water Hookup 

5. SITE PLAN 
Attach a basic site plan sketch of the Special Event to this application. 
Please note the location of entrances and exits, retail, food and alcoholic beverage 
vendors, controlled alcohol consumption areas, tents, stages, bleachers, amplified sound, 
signs or banners, portable restrooms, trailers, electric and water hookups, first aid 
stations, fire extinguishers, garbage and recycling receptacles, barricades, hazardous 
materials, fire hydrants, exhibits, and security. The area requested must be reasonably 
suited relative to the accessibility, size and nature of the proposed Special Event. The 
event must accommodate the special needs of disabled persons whose rights are 
protected under the Americans with Disabilities Act and choose to participate in the 
event. 

FIRE HYDRANTS OR SIDEWALK CURB BREAKS THAT ARE USED FOR 
ADA ACCESSIBILITY MAY NOT BE BLOCKED AT ANYTIME. 

6. NOTIFICATION TO IMPACTED RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES 
Special Events that impact Town of Sullivan's Island residents or businesses require that 
neighborhoods be notified by letter thirty (30) days prior to a Special Event. Notices 
must reflect the date, time, locations and types of activities taking place during the 
Special Event. Contact information for the Special Event coordinator shall also be 
included. 

Attach a sample of the notification letter, a list of impacted neighborhoods/residents, 
and businesses and any responses to this application. 



7. SIGNAGE 

Will signs or banners be hung onsite? Yes 	.1( 	No 

NO OFF-PREMISE SIGNS OR SIGNS IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ARE 
ALLOWED. FASTENING OR ATTACHING ANY ROPE, SIGNS, BANNERS, 
FLIERS OR OTHER OBJECTS TO ANY TREE, SHRUB, OR PARK FEATURE 
INCLUDING LIGHT POLES ON ANY TOWN OF SULLIVAN'S ISLAND 
PROPERTY IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. 

S. TENTS, INFLATABLES, RIDES 

Will tents or canopies be used during the Special Event? Yes 	 No 

If yes, list number, types and sizes of tents/canopies:  )k  0441 -‘11 t`"ejedvoitt  

ovAti 

Pavement Holes/Marring: Drilling into pavement (parking areas, streets, sidewalks, 
curbs, etc.) is strictly prohibited. All anchoring of tents must be accomplished with 
weights such as sandbags, concrete or water-filled barrels, 

a) Will generators be used; Ycs 	 No 

b) Will power source be needed: Yes 	 

c) Will inflatables (jump castles, etc.), mechanical rides or other attractions be 
used during the Special Event: Yes 	 No 

If yes, list number, type, size, square footage, location and, if drawing power from 
a Town source, indicated number of amps needed to operate (attach separate page 
if necessary): 	  

No 



If contracting with a rental company for inflatables, indicate company name and 
address: 

Contact: 	 Telephone: 	  

If the event is to be held on Town property: Applicants contracting with 
amusement companies are required to provide the Town of Sullivan's Island 
with a certificate of insurance, naming the applicant and the Town of 
Sullivan's Island as additional insured on general liability declaration. 

9. PORTABLE RESTROOMS 
Portable restroom facilities must be provided unless documentation is submitted that 
there are sufficient number of public restroom facilities which are ADA accessible that 
will be available to attendees during the Special Event. The Town may determine that 
total number of required restroom facilities at a Special Event on a case-by-case basis. 

Do you plan to provide portable restroom facilities at your Special Event? 

Yes 	 No 	 

If yes, how many?   q 3-  Number of ADA Accessible portable restrooms: 	 

Company providing restrooms:  	PAltfts OttA5  . 

Contact person on day of event: Name 	  Telephone 	  

Equipment Setup: Date 	 Time 	Per,r14/414,4-04 

Equipment Pickup: Date 	 Time 	Aroktitf6ca` 

If no toilets will be provided, please explain: 	  

All toilets, handwash and grease must be removed from Town property within 24 
hours. If the event is on Saturday evening, items can remain until 10:00 am 
Monday unless there is an event scheduled for that Sunday. 



10. AMPLIFIED SOUND, STAGES 
Section 14-15 and 14-16 of the Town of Sullivan's Island Code of Ordinances restrict the 
volume of sound and/or music. 

Will the Special Event have amplified music or sound? Yes 	 No 	 

Name of company: 	  

Contact person on the day of event: 	 Cell number: 	  

Are there any musical entertainment features related to your event? Yes   1   No 	 

If yes, briefly describe music and, if applicable, attach schedule of any music or 
entertainment proposed to occur:  	SCII) 	Cti-P41-f  

Number of stages: 	 Number of bands: 

Start time: 	Finish time: 	 

11. SAFETY AND SECURITY (CIRCLE TYPES OF SECURITY NEEDED): 

Beer/Alcohol Security Stage Security Event Area Security 

Road Closure Security Gate Security Money Handling Security 

Overnight Security From 	 

Applicant may be required to hire internal security for internal and on-site matter. The 
Town reserves the right to have additional sworn officers present to provide security that 
ensures public safety. Additional law enforcement manpower required shall be 
determined by the Chief of Police and charged to the applicant. 



12. PUBLIC SAFETY ISSUES 

a) Crisis Management Contact Information 
Each Special Event is required to submit 24-hour emergency contact information 
for primary contacts to the Town of Sullivan's Police and Fire Departments. 

• Primary Contact Name:  	 6der  
• Address:  	7;4 3 A- 

• Telephone:6?g3i  03 -16i  Cell Phone: gigt -dot, 

 

b) Fire Safety Information 
Fire hydrants cannot be blocked during any Special Event. 

Will the Special Event have any hazardous  or flammable materials, such as 
propane, butane, gasoline, diesel tanks, portable generators or helium tanks? 

Yes 	No 	 

If yes, describe:  	Swit raya4te 	,qt 	ak) 

( w Amsigy)  

Please note: 
• All tanks must be secured in a manner to prevent accidentally being 

knocked over. 
• All helium tanks not being used shall have their caps in place. 
• For each cooking location, the Town requires a K Type fire extinguisher. 



13. EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

Will first aid staffing/equipment be provided during the Special Event? Yes 	No   A/  

If yes, emergency service provider name: 	  

Telephone number: 	  Alternate number: 	  

Site location: 

Times of operation: 

Note: This type of support will be mandated on a case-by-case basis. 

14. TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN 

Circle the type of event: 

Run/Walk Bike or Wheeled Race Parade Bike Tour 

Other:  	Z21-'  9,4's 	Cifokr{1-1611  

Start Location:51221h- 	Finish Location:5k-  2.ZY7   

Estimated number of Participants: 	 Estimated number of Vehicles: 	 

On-street spaces available? Yes 	Number of Spaces 	 No 

Off-street spaces available? Yes 	Number of Spaces 	No 	 

Please provide a Traffic Control Plan to be approved by the Town of Sullivan's Island 
Police Department. Include the information below as well as any additional information 
that may apply to the event: 

• The proposed route to be traveled, including the starting and finishing points. 
Also, clarify the direction the event will move. 

• A routing plan for traffic, which includes roads requesting to be closed to 
vehicular and other traffic during the event, Include contact arrangements/plan to 
be resolve potential conflicts with people trying to access residences, businesses, 



places of worship, and public facilities, or other situations that will be affected by 
the event. 

• Proposed locations for barricades, signs, volunteers, and Police. This portion of 
your Traffic Control Plan with the assistance of the town of Sullivan's Island 
Police Department will be reviewed for approval after initial submission of the 
application. The Police Department will determine the timeline for closure of all 
venues. 

• A minimum of a 10-foot wide emergency access lane is required throughout the 
event site. Therefore, no permanent structures or fixed objects may be erected 
along this route. 

• The event must maintain pedestrian access on the public sidewalks. 

Road Closure Schedule 

Will the event require road closures and/or barricades? Yes  .k  	No 
If yes, please complete the road closure schedule below. 

Does the event restrict access to any private or public parking lots? Yes 	No   )i  
If yes, attach a signed letter of notification to all impacted parties before the special 
event permit will be issued. 

Road Closures and/or Barricaded Streets: 
Street Name 	From/To (Intersections) Date 	Time 

*4761 	1,4k / 	3/12414' 

The Town of Sullivan's Island Police Department has final discretion over the 
Traffic Control Plan, including but not limited to the placement and number of all 
barricades, signs, meter bags, volunteer and Police locations. The Town will attempt 
to accommodate barricade needs but the applicant is ultimately responsible to 
secure the SCDOT required barricades and signage. 

6i/14A- 	4r 4A-- 

144. 412   



15. TRASH, GREASE AND RECYCLING REMOVAL PLAN 

a) What is your detailed cleanup plan for the event (attached additional sheet if 
required)?  	Atictiff deakv, 5Vd1tbel zi41 61/tAL 

iihrraukteli 	1-7S :44,4-)'40 crk.44 	etut4, yter  

CtocAl 54 f e 2 A,  

b) Do you have a sanitation and recycling removal plan? Yes   <   No 	 
If yes, please describe. 

1)/4  

4:)<4.R.  

rItAtt • 
c) 	t event need a street sweeper prior to the event or at conclusion of the 

event? Yes 	 No   ,4   

d) Will the event require grease disposal? Yes 	No /C: 
No grease may be poured on grass, hardscapes or in stormwater drains. 

e) What will grease be stored in during the event? 

I) Company picking up grease from event: 

Contact name/number: 

All grease and grease containers must be removed from the site within 24 hours. 
If the event is on Saturday evening items can remain until 10:00 am Monday 
unless an event is scheduled for Sunday. 

Applicants are responsible for cleaning and restoring the site after the Special 
Event. Cleanup should begin within one hour after the Special Event is concluded 
and continue until completed. Site must be cleared within 24 hours of the 
conclusion of the Special Event. The cost of any Town of Sullivan's Island 
employee overtime incurred because of an applicant's failure to clean and 
restore the site following the Special Event will be borne by the applicant, 



16. VENDORS (Anyone serving, selling, sampling or displaying food, beverages, 
merchandise or providing services). 

a) Does the Special Event include retail or food vendors? Yes 	No  Y  
Applicant shall attach a detailed list of all vendors attending the event with this 
form. Include business type(s) and required license for each vendor. If food 
related, include cooking method and food/cooking oil disposal method details. 
All vendors must be notified of license and permit requirements for the day of the 
event. 

• Section 10-1 of the Town of Sullivan's Island Code of Ordinances 
requires "Every person engaged or intending to engage in any calling, 
business, occupation or profession listed in the rate classification index 
portion of this ordinance, in whole or in part, within the limits of the 
Town of Sullivan's Island, South Carolina, is required to pay an annual 
license fee and obtain a business license as herein provided". Such 
licenses are based on gross income pursuant to SC Law. For business 
license contact Town Hall at 843-883-3198. 

• Persons selling products are also required to have a SC Retail Sales Tax 
license. For SC Retail License questions call the SC Department of 
Revenue at 843-852-3600. 

• Sale of alcoholic beverages requires an ABL-900 Temporary License from 
the SC Department of Revenue's Alcoholic Licensing Beverage Division. 
Serving alcoholic beverages may require this same license. Go to 
www.sctax.org  select Beer-Liquor-Wine-Bingo>Forms>Alcohol 
Beverage Licensing, then scroll to ABL-900, For Alcoholic Licensing 
questions, call 843-852-3600 or 803-898-5864. 

• Preparation and sale of food requires a Food Service Permit from the SC 
Department of Health and Environmental Control. Go to 
www.sedhec.Rov , select Food Service under Permits, Licenses & 
Certification or telephone 843-202-7020. Note: For each cooking 
location, the Town requires a K Type Fire Extinguisher. 



17. ALCOHOL PLAN 

a) Will alcoholic beverages be served without charge? Yes 	 No 	 

b) Will alcoholic beverages be sold? Yes 	 No 	 

c) If yes, check applicable: Liquor 	Draft Beer k Can Beer  k*  

Wine _ 	 

d) Who will serve alcohol? 

Self-Serve 	 Volunteers 	Caterer (Name) 	 Staff 

Licensed Bartenders 	 Other (Describe) 	  

Designated areas where alcohol will be served and consumed must clearly be 
indicated  on the attached site plan, 

e) Times for alcohol to be served 
Start: 	jb A-AA-- 	Finish: 	w 	N/A: 	  

THE FOLLOWING CONTROLS MUST BE FOLLOWED AT SPECIAL 
EVENTS SERVING ALCOHOL: 

• The Special Event sponsor shall be required to establish a controlled entrance 
and exit location by posting 11" x 17" signage stating that alcoholic beverages 
are prohibited beyond the permitted area with refuse containers adjacent to the 
signage. As required by the Chief of Police or his designee, a controlled area 
for serving and consuming alcohol may be required. 

• No more than 2 alcoholic beverages shall be served to any person at any one 
time. 

• No alcoholic beverages shall he served to any person unless such person has 
been issued a wristband by the Special Event sponsor indicating that the 
person has shown valid proof of being at least 21 years of age. 

• No alcohol shall be served to Special Event attendees that are visibly 
intoxicated. 



• The Special Event applicant and invitees shall be in compliance with all other 
applicable federal, state and local statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, 
licenses and permits, including permits required by the South Carolina 
Department of Revenue. 

• No outside alcohol shall be permitted within the controlled area. 

• Where alcohol is going to be served inside the park/facility, no talegate party 
activity will be permitted at the conclusion of the event in the venue parking 
lot(s). 

18. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

a) General Liability Insurance: Applicant must submit a Certificate of Insurance 
providing proof of a commercial general liability insurance policy  or its 
equivalent, written on an occurrence basis for bodily injury, personal injury, 
property damage and product liability, with a minimum of one million dollar 
($1,000,000) per occurrence naming the Town of Sullivan's Island as additional 
insured. 

• 	Has a General Liability Insurance policy listing the Town as A 
fri7L4/ additional insured been secured? Yes 	 No 

/1)4:41 	10-‘14 
b) Liquor Legal Liability Insurance: If the Applicant intends to serve or sell 

alcoholic beverages at a Special Event, liquor legal liability coverage must be 
purchased. The liquor legal liability insurance can be endorsed in the general 
liability insurance policy or purchased separately naming the Town of Sullivan's 
Island as additional insured. The minimum limit of liability per claim and 
aggregate is one million dollars ($1,000,000). 

2  ?riolecS, 
0.2yActi do 	. 

efetoxi The Applicant shalt submit Certificate(s) of Insurance verifying the above  minim 
coverage(s) and specifically identifying the Town of Sullivan's Island as additional 
insured. The Town of Sullivan's Island does not sell insurance. However, this type of 
insurance policy may be acquired from most private insurance carriers. A permit 
will not be issued if the Town has not received the required insurance certificate(s)  
prior to the Special Event.  

• Has the Liquor Legal Liability Insurance listing the Town as # 
additional insured been secured? Yes 	No 



19. HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE: The Applicant hereby shall assume all 
risks incident to or in connection with the Special Event Permit and shall be 
solely responsible for damage or injury, of whatever kind or nature, to 
person or property, directly or indirectly arising out of or in connection with 
the Special Event Permit. Applicant hereby expressly agrees to defend and 
hold the Town of Sullivan's Island harmless from any penalties for violation 
of law, ordinance, or regulation affecting its activity and from any and all 
claims, suits, losses, damages, judgments, or injuries directly or indirectly 
arising out of or in connection with the Special Event Permit or resulting 
from the negligence or international act or omission of applicant and/or its 
officers, agents and employees. 

Applicant Signature: 44,1j(S,  	Date: 

 

 

Print Applicant Name: plqA,  kitiu2A  

 

Applicant Contact Numbere413) et 7-i IN6  teo) 0/1-.11ok 

Property Owner's Signature: 	  Date: 	  

Print Property Owner's Name: 	  

Owner Contact Number: 



Parade/Procession 

Work Phone: 

TOWN OF SULLIVAN'S ISLAND 

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT 

Event Date:  ,3- Time:  /0 • 	akkx 

  

    

Event Location: 

 

2210 Riddle cs--1,67) 

 

   

Event Type: 	Festival 	Bicycle or Wheeled Race.  

	Foot Race or Walk 	 

	Other - Please describe: 

Event Name:S4.70-k c 5, icui  Organization/Company:- )00 	) j  

Mailing Address:  22_10 

 

;Arlle 4-{eei 

 

  

E-mail(s): 

3'(5()Sacsimile: 	 Mobile Phone: 	  

)(6)(L) {-P,S+-01 ) OYAS • C 011,-\ 

Has the organization planned an event or Sullivan's Island before: 

	(Yes) 	(No) 

How many years has this particular event existed: Where: 

 

  

P.O. BOX 427 • SULLIVAN'S ISLAND, SC 29482 
(843) 883-3198 • FAX (843) 883-3009 . WWW.SULLIVANSISLAND-SC.COM  



Does the event planner have previous experience planning and running the type of event applied 
for: 

K  (Yes) 	(No) 

Event Website: 

Estimated Attendance: 

The event is: 

  

  

Private; 

 

Open to General Public; 	Open to Public by Entry Fee 

   

     

The Town of Sullivan's Island does not allow the use of any Town property for the purpose 
of profit (unless for charitable donations). No admission fees can be charged except entry 
fees to races/walks for the purpose of raising funds for a designated 501(3)c charity. 

Application Approval — Town of Sullivan's Island Use Only 

Signature of Town Administrator 	 Date 

Comments and Special Conditions: 
1. Attendees must park in designated right of way areas and may not block the street. 
2. Event must comply with the noise ordinance (SI Code Sec. 14-15 and 14-16). 
3. Alcoholic beverages are prohibited on the beach (SI Code Sec. 4-24). 
4. Beach activity is prohibited after llpm (SI Code Section 4-12). 
5. Attendees must comply with the dog ordinance (SI Code Sec.3-8). 
6. Commercial activity is prohibited on the beach (SI Code 4-32). 
7. Attendees enter the ocean at their own risk. 
8. Applicant is responsible for beach clean up. 



1. PARK/FACILITY/SITE LOCATION 
If your requested location is not available or not suitable for the type of permit requested, 
alternate sites may be offered if available. 

Park/Facility/Site Requested for Event:  AjjA  

Property Owner Name: 	  

Phone: 

***If the event occurs on private property, the property owner must sign the last 
page of this application before submission to the Town. 

2. DESCRIPTION OF THE SPECIAL EVENT 
Provide a brief description and purpose of the Special Event (attach a separate page as 
needed): 

i y-, no( for LI' u.4s  Ir5-4- -Fri) i S-\--. eTlAy- 104'5 

Ce‘P lov-0-4 7'01,-\  

3. DATE AND TIME OF SPECIAL EVENT, SETUP AND DISMANTLE 

a) Setup: 3)1 2  (Day/Date):  0 yv  Start Time; 	Finish Time 

b) Event:  -2)))7,...  (Day/Date);  1(nlv.  Stare Time Finish Time 

c) Dismantle:3)  )7  (Day/Date); Start Time; 7.t> a)  Finish Time 



Road Closure 
p1 

e 	endors 	Food Vendors 
Signs and Banners Need for Electricity 
Inflatables/Jump Castle Grease Disposal 
Other: 

ge or leachers 
Admission Fee 	Need for Water Hookup 
Animals 

4. COMPONENTS OF SPECIAL EVENT 
The Town of Sullivan's Island does not provide or rent to the public the following items: 
portable toilets, staging, sound systems, tents, trash cans, recycle cans, grease traps, 
sandwich boards, tables, chairs, barricades, road signs or other equipment. 

Circle the following items that are an element of your event: 

5. SITE PLAN 
Attach a basic site plan sketch of the Special Event to this application. 
Please note the location of entrances and exits, retail, food and alcoholic beverage 
vendors, controlled alcohol consumption areas, tents, stages, bleachers, amplified sound, 
signs or banners, portable restrooms, trailers, electric and water hookups, first aid 
stations, fire extinguishers, garbage and recycling receptacles, barricades, hazardous 
materials, fire hydrants, exhibits, and security. The area requested must be reasonably 
suited relative to the accessibility, size and nature of the proposed Special Event. The 
event must accommodate the special needs of disabled persons whose rights are 
protected under the Americans with Disabilities Act and choose to participate in the 
event. 

FIRE HYDRANTS OR SIDEWALK CURB BREAKS THAT ARE USED FOR 
ADA ACCESSIBILITY MAY NOT BE BLOCKED AT ANYTIME. 

6. NOTIFICATION TO IMPACTED RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES 
Special Events that impact Town of Sullivan's Island residents or businesses require that 
neighborhoods be notified by letter thirty (30) days prior to a Special Event. Notices 
must reflect the date, time, locations and types of activities taldng place during the 
Special Event. Contact information for the Special Event coordinator shall also be 
included. 

Attach a sample of the notification letter, a list of impacted neighborhoods/residents, 
and businesses and any responses to this application. 



7. SIGNAGE 

Will signs or banners be hung onsite? Yes 	 No _X._ 

NO OFF-PREMISE SIGNS OR SIGNS IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ARE 
ALLOWED. FASTENING OR ATTACHING ANY ROPE, SIGNS, BANNERS, 
FLIERS OR OTHER OBJECTS TO ANY TREE, SHRUB, OR PARK FEATURE 
INCLUDING LIGHT POLES ON ANY TOWN OF SULLIVAN'S ISLAND 
PROPERTY IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. 

8. TENTS, INFLATABLES, RIDES 

Wi 11 tents or canopies be used during the Special Event? Yes 

If yes, list number, types and sizes of tents/canopies: 	  

Pavement Holes/Marring: Drilling into pavement (parking areas, streets, sidewalks, 
curbs, etc.) is strictly prohibited. All anchoring of tents must be accomplished with 
weights such as sandbags, concrete or water-filled barrels, 

a) Will generators be used: Yes 	 No 

b) Will power source be needed: Yes 

 

N° 	 

 

c) Will inflatables (jump castles, etc.), mechanical rides r other attractions be 
used during the Special Event: Yes 	 No 	 

If yes, list number, type, size, square footage, location and, if drawing power from 
a Town source, indicated number of amps needed to operate (attach separate page 
if necessary): 	  



If contracting with a rental company for inflatables, indicate company name and 
address: 

Contact: 	 Telephone: 	  

lithe event is to be held on Town property: Applicants contracting with 
amusement companies are required to provide the Town of Sullivan's Island 
with a certificate of insurance, naming the applicant and the Town of 
Sullivan's Island as additional insured on general liability declaration. 

9. PORTABLE RESTROOMS 
Portable restroom facilities must be provided unless documentation is submitted that 
there are sufficient number of public restroom facilities which are ADA accessible that 
will be available to attendees during the Special Event. The Town may determine that 
total number of required restroom facilities at a Special Event on a case-by-case basis. 

Do you plan to provide portable restroom facilities at your Special Event? 

Yes 	 No 

If yes, how many?  (.C)  Number of ADA Accessible portable restrooms: 	 

Company providing restrooms: 	(2,,il  
Contact person on day of event: Name 

1 1 	Time i   Equipment Setup: Date  ...S  

Equipment Pickup: Date  3 ) 	Time  I ( , 
If no toilets will be provided, please explain: 	  

All toilets, handwash and grease must be removed from Town property within 24 
hours. If the event is on Saturday evening, items can remain until 10:00 am 
Monday unless there is an event scheduled for that Sunday. 

elephone gj 	1D  -q 



10. AMPLIFIED SOUND, STAGES 
Section 14-15 and 14-16 of the Town of Sullivan's Island Code of Ordinances restrict the 
volume of sound and/or music. 

Will the Special Event have amplified music or sound? Yes 	No 	 

Name of company: 	  

Contact person on the day of event: 	 Cell number: 	  

Are there any musical entertainment features related to your event? Yes 	No 

If yes, briefly describe music and, if applicable, attach schedule of any music or 
entertainment proposed to occur: 	  

Number of stages: 	Number of bands: 

Start time: 	 Finish time: 

11. SAFETY AND SECURITY (CIRCLE TYPES OF SECURITY NEEDED): 

Beer/Alcohol Security Stage Security Event Area Security 

Road Closure Security Gate Security Money Handling Security 

Overnight Security From 	: 	 • 	 

A I,  p !leant may be required to hire internal security for internal and on-site matter. The 
Town reserves the right to have additional sworn officers present to provide security that 
ensures public safety. Additional law enforcement manpower required shall be 
determined by the Chief of Police and charged to the applicant. 



12. PUBLIC SAFETY ISSUES 

a) Crisis Management Contact Information 
Each Special Event is required to submit 24-hour emergency contact information 
for primary contacts to the Town of Sullivan's Police and Fire Departments. 

o Primary Contact Name: p c it ,..\.exileket_  

• Address:  221r)  Ak,rjr16)  

o Telephone: M-7)  - tfi ip-cpg6tPhone:  843 - iticko -6/Q2(4) 

b) Fire Safety Information 
Fire hydrants cannot be blocked during any Special Event 

Will the Special Event have any hazardous or flammable materials, such as 
propane, butane, gasoline, diesel tanks, portable generators or helium tanks? 

Yes 	 No 

If yes, describe: —Prnpar\t'_  

Please note: 
o All tanks must be secured in a manner to prevent accidentally being 

knocked over. 
o All helium tanks not being used shall have their caps in place. 
o For each cooking location, the Town requires a K Type fire extinguisher. 



13. EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

Will first aid staffing/equipment be provided during the Special Event? Yes 	 

If yes, emergency service provider name: 	  

Telephone number: 	  Alternate number: 	  

Site location: 

Times of operation: 	  

Note: This type of support will be mandated on a case-by-case basis. 

14. TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN 

Circle the type of event: 

Run/Walk Bike or Wheeled Race Parade Bike Tour 

Other: 

Start Location: 	  Finish Location: 	 

Estimated number of Participants: 	 Estimated number of Vehicles: 	 

On-street spaces available? Yes 	Number of Spaces 	 No 

Off-street spaces available? Yes 	Number of Spaces 	No 

Please provide a Traffic Control Plan to be approved by the Town of Sullivan's Island 
Pol; cc Department. Include the information below as well as any additional information 
that may apply to the event: 

The proposed route to be traveled, including the starting and finishing points. 
Also, clarify the direction the event will move. 
A routing plan for traffic, which includes roads requesting to be closed to 
vehicular and other traffic during the event. Include contact arrangements/plan to 
be resolve potential conflicts with people trying to access residences, businesses, 



places of worship, and public facilities, or other situations that will be affected by 
the event. 

• Proposed locations for barricades, signs, volunteers, and Police. This portion of 
your Traffic Control Plan with the assistance of the town of Sullivan's Island 
Police Department will be reviewed for approval after initial submission of the 
application. The Police Department will determine the timeline for closure of all 
venues. 

O A minimum of a 10-foot wide emergency access lane is required throughout the 
event site. Therefore, no permanent structures or fixed objects may be erected 
along this route. 

• The event must maintain pedestrian access on the public sidewalks. 

Road Closure Schedule 

Will the event require road closures and/or barricades? Yes 	 No 
If yes, please complete the road closure schedule below. 

Does the event restrict access to any private or public parking lots? Yes 	No 
If yes, attach a signed letter of notification to all impacted parties before the special 

event permit will be issued. 

Road Closures and/or Barricaded Streets: 
Street Name 	From/To (Intersections) Date 	Time 

The Town of Sullivan's Island Police Department has fmal discretion over the 
Tr:1 rile Control Plan, including but not limited to the placement and number of all 
bar ; ieades, signs, meter bags, volunteer and Police locations. The Town will attempt 
to v. ceornmodate barricade needs but the applicant is ultimately responsible to 
sec 0 re t he SCDOT required barricades and signage. 



15. TR.tSH, GREASE AND RECYCLING REMOVAL PLAN 

a) What is your detailed cleanup plan for the event (attached additional sheet if 
required)? 	  

1)) Do you have a sanitation and recycling removal plan? Yes 	No 
If yes, please describe. 	  

Cti-CM 	00-AC 	  

c) 	Will the event need a strut sweeper prior to the event or at conclusion of the 
event? Yes 	No 

(I) Will the event require grease disposal? Yes 	No 	 
No grease may be poured on grass, hardscapes or in stormwater drains. 

e) What will grease be stored in during the event? 	  

1) Company picking up grease from event: 	  

Contact name/number: 

All grease and grease containers must be removed from the site within 24 hours. 
I r the event is on Saturday evening items can remain until 10:00 am Monday 
1,nless an event is scheduled for Sunday. 

Applicants are responsible for cleaning and restoring the site after the Special 
Event. Cleanup should begin within one hour after the Special Event is concluded 
and continue until completed. Site must be cleared within 24 hours of the 
conclusion of the Special Event. The cost of any Town of Sullivan's Island 
employee overtime incurred because of an applicant's failure to clean and 
restore the site following the Special Event will be borne by the applicant. 



16. VENDORS (Anyone serving, selling, sampling or displaying food, beverages, 
merchandise or providing services). 

a) Does the Special Event include retail or food vendors? Yes 	No 
Applicant shall attach a detailed list of all vendors attending the event with this 
form. Include business type(s) and required license for each vendor. If food 
related, include cooking method and food/cooking oil disposal method details. 
A ll vendors must be notified of license and permit requirements for the day of the 
event. 

o Section 10-1 of the Town of Sullivan's Island Code of Ordinances 
requires "Every person engaged or intending to engage in any calling, 
business, occupation or profession listed in the rate classification index 
portion of this ordinance, in whole or in part, within the limits of the 
Town of Sullivan's Island, South Carolina, is required to pay an annual 
license fee and obtain a business license as herein provided". Such 
licenses are based on gross income pursuant to SC Law. For business 
license contact Town Hall at 843-883-3198. 

o Persons selling products are also required to have a SC Retail Sales Tax 
license. For SC Retail License questions call the SC Department of 
Revenue at 843-852-3600. 

o Sale of alcoholic beverages requires an ABL-900 Temporary License from 
the SC Department of Revenue's Alcoholic Licensing Beverage Division. 
Serving alcoholic beverages may require this same license. Go to 
www.sctax.org  select Beer-Liquor-Wine-Bingo>Forms>Alcohol 
Beverage Licensing, then scroll to AJ3L-900. For Alcoholic Licensing 
questions, call 843-852-3600 or 803-898-5864. 

o Preparation and sale of food requires a Food Service Permit from the SC 
Department of Health and Environmental Control. Go to 
www.scdhec.gov  , select Food Service under Permits, Licenses & 
Certification or telephone 843-202-7020. Note: For each cooking 
location, the Town requires a K Type Fire Extinguisher. 



17. ALCOHOL PLAN 

a) Will alcoholic beverages be served without charge? Yes 	No 	 

b) Will alcoholic beverages be sold? Yes 

c) If yes, check applicable: Liquor 	Draft Beer  >e—  Can Beer  >C...  

Wine 

d) Who will serve alcohol? 

Self-Serve 	 Volunteers 	Caterer (Name) 	 Staff_ 

Licensed Bartenders 	 Other (Describe) 	  

Designated areas where alcohol will be served and consumed must clearly be 
indicated  on the attached site plan. 

c) Times for alcohol to be served 
Start:  ir) 	Finish: 	  N/A: 	 

THE FOLLOWING CONTROLS MUST BE FOLLOWED AT SPECIAL 
EVENTS SERVING ALCOHOL: 

The Special Event sponsor shall be required to establish a controlled entrance 
and exit location by posting 11" x 17" signage stating that alcoholic beverages 
are prohibited beyond the permitted area with refuse containers adjacent to the 
signage. As required by the Chief of Police or his designee, a controlled area 
for serving and consuming alcohol may be required. 

o No more than 2 alcoholic beverages shall be served to any person at any one 
time. 

• No alcoholic beverages shall be served to any person unless such person has 
been issued a wristband by the Special Event sponsor indicating that the 
person has shown valid proof of being at least 21 years of age. 

o No alcohol shall be served to Special Event attendees that are visibly 
intoxicated. 

No 



o The Special Event applicant and invitees shall be in compliance with all other 
applicable federal, state and local statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, 
licenses and permits, including permits required by the South Carolina 
Department of Revenue. 

o No outside alcohol shall be permitted within the controlled area. 
• Where alcohol is going to be served inside the park/facility, no talegate party 

activity will be permitted at the conclusion of the event in the venue parking 
lot(s). 

18. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

a) General Liability Insurance: Applicant must submit a Certificate of Insurance 
providing proof of a commercial general liability insurance policy  or its 
equivalent, written on an occurrence basis for bodily injury, personal injury, 
property damage and product liability, with a minimum of one million dollar 
($1,000,000) per occurrence naming the Town of Sullivan's Island as additional 
insured. 

o Has a General Liability Insurance policy isting the Town as 
additional insured been secured? Yes 	No 

b) Liquor Legal Liability Insurance: If the Applicant intends to serve or sell 
alcoholic beverages at a Special Event, liquor legal liability coverage must be 
purchased. The liquor legal liability insurance can be endorsed in the general 
liability insurance policy or purchased separately naming the Town of Sullivan's 
Island as additional insured. The minimum limit of liability per claim and 
a p.tuegate is one million dollars ($1,000,000). 

o Has the Liquor Legal Liability Insurance • tang the Town as 
additional insured been secured? Yes 	No 

The Applicant shall submit Certificate(s) of Insurance verifying the above minimum 
coverage(s) and specifically identifying the Town of Sullivan's Island as additional 
insured. The Town of Sullivan's Island does not sell insurance. However, this type of 
insurance policy may be acquired from most private insurance carriers. A permit 
will not be issued if the Town has not received the required insurance certificates)  
prior to  /.'re  Special Event.  



Applicant 	r 

Print Applicant Name: 

Date:  /--Z 7- // 2  

19. HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE: The Applicant hereby shall assume all 
risks incident to or in connection with the Special Event Permit and shall be 
solely responsible for damage or injury, of whatever kind or nature, to 
person or property, directly or indirectly arising out of or in connection with 
the Special Event Permit. Applicant hereby expressly agrees to defend and 
hold the Town of Sullivan's Island harmless from any penalties for violation 
of law, ordinance, or regulation affecting its activity and from any and all 
clai:-.1s, suits, losses, damages, judgments, or injuries directly or indirectly 
arishIg out of or in connection with the Special Event Permit or resulting 
from the negligence or international act or omission of applicant and/or its 
officers, agents and employees. 

Applicant Contact Number: 

 

logLo  -qqZk, 

 

Property C ,y:ler's Signature: 	 

Print Prop :!rty Owner's Name: 

Owner Co , tact Number: 

    

Date: 

 

      

      

        



TOWN OF SULLIVAN'S ISLAND 

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT 

Event Date: ecia• 	Z--  Time: Ado,/ 	 

   

Event Location: 

Event Type: 	 

NA-2itcL 1-41 
Festival 	Bicycle or Wheeled Race 	 

Foot Race or Walk 	Parade/Procession 

Other - Please describe: 

Event Name: 1.P6r[tp 0 	Organization/Company: 

Mailing Address:  2.2-1 0 MI &ie U  JkJ 
kgR.32)._.3 36,  

Work Phone:  u 	- -  raesimile: 	 Mobile Phone: 

OiA*-0-e-gAl) 

 

11,c1cok(cj  5g  c,_ 

 

E-mail(s):  cm, 

 

 

  

Has the organization planned an event or Sullivan's Island before: 

(Yes) 	(No) 

Ila‘v many years has this particular event existed: 	Where: 	AA-C111-le'  

P.O. BOX 427 • SULLIVAN'S ISLAND, SC 29482 
(843) 883-3198 • FAX (843) 883-3009 • WWW.SULLIVANSISLAND-SC.COM  



Does the event planner have previous experience planning and running the type of event applied 
for: 

	(Yes) 	(No) 

Event Website: 

Estimated Attendance: 

The event is: 

Private; 	Open to General Public; 	Open to Public by Entry Fee 

The Town of Sullivan's Island does not allow the use of any Town property for the purpose 
of profit (unless for charitable donations). No admission fees can be charged except entry 
fees to races/walks for the purpose of raising funds for a designated 501(3)c charity. 

Application Approval — Town of Sullivan's Island Use Only 

Signature of Town Administrator 	 Date 

Comments and Special Conditions: 
I. 	Attendees must park in designated right of way areas and may not block the street. 
2. Event must comply with the noise ordinance (SI Code Sec. 14-15 and 14-16). 
3. Alcoholic beverages are prohibited on the beach (SI Code Sec. 4-24). 
4. Beach activity is prohibited after 11pm (SI Code Section 4-12). 
5. Attendees must comply with the dog ordinance (SI Code Sec.3-8). 
6. Commercial activity is prohibited on the beach (SI Code 4-32). 
7. Attendees enter the ocean at their own risk. 
8. Applicant is responsible for beach clean up. 



1. PARK/FACILITY/SITE LOCATION 
If your requested location is not available or not suitable for the type of permit requested, 
alternate sites may be offered if available. 

Park/Facility/Site Requested for Event: 	  

Property Owner Name: 	  

Phone: 

***If the event occurs on private property, the property owner must sign the last 
page of this application before submission to the Town. 

2. DESCRIPTION OF THE SPECIAL EVENT 
Provide a brief description and purpose of the Special Event (attach a separate page as 
needed): 

,JJ 

3. DATE AND TIME OF SPECIAL EVENT, SETUP AND DISMANTLE 

a) Setup:3 2Day/Date):  	VIA  Start Time; 

b) Event:-.2' 	'-i -(Day/Date);   I°  OWIA'Stare Time; 

e) Dismantle:  	\   (Day/Date); 	Start Time; 

 

(0 

 

Finish Time 

Finish Time 

Finish Time 

   

   

    



4. COMPONENTS OF SPECIAL EVENT 
The Town of Sullivan's Island does not provide or rent to the public the following items: 
portable toilets, staging, sound systems, tents, trash cans, recycle cans, grease traps, 
sandwich boards, tables, chairs, barricades, road signs or other equipment. 

Circle the following items that are an clement of your event: 

R  ad COure 	Traffic Control 	Parking 
<- Alcohol 	Amplified Sound 	Live Music 

Retail Vendors 	Food Vendors 	Tents or Canopies 
Signs and Banners Need for Electricity Admission Fee 
Inflatablesnump Castle Grease Disposal Animals 
Other: 

Securi 

Stage or Bleachers 
Need for Water Hookup 

5. SITE PLAN 
Attach a basic site plan sketch of the Special Event to this application. 
Please note the location of entrances and exits, retail, food and alcoholic beverage 
vendors, controlled alcohol consumption areas, tents, stages, bleachers, amplified sound, 
signs or banners, portable restrooms, trailers, electric and water hookups, first aid 
stations, fire extinguishers, garbage and recycling receptacles, barricades, hazardous 
materials, fire hydrants, exhibits, and security. The area requested must he reasonably 

suited relative to the accessibility, size and nature of the proposed Special Event. The 
event must accommodate the special needs of disabled persons whose rights are 
protected under the Americans with Disabilities Act and choose to participate in the 

event. 
FIRE HYDRANTS OR SIDEWALK CURB BREAKS THAT ARE USED FOR 

ADA ACCESSIBILITY MAY NOT BE BLOCKED AT ANYTIME. 

6. NOTIFICATION TO IMPACTED RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES 
Special Events that impact Town of Sullivan's Island residents or businesses require that. 
neighborhoods be notified by letter thirty (30) days prior to a Special Event. Notices 
must reflect the date, time, locations and types of activities taking place during the 
Special Event. Contact information for the Special Event coordinator shall also be 
included. 

Attach a sample of the notification letter, a list of impacted neighborhoods/residents, 
and businesses and any responses to this application. 



7. SIGNAGE 

Will signs or banners be hung onsite? Yes 	 No 

NO OFF-PREMISE SIGNS OR SIGNS IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ARE 
ALLOWED. FASTENING OR ATTACHING ANY ROPE, SIGNS, BANNERS, 
FLIERS OR OTHER OBJECTS TO ANY TREE, SHRUB, OR PARK FEATURE 
INCLUDING LIGHT POLES ON ANY TOWN OF SULLIVAN'S ISLAND 
PROPERTY IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. 

8. TENTS, INFLATABLES, RIDES 

No--Z  Will tents or canopies be used during the Special Event? Yes 	 

If yes, list number, types and sizes of tents/canopies: 	  

Pavement Holes/Marring: Drilling into pavement (parking areas, streets, sidewalks, 
curbs, etc.) is strictly prohibited. All anchoring of tents must be accomplished with 
weights such as sandbags, concrete or water-filled barrels, 

a) Will generators be used: Yes 	 No 	 

b) Will power source be needed: Yes 

 

No 	 

 

   

c) Will inflatables (jump castles, etc.), mechanical rides or other attractions be 
used during the Special Event: Yes 	 No 	 

If yes, list number, type, size, square footage, location and, if thawing power from 
a Town source, indicated number of amps needed to operate (attach separate page 
if necessary): 	  



If contracting with a rental company for inflatables, indicate company name and 
address: 

Contact: 	 Telephone: 

If the event is to be held on Town property: Applicants contracting with 
amusement companies are required to provide the Town of Sullivan's Island 
with a certificate of insurance, naming the applicant and the Town of 
Sullivan's Island as additional insured on general liability declaration. 

9. PORTABLE RESTROOMS 
Portable restroom facilities must be provided unless documentation is submitted that 
there are sufficient number of public restroom facilities which are ADA accessible that 
will be available to attendees during the Special Event. The Town may determine that 
total number of required restroom facilities at a Special Event on a case-by-case basis. 

Do you plan to provide portable restroom facilities at your Special Event? 

Yes 	 No 

If yes, how many?  (r)  Number of ADA Accessible portable restrooms: 	 

Company providing restrooms: 	  

Contact person on day of event: Name 	  Telephone 	  

Equipment Setup: Date 	 Time 	  

Equipment Pickup: Date 	  Time 	  

If no toilets will be provided, please explain: 	  

All toilets, handwash and grease must be removed from Town property within 24 
hours. If the event is on Saturday evening, items can remain until 10:00 am 
Monday unless there is an event scheduled for that Sunday. 



10. AMPLIFIED SOUND, STAGES 
Section 14-15 and 14-16 of the Town of Sullivan's Island Code of Ordinances restrict the 
volume of sound and/or music. 

Will the Special Event have amplified music or sound? Yes 	 No 

Name of company: 	  

Contact person on the day of event: 	  Cell number: 	  

Are there any musical entertainment features related to your event? Yes 	No 	 

If yes, briefly describe music and, if applicable, attach schedule of any music or 
entertainment proposed to occur: 	  

Number of stages: 

  

Number of bands: 

Finish time: 

 

   

Start time: 

    

       

11. SAFETY AND SECURITY (CIRCLE TYPES OF SECURITY NEEDED): 

Beer/Alcohol Security Stage Security Event Area Security 

Road Closure Security Gate Security Money Handling Security 

Overnight Security From 	• 

Applicant may be required to hire internal security for internal and on-site matter. The 
Town reserves the right to have additional sworn officers present to provide security that 
ensures public safety. Additional law enforcement manpower required shall be 
determined by the Chief of Police and charged to the applicant. 



12. PUBLIC SAFETY ISSUES 

a) Crisis Management Contact Information 
Each Special Event is required to submit 24-hour emergency contact information 
for primary contacts to the Town of Sullivan's Police and Fire Departments. 

• Primary Contact Name:  giVI I L 	D A 1\1  

• Address: 	 AA ( D 	 /  

• Telephone:  gX 3' 5 5 3(   Cell Phone:  3  2j  -  

b) Fire Safety Information 
Fire hydrants cannot be blocked during any Special Event. 

Will the Special Event have any hazardous or flammable materials, such as 
propane, butane, gasoline, diesel tanks, portable generators or helium. tanks? 

Yes  V 	No 	 

If yes, describe:  racA,Va --trajc tAt,  

n112-d& 'ALA  
Please note: 

• All tanks must be secured in a manner to prevent accidentally being 
knocked over. 

• All helium tanks not being used shall have their caps in place. 

• For each cooking location, the Town requires a K Type fire extinguisher. 



13. EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

Will first aid staffing/equipment be provided during the Special Event? Yes 	No 

If yes, emergency service provider name: 

Telephone number: 	  Alternate number: 	  

Site location: 	  

Times of operation: 	  

Note: This type of support will be mandated on a case-by-case basis. 

14. TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN 

Circle the type of event: 

Run/Walk Bike or Wheeled Race Parade Bike Tour 

Other: 

Start Location: 	  Finish Location: 	 

Estimated number of Participants: 	 Estimated number of Vehicles: 	 

On-street spaces available? Yes 	Number of Spaces 	No 

Off-street spaces available? Yes 	Number of Spaces 	No 

Please provide a Traffic Control Plan to be approved by the Town of Sullivan's Island 
Police Department. Include the information below as well as any additional information 
that may apply to the event: 

• The proposed route to be traveled, including the starting and finishing points. 
Also, clarify the direction the event will move. 

• A routing plan for traffic, which includes roads requesting to be closed to 
vehicular and other traffic during the event. Include contact arrangements/plan to 
be resolve potential conflicts with people trying to access residences, businesses, 



places of worship, and public facilities, or other situations that will be affected by 
the event. 

• Proposed locations for barricades, signs, volunteers, and Police. This portion of 
your Traffic Control Plan with the assistance of the town of Sullivan's Island 
Police Department will be reviewed for approval after initial submission of the 
application. The Police Department will determine the timeline for closure of all 
venues. 

• A minimum of a 10-foot wide emergency access lane is required throughout the 
event site. Therefore, no permanent structures or fixed objects may be erected 
along this route. 

• The event must maintain pedestrian access on the public sidewalks. 

Road Closure Schedule 

	

No 	 Will the event require road closures and/or barricades? Yes 	 
If yes, please complete the road closure schedule below. 

Does the event restrict access to any private or public parking lots? Yes 	No 	 
If yes, attach a signed letter of notifteation to all impacted parties before the special 
event permit will be issued. 

Road Closures and/or Barricaded Streets: 
Street Name 	From/To (Intersections) 	Date 	Time 

The Town of Sullivan's Island Police Department has final discretion over the 
Traffic Control Plan, including but not limited to the placement and number of all 
barricades, signs, meter bags, volunteer and Police locations. The Town will attempt 
to accommodate barricade needs but the applicant is ultimately responsible to 
secure the SCDOT required barricades and signage. 



15. TRASH, GREASE AND RECYCLING REMOVAL PLAN 

a) What is your detailed cleanup plan for the event (attached additional sheet if 
required)? 	  

b) Do you have a sanitation and recycling removal plan? Yes 	No 
If yes, please describe. 	  

c) Will the event need a street sweeper prior to the event or at conclusion of the 
event? Yes 	No 

d) Will the event require grease disposal? Yes 	No 
No grease may be poured on grass, hardscapes or in stormwater drains. 

e) What will grease be stored in during the event? 	  

f) Company picking up grease from event: 	  

Contact name/number: 

All grease and grease containers must be removed from the site within 24 hours. 
If the event is on Saturday evening items can remain until 10:00 am Monday 
unless an event is scheduled for Sunday. 

Applicants are responsible for cleaning and restoring the site after the Special 
Event. Cleanup should begin within one hour after the Special Event is concluded 
and continue until completed. Site must be cleared within 24 hours of the 
conclusion of the Special Event. The cost of any Town of Sullivan's Island 
employee overtime incurred because of an applicant's failure to clean and 
restore the site following the Special Event will be borne by the applicant 



16. VENDORS (Anyone serving, selling, sampling or displaying food, beverages, 
merchandise or providing services). 

a) Does the Special Event include retail or food vendors? Yes 	No 
Applicant shall attach a detailed list of all vendors attending the event with this 
form. Include business type(s) and required license for each vendor. If food 
related, include cooking method and food/cooking oil disposal method details. 
All vendors must be notified of license and permit requirements for the day of the 
event. 

• Section 10-1 of the Town of Sullivan's Island Code of Ordinances 
requires "Every person engaged or intending to engage in any calling, 
business, occupation or profession listed in the rate classification index 
portion of this ordinance, in whole or in part, within the limits of the 
Town of Sullivan's Island, South Carolina, is required to pay an annual 
license fee and obtain a business license as herein provided". Such 
licenses are based on gross income pursuant to SC Law. For business 
license contact Town Hall at 843-883-3198. 

• Persons selling products are also required to have a SC Retail Sales Tax 
license. For SC Retail License questions call the SC Department of 
Revenue at 843-852-3600. 

• Sale of alcoholic beverages requires an ABL-900 Temporary License from 
the SC Department of Revenue's Alcoholic Licensing Beverage Division. 
Serving alcoholic beverages may require this same license. Go to 
vvww.sctax.org  select Beer-Liquor-Wine-Bingo>Forms>Alcohol 
Beverage Licensing, then scroll to ABL-900. For Alcoholic Licensing 
questions, call 843-852-3600 or 803-898-5864. 

• Preparation and sale of food requires a Food Service Permit from the SC 
Department of Health and Environmental Control. Go to 
vvww.scdhee.gov  , select Food Service under Permits, Licenses & 
Certification or telephone 843-202-7020. Note: For each cooldng 
location, the Town requires a K Type Fire Extinguisher. 



17. ALCOHOL PLAN 

a) Will alcoholic beverages be served without charge? Yes 	 

b) Will alcoholic beverages be sold? Yes   ,/  No 

c) if yes, check applicable: Liquor 	 Draft Beer L7Can Beer 

Win 

d) Who will serve alcohol? 

Self-Serve 	 Volunteers 	Caterer (Name) 	 Staff 	 

Licensed Bartenders 	 Other (Describe) 	  

Designated areas where alcohol will be served and consumed must clearly be 
indicated  on the attached site plan. 

e) Times for alcohol to be served 
Start: 	 Finish: 

	
N/A: 

THE FOLLOWING CONTROLS MUST BE FOLLOWED AT SPECIAL 
EVENTS SERVING ALCOHOL: 

• The Special Event sponsor shall be required to establish a controlled entrance 
and exit location by posting 11" x 17" signage stating that alcoholic beverages 
are prohibited beyond the permitted area with refuse containers adjacent to the 
signage. As required by the Chief of Police or his designee, a controlled area 
for serving and consuming alcohol may be required. 

• No more than 2 alcoholic beverages shall be served to any person at any one 
time. 

• No alcoholic beverages shall be served to any person unless such person has 
been issued a wristband by the Special Event sponsor indicating that the 
person has shown valid proof of being at least 21 years of age. 

• No alcohol shall be served to Special Event attendees that are visibly 
intoxicated. 



• The Special Event applicant and invitees shall be in compliance with all other 
applicable federal, state and local statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, 
licenses and permits, including permits required by the South Carolina 
Department of Revenue. 

• No outside alcohol shall be permitted within the controlled area. 
• Where alcohol is going to be served inside the park/facility, no talegate party 

activity will be permitted at the conclusion of the event in the venue parking 
lot(s). 

18. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

a) General Liability Insurance: Applicant must submit a Certificate of Insurance 
providing proof of a commercial general liability insurance policy  or its 
equivalent, written on an occurrence basis for bodily injury, personal injury, 
property damage and product liability, with a minimum of one million dollar 
($1,000,000) per occurrence naming the Town of Sullivan's Island as additional 
insured. 

• Has a General Liability Insurance policy listing the Town as 
additional insured been secured? Yes 	No 

b) Liquor Legal Liability Insurance: lithe Applicant intends to serve or sell 
alcoholic beverages at a Special Event, liquor legal liability coverage must be 
purchased. The liquor legal liability insurance can be endorsed in the general 
liability insurance policy or purchased separately naming the Town of Sullivan's 
Island as additional insured. The minimum limit of liability per claim and 
aggregate is one million dollars ($1,000,000). 

o Has the Liquor Legal Liability Insurance listing the Town as 
additional insured been secured? Yes 	No 

The Applicant shall submit Certificate(s) of Insurance verifying the above minimum 
coverage(s) and specifically identifying the Town of Sullivan's Island as additional 
insured. The Town of Sullivan's Island does not sell insurance. However, this type of 
insurance policy may be acquired from most private insurance carriers. 4 permit 
will not be issued if the Town has not received the reouired kr:ounce certifIcatefs)  
prior to the Special Event.  



Applicant Signatur 

19. HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE: The Applicant hereby shall assume all 
risks incident to or in connection with the Special Event Permit and shall be 
solely responsible for damage or injury, of whatever kind or nature, to 
person or property, directly or indirectly arising out of or in connection with 
the Special Event Permit. Applicant hereby expressly agrees to defend and 
hold the Town of Sullivan's Island harmless from any penalties for violation 
of law, ordinance, or regulation affecting its activity and from any and all 
claims, suits, losses, damages, judgments, or injuries directly or indirectly 
arising out of or in connection with the Special Event Permit or resulting 
from the negligence or international act or omission of applicant and/or its 
officers, agents and employees. 

Date:  itd-S1(C 

Print Applicant Name:  -r-vt 	D A- 

      

Applicant Contact Number: 

         

Property Owner's Signature: 	 

Print Property Owner's Name: 

Owner Contact Number: 

      

Date: 

 

        

        

            



FINANCE
COUNCIL WORKSHOP

February 1, 2016

Chairman Mayor Pat O'Neil
All Members of Council

All matters connected with Town finances, taxes and licenses. The Committee shall prepare and
submit an annual operating budget and capital improvement program to Council.

I. Matters for Action by Council

II. Matters for Discussion by Council

A. December Financial Report

III. New Matters Presented to Council

IV. Matters Pending By Council



Finance

Points of Interest

December 2015

Revenue

1. The Town has received close to 83% of the projected revenue for building

permits as of December 31st. Construction is also driving business license

revenue.

2. Business license revenue will increase over the next two months due to

renewals.

3. The Town will receive the majority of this fiscal year’s property tax revenue over

the next three months.

4. Water and Sewer revenue remained strong through December.

Expenditures

1. The cost of the relocation and operation of the temporary Town Hall as of

December 2015 was $402,600. The cost of the temporary Town Hall is

approximately $4,000 per month.

2. The Town paid approximately $193,400 during November as progress payments

for the new Town Hall. Transfers are being made from the 2014 GO Bond

Money Market account into the Operating account as construction payments are

made.

Other

1. The 6 month projections will be presented at the February Workshop.



CHECKING ACCOUNTS $ 8,551,619.83

MONEY MARKET - 2014 GO BOND FUNDS 2,143,248.81

SC LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL 204,589.98

INVESTMENTS 150,026.68
CASH ON HAND 600.00

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS: $ 11,050,085.30

Unassigned:

Operating $ 988,198.11

2014 GO Bond Funds 2,143,248.81

Land Sale Proceeds 3,720,635.50

Capital Improvements Reserve 414,500.00

Emergency Reserve 1,075,000.00

Assigned:

William Bradley Memorial Fund 20,000.00

Committed: -

Restricted:

County Accommodations Tax Funds - County Deputies 70,085.00

Land Trust Fund 35,118.25

Confederate Memorial Fund 451.84
Victim's Rights Fund 67,046.58

Total Cash & Investment Accounts $ 8,534,284.09

PETTY CASH:
Petty Cash $ 400.00

TOTAL GENERAL FUND $ 8,534,684.09

Operating $ 304,767.76

SRF - Debt Service Retirement 90,865.39

SRF - Debt Service Reserve Fund 22,626.84

Capital Improvement Fund Sewer 107,876.53
Sewer Depreciation Fund 36,362.88

Total Sewer Fund $ 471,634.01

December 31, 2015

Cash & Investment Balances

Finance - Page 2



Operating $ 856,345.41

Capital Improvement Fund Water 187,109.81

CWS CIP Improvements Fund 355,197.97

Water Depreciation Fund 46,167.97
Petty Cash 200.00

Total Water Fund $ 1,445,021.16

Unreserved $ 470,558.46

Total Hospitality Tax Fund - Restricted $ 470,558.46

Unreserved $ 71,197.04

Total Local Accommodations Tax Fund - $ 71,197.04

Tree Bank Fund - Committed $ 56,990.54

Total Tree Fund $ 56,990.54

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS: $ 11,050,085.30

1% Firemen's Fund - First Federal Money Market $ 211,017.70

Total 1% FIREMEN'S FUND $ 211,017.70

Finance - Page 3



Interest Interest Earned Interest Earned
Bank Rate Current Month Year-to-Date

Investment Pool 0.4859% 90.08 406.81

South State Bank 0.20% 851.22 5,434.78
Money Market

South State Bank 0.20% 260.05 1,711.56
MM - Bond

South State
Investment Services 0.01% 1.44 7.90

$ 1,202.79 $ 7,561.05

Month Ended YTD

General Fund $ 903.80 $ 5,847.32

Sewer Fund 77.56 438.16

Water Fund 156.98 883.04

Local A-Tax Funds 7.67 47.44

Hospitality Tax Fund 50.64 309.54

Tree Fund 6.14 35.55

Total Earned 1,202.79$ 7,561.05$

Investment Income
Month Ended December 31, 2015 and YTD

Interest Earned by Fund

Finance - Page 4



8K *()-%*().

<673? D7@3<A<A9 C7D57AF2

355BGAF K73D FB 63F7 43?3A57 C5F

D7@3<A<A9

5GDD7AF C7D<B62 )*'()'*()- FB )*'+)'*()-

4G697F D7CBDF 4K 8GA5F<BA

FBIA B8 EG??<H3A#E <E?3A6

-( !

4G697F76 5GDD7AF

8YTNXRUT2 +((( +(((

DOZOTYO

)(%+(((%)((( CDB5776E 8DB@ 53C<F3? ?73E7 --$(((&(( --$(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%++(( <AF7D7EF 73DA76 .$(((&(( %)/+&,-1(+&0( %+.$)/+&,-

)(%+(((%.((( CB?<57 355<67AF D7CBDFE *((&(( %0,-&((1.(&(( %,*+)$(,-&((

)(%+(((%0((( FD3AE87D 8DB@ I3F7D 8GA6 *(($(((&(( *(($(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%1)(( ?<57AE7E .0+$(((&(( -)+$./+&.1)($/0,&,/ /-).1$+*.&+)

)(%+(((%1))( 6B9 C7D@<FE /-$(((&(( -,$+00&((-$0,/&(( /+*($.)*&((

)(%+(((%1)*( 4B3F C7D@<FE (&(( %)-&(((&(( ()-&((

)(%+(((%1)+( 46& B8 LBA<A9 3CC73?E 3CC?<5 877 *$(((&(( )$+,(&((**(&(( ./..(&((

)(%+(((%1),( 67E<9A D7H<7I 4B3D6 877E ))$(((&(( )$-00&,**$++1&-0 ),1$,))&-0

)(%+(((%1)-( C?3AA<A9 5B@@<EE<BA 877E )$(((&(( /-(&(((&(( /-*-(&((

)(%+(((%1+(( 4G<?6<A9 C7D@<FE *-($(((&(( ,*$0(+&)/)0$*11&10 )/*(/$)1.&0+

)(%+(((%1+-( FD<@@<A9 " CDGA<A9 <A5B@7 )($*-(&(( .$*-(&((+$*-(&(( .),$(((&((

)(%+(((%1,(( CDBC7DFK F3J7E % BC7D3F<A9 )$1/($(((&(( )$-1/$)0*&,-+,($+0-&*) 0)+/*$0)/&--

)(%+(((%1,() CDBC7DFK F3J D7H7AG7 % 9B 4BA6+(,$/((&(( +(,$/((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%1,)( ;B@7EF736 7J7@CF D78GA6 )($(((&(( )($(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%1-)( 8<A7E 5B?? % D75BD67D -($(((&(( )*$),.&*0*$.+(&/) *,+/$0-+&/*

)(%+(((%1.(( 877 E<@C?7 F<F?7E (&(( %-(&(((&(( (-(&((

)(%+(((%1.1( 3<6 FB EG46<H<E<BAE +-$(((&(( ),$,)0&*-(&(( ,)*($-0)&/-

)(%+(((%1/)( H<5F<@E D<9;FE 8GA6 0$(((&(( 0$(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%1/-( 47H7D397 F7@C& C7D@<FE *,$(((&(( *,$(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%1/.( 8D3A5;<E7 877E % 57?? FBI7D ,-$)((&(( *-$0,+&+-+$0-)&++ -/)1$*-.&.-

)(%+(((%1/.- 8D3A5;<E7 877E % BF;7D ,+($(((&(( +1/$0.1&)+,)&.1 1++*$)+(&0/

)(%+(((%1//( EF3F7 355B@@B63F<BAE F3J *.$(((&(( %*$/.,&+-(&(( %))*0$/.,&+-

)(%+(((%1//0 FD3AE87D ?B53? 3%F3J +($(((&(( )-$(((&((*$-((&(( -()-$(((&((

)(%+(((%1//1 FD3AE87D 8DB@ ;BEC& F3J +*($(((&(( )-0$111&((*.$../&(( -().)$(()&((

)(%+(((%1/0( ?&B&E&F& CDBC&DB??435> )+($(((&(( .1$11(&+)(&(( -,.($((1&.1

)(%+(((%1/0) ?&B&E&F& D7H7AG7 8GA6 0*$(((&(( +1$*1+&/*(&(( ,0,*$/(.&*0

)(%+(((%11(( @<E57??3A7BGE <A5B@7 *(-$(((&(( )()$)/*&00,+$/+)&), ,1)(+$0*/&)*

)(%+(((%11() CDB5776E%E3?7E B8 3EE7FE ,$(((&(( ,$(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%11(+ 4D<5> E3?7E (&(( %)-(&(()-(&(( ()-(&((

8YTNXRUT2 8YTNXRUT2 +((( +(((

FUXMS DOZOTYO ,$1./$*-(&(( ,.*$-.)&1) )$+)*$0+1&)- +$.-,$,)(&0- (&((

=4?3AFBA ()')0'*(). +2()2+*C@
PS),)W)*V

CMQO ) UP *

Finance - Page 5



8I *()-%*().

<673> C7?3<@<@9 B7C57@E2

355AF@E I73C EA 63E7 43>3@57 B5E

C7?3<@<@9

5FCC7@E B7C<A62 )*'()'*()- EA )*'+)'*()-

4F697E C7BACE 4I 8F@6

EAH@ A8 DF>><G3@#D <D>3@6

-( !

4F697E76 5FCC7@E

8UPK2 )) D7H7C 8F@6

CLVLPUL

))%+(((%*((( EC3@D87C 8C& 67BC75<3E<A@ 8F@6)(*$-((&(( )(*$-((&(((&(( )(((&((

))%+(((%++(( <@E7C7DE 73C@76 )$(((&(( -)1&////&-. -*,0(&*+

))%+(((%,))( D7H7C D7CG<57 5;3C97D 00.$1.-&/- ,)-$-/.&11-/$(,0&*0 ,/,/)$+00&/.

))%+(((%,))) B7@3>E<7D -$-((&(( ,$.+(&(((&(( 0,0/(&((

))%+(((%,))* 36?<@<DEC3E<G7 355AF@E 877D )$+((&(( %/(&((*((&(( %-)$+/(&((

))%+(((%,+(( E<7%<@ 877D " <@DE3>> (&(( %/((&((/((&(( (/((&((

))%+(((%,-(( D7CG<57 53>>D -((&(( ,/(&(((&(( 1,+(&((

))%+(((%,.(( <@DB75E<A@ 877D )$-((&(( 0((&((*((&(( -+/((&((

))%+(((%,1(( ?<D57>>3@7AFD *((&(( *((&(((&(( )(((&((

))%+(((%1*(( EC3@D87C 8CA? 97@7C3> 8F@ )*-$(((&(( )*-$(((&(((&(( )(((&((

8UPK2 8UPK2 )) D7H7C 8F@6

EQTJO CLVLPUL )$)*,$,.-&/- -0$**-&0, ,/-$-+0&11 .,0$1*.&/. (&((

=4>3@EA@ ()')0'*(). +2((2+.B?
MO),)S)*R

BJNL ) QM +

Finance - Page 6



8J *()-%*().

<673? D7@3<A<A9 C7D57AF2

355BGAF J73D FB 63F7 43?3A57 C5F

D7@3<A<A9

5GDD7AF C7D<B62 )*'()'*()- FB )*'+)'*()-

4G697F D7CBDF 4J 8GA6

FBIA B8 EG??<H3A#E <E?3A6

-( !

4G697F76 5GDD7AF

8VQL2 )* I3F7D 8GA6

DMWMQVM

)*%+(((%*((( FD3AE87D 8D& 67CD75<3F<BA 8GA6)*($(((&(( )*($(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)*%+(((%++(( <AF7D7EF 73DA76 *$(((&(( )$)).&1.)-.&10 -.00+&(,

)*%+(((%,))( I3F7D E3?7E 11*$,-,&+( ,,/$0))&((.($*(-&,/ ,--,,$.,+&+(

)*%+(((%,))) C7A3?F<7E -$-((&(( )$.*,&0.)$*+(&(( +(+$0/-&),

)*%+(((%,))* 36@<A<EFD3F<H7 355BGAF 877E 0$(((&(( +$.0-&(0.(1&1* ,.,$+),&1*

)*%+(((%,)), ;J6D3AF @7F7D C7D@<FE *((&(( %-(&(((&(( %*-*-(&((

)*%+(((%,+(( @7F7D 5BAA75F " D7A7I3?E /$(((&(( %)/$-(1&(((&(( %*-(*,$-(1&((

)*%+(((%,,(( @7F7D D7C3<DE -((&(( -((&(((&(( )(((&((

)*%+(((%,-(( E7DH<57 53??E -((&(( +*(&(((&(( .,)0(&((

)*%+(((%,.(( <AEC75F<BA 877E *-(&(( *-(&(((&(( )(((&((

)*%+(((%,.)( 435>8?BI F7EF<A9 /((&(( ),(&((,(&(( *(-.(&((

)*%+(((%,1(( @<E57??3A7BGE )((&(( %)0$-+(&(((&(( %)0$-+()0$.+(&((

8VQL2 8VQL2 )* I3F7D 8GA6

FRUKP DMWMQVM )$)+/$*(,&+( .*$*,*&+/ -1/$0,-&,( -+1$+-0&1( (&((

=4?3AFBA ()')0'*(). +2((2+.C@
NP),)T)*S

CKOM * RN +

Finance - Page 7



7I )'(,$)'(-

;562= B6>2;?;?8 A6B46?D1

244@E?D I62B D@ 52D6 32=2?46 A4D

B6>2;?;?8

4EBB6?D A6B;@51 ()&'(&)'(, D@ ()&*(&)'(,

3E586D B6A@BD 3I 7E?5

D@G? @7 CE==;F2?"C ;C=2?5

,' !

3E586D65 4EBB6?D

7UPK1 (* 9@CA;D2=;DI D2H

BLVLPUL

(*$*'''$**'' ;?D6B6CD 62B?65 '%'' $*'0%,+,'%-+ '*'0%,+

(*$*'''$0..0 9@CA;D2=;DI D2H '%'' $))/#+/-%/-)+#'.+%0+ '))/#+/-%/-

7UPK1 7UPK1 (* 9@CA;D2=;DI D2H

DQTJO BLVLPUL '%'' )+#(),%,/ ))/#.0-%+' $))/#.0-%+' '%''

7UPK1 (. =@42= 2$D2H

BLVLPUL

(.$*'''$**'' ;?D6B6CD 62B?65 '%'' $+.%++.%-. '+.%++

(.$*'''$0... )! 4@E?DI 2$D2H '%'' $,#/-)%/.'%'' ',#/-)%/.

(.$*'''$0../ (! =@42= 2$D2H '%'' $(,#+0'%'-(#(+)%(. '(,#+0'%'-

7UPK1 7UPK1 (. =@42= 2$D2H

DQTJO BLVLPUL '%'' (#(+0%/+ )(#+''%*. $)(#+''%*. '%''

7UPK1 (0 DB66 7E?5

BLVLPUL

(0$*'''$**'' DB66 7E?5 ;?D6B6CD '%'' $*,%,,-%(+ '*,%,,

(0$*'''$0*(' DB66 A6B>;DC '%'' $)#-*/%'')#(),%'' ')#-*/%''

7UPK1 7UPK1 (0 DB66 7E?5

DQTJO BLVLPUL '%'' )#(*(%(+ )#-.*%,, $)#-.*%,, '%''

!$(')* "'*#% !$,$&+$ '%'' ).#+'-%,- ),)#/.'%*) '%'' $),)#/.'%*) '%''

<3=2?D@? '(&(/&)'(- *1'-1)'A>
MO(+(S()R

AJNL ( QM (

Finance - Page 8



;M +)*.&+)*/

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH3

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C83 *+()*(+)*. HC *+(,*(+)*.

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB7H>CB
HCKB C; GI@@>J5B$G >G@5B8

.) "

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;[VOZTWV3 .))) ;>F9 89D5FHA9BH

9\XQVPTZ[YQ

*)&.)))&)*)) G5@5F>9G # K5<9G .1)%)))')) +/0%0,)'0.-0%-21'10 -/,*+%+/2'+.

*)&.)))&)+)) ;8 DFH GC7>5@ G97IF>HM -,%)))')) +)%,.2'/-,%,0,'+/ -0++%/-)',/

*)&.)))&)+*) ;8 DFH =95@H= >BGIF5B79 2)%)))')) -1%,2)'.00%,12'2. .--*%/)2'-,

*)&.)))&)++) ;8 DFH DC@ C;; F9H>F9A9BH 1+%)))')) ,2%0+.'0)/%.+/',/ -1-+%+0-',)

*)&.)))&),)) ;8 <5G # C>@ *+%)))')) 0%2*0',0,0.'/+ //-%)1+'/,

*)&.)))&),*) ;8 8>9G9@ /%.))')) -%0.,'01*-,'.. 0,*%0-/'++

*)&.)))&)-)) ;8 J9=>7@9 F9D5>FG +)%)))')) *)%1+,',*02)')/ .-2%*0/'/2

*)&.)))&)/)) ;8 GIDD@>9G # A5H9F>5@G +)%)))')) 0%-),'*-+%)2,')1 ,0*+%.2/'1/

*)&.)))&)0)) ;8 H9@9D=CB9 *)%)))')) 0%)./'.-110'1/ 0*+%2-,'-/

*)&.)))&)1)) 7C' K>89 F58>C GMGH9A *1%)))')) *%-1+'***%-/2',2 1*/%.*0'12

*)&.)))&)2)) ;8 DCK9F # @><=HG **%)))')) .%0/0'1,00,'/1 .+.%+,+'*0

*)&.)))&*))) ;8 >BGIF5B79 ..%)))')) +/%+).'*+/%**1'), -1+1%02-'11

*)&.)))&*+)) ;8 GMGH9A F9D5>FG # A5>BH **%)))')) /%+*0',-+2')) .0-%01+'//

*)&.)))&*+), IB>;CFAG # 7@CH=>B< *)%)))')) +%1.+'+10%*-0'0+ +20%*-0'0+

*)&.)))&*,)) ;8 8I9G # 79FH>; ;99G *%)))')) 2))')))')) 2)*))'))

*)&.)))&*-)) ;8 HF5>B>B< # G9A>B5FG 2%.))')) ,%/*/'.-*%++)'-) ,1.%11,'-/

*)&.)))&,))) ;8 A>G79@@5B9CIG 9LD9BG9 1%.))')) 0%+)+'.+)')) 1.*%+20'-1

*)&.)))&,*)* ;8 & 896H ;IB898 9EI>DA9BH ,)%)))')) &*1%)*/')))')) &/)-1%)*/'))

*)&.)))&,*)+ ;8&75D>H5@ @95G9 DF>B7>D5@ -.%0-.')) *.%***'+-)')) ,,,)%/,,'0/

*)&.)))&,**) DFCD # 9EI>D 4 !.))) 0%.))')) ,%1.0'+,)')) .*,%/-+'00

*)&.)))&,*+) ;8 6I>@8>B< F9D5>FG *)%)))')) 2%,..')))')) 2-/-.'))

*)&.)))&,+)) ;8 8>GD5H7=>B< G9FJ>79G ++%.))')) **%.)1'))*%1,+')) .**)%22+'))

;[VOZTWV3 ;[VOZTWV3 .))) ;>F9 89D5FHA9BH

HWZNU 9\XQVPTZ[YQ *%*),%+-.')) 10%//1'1, /*,%)+-'22 -2)%++)')* )'))

?6@5BHCB )*(*1(+)*/ ,3),3+)DA
RU*-*Y*+X

DNSQ * WR 0

Finance - Page 9



;M +)*.&+)*/

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH3

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C83 *+()*(+)*. HC *+(,*(+)*.

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB7H>CB
HCKB C; GI@@>J5B$G >G@5B8

.) "

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;[VOZTWV3 /))) DC@>79 89D5FHA9BH

9\XQVPTZ[YQ

*)&/)))&)*)) D8 G5@5F>9G # K5<9G -2.%)))')) +.,%./.'0+,-%1,+'** .*+-*%-,-'+1

*)&/)))&)+)) D8 DFH GC7>5@ G97IF>HM ,0%)))')) *2%/)1'**+%-2.'+0 .,*0%,2*'12

*)&/)))&)+*) D8 DFH =95@H= >BG 0,%)))')) ,0%2*-'0/.%/.1'11 .+,.%)1.'+-

*)&/)))&)++) D8 DFH DC@ C;; F9H>F9 //%)))')) ,-%*,+'22-%/2)'2) .+,*%1/0')*

*)&/)))&)+.) 7CIBHM G=9F>;; 89DIH>9G -)%)))')) +0%10.')))')) 0)*+%*+.'))

*)&/)))&),)) D8 <5G # C>@ ,.%)))')) +,%/-2'0)*%--+'** /1**%,.)',)

*)&/)))&),+) D8 8>9G9@ ;I9@ *%+))')) *%**-'-))')) 2,1.'/)

*)&/)))&)-)) D8 J9=>7@9 F9D5>F # A5>BH *+%)))')) ,%.12'.0,%,*.'+, ,)1%-*)'-,

*)&/)))&)/)) D8 GIDD@>9G # A5H9F>5@G *+%)))')) 2%*,0'.-/2,'1/ 0/+%1/+'-/

*)&/)))&)0)) D8 H9@9D=CB9 2%.))')) .%/0/')1*%)-/')* /),%1+,'2+

*)&/)))&)1)) 7C' K>89 F58>C GMGH9A */%0))')) -%/.2'+.)')) +1*+%)-)'0.

*)&/)))&)2)) D8 DCK9F # @><=HG -%+))')) +%+1*'10+.2'). .-*%2*1'*,

*)&/)))&*))) D8 >BGIF5B79 --%)))')) +)%./.'+++%*+0'*, -0+,%-,-'01

*)&/)))&*+)) D8 GMGH9A F9D5>F # A5>BH 1%)))')) /%,.*'/2+*')) 02*%/-1',*

*)&/)))&*+), IB>;CFAG # 7@CH=>B< 1%)))')) .%*1-'1)*%/*.'.0 /.+%1*.'+)

*)&/)))&*,)) D8 8I9G # 79FH>; ;99G .))')) -11'))*+')) 21*+'))

*)&/)))&*-)) D8 HF5>B>B< # G9A>B5FG /%)))')) .%.))',0)')) 2+-22'/,

*)&/)))&,))) D8 A>G79@@5B9CIG 9LD9BG9G *%)))')) *%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&/)))&,*)+ D8&75D>H5@ @95G9 DF>B7>D5@ ..%,1+')) &0-)')-)')) &*./%*++')-

*)&/)))&,**) DFCD # 9EI>D 4 !.))) 0%)))')) 0%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&/)))&,+)) D8 8>GD5H7=>B< G9FJ>79G ++%.))')) **%.)1'))*%1,+')) .**)%22+'))

;[VOZTWV3 ;[VOZTWV3 /))) DC@>79 89D5FHA9BH

HWZNU 9\XQVPTZ[YQ 2.,%21+')) /)%)-*'*+ -0,%2*1'20 -1)%)/,'), .)'))

?6@5BHCB )*(*1(+)*/ ,3),3+)DA
RU*-*Y*+X

DNSQ + WR 0

Finance - Page 10



;M +)*.&+)*/

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH3

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C83 *+()*(+)*. HC *+(,*(+)*.

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB7H>CB
HCKB C; GI@@>J5B$G >G@5B8

.) "

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;\WP[UXW3 0))) A5>BH9B5B79

9]YRWQU[\ZR

*)&0)))&)*)) A8 G5@5F>9G # K5<9G *0+%)))')) *)*%,*+'*-*)%-2.'/. .20)%/10'1/

*)&0)))&)+)) A8 DFH GC7>5@ G97IF>HM *,%)))')) 0%0,2'2,001'-1 /).%+/)')0

*)&0)))&)+*) A8 DFH =95@H= >BGIF5B79 +.%)))')) */%2.*'/)*%,-*'-) /11%)-1'-)

*)&0)))&)++) A8 DFH G' 7' F9H>F9A9BH *.%)))')) 0%1**',.*%)21'12 .+0%*11'/.

*)&0)))&),)) A8 J9=>7@9 <5G # C>@ *+%)))')) 1%+1.'....0',+ /2,%0*-'-.

*)&0)))&),*) A8 8>9G9@ ;I9@ ,%.))')) +%//2'2)2/',2 0/1,)'*)

*)&0)))&)-)) A8 J9=>7@9 F9D5>FG 0%.))')) 0%.))')))')) *)))'))

*)&0)))&)/)) A8 GIDD@>9G # A5H9F>5@G +)%)))')) **%-+-',0*%),+'1) .01%.0.'/,

*)&0)))&)0)) H9@9D=CB9 //)')) ,,)'))..')) .),,)'))

*)&0)))&)2)) A8 DCK9F # 9@97HF>7>HM -)%)))')) +*%*)0'.0,%*.,',- .,*1%12+'-,

*)&0)))&*))) A8 >BGIF5B79 *1%)))')) *)%2+.'-+.1,'-, /*0%)0-'.1

*)&0)))&*+)) A8 GMGH9AG F9D5>FG # A5>B *.%)))')) .%-*,'*1&*%),+'1) ,/2%.1/'1+

*)&0)))&*+), IB>;CFAG # 7@CH=>B< ,%)))')) *%1,)'-/1-2'-2 /**%*/2'.-

*)&0)))&,))) A8 A>G79@@5B9CIG 9LD9BG9G *%)))')) *%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&0)))&,*)) A8 DFCD # 9EI>D DIF7=5G9 )')) &2%2.)')))')) )2%2.)'))

*)&0)))&,*)* A8&896H ;IB898 9EI>DA9BH +.%)))')) +.%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&0)))&,*)+ A8&75D>H5@ @95G9 DF>B7>D5@ 0%2*0')) )'0*)')) )0%2*/'+2

*)&0)))&,-)) A8 <5F65<9 8>GDCG5@ 7CBHF *20%)))')) ***%1-)'+)+1%*1/'/) .01.%*.2'1)

*)&0)))&,.)) 75IG9K5M A5>BH9B5B79 +%)))')) ,+2',-*%/0)'// */*%/0)'//

*)&0)))&,/)) 7CBH5>B9F G9FJ>7>B< **%)))')) 2%1*.')))')) 12*%*1.'))

*)&0)))&,0)) 6957= D5H= A5>BH9B5B79 .)%)))')) -+%1+/'-)/%)))')) 1/0%*0,'/)

;\WP[UXW3 ;\WP[UXW3 0))) A5>BH9B5B79

HX[OV 9]YRWQU[\ZR /,1%.00')) .-%1//'/. +.-%-*,'11 ,1-%*/,'*+ /)'))

?6@5BHCB )*(*1(+)*/ ,3),3+)DA
SV*-*Z*+Y

DOTR , XS 0

Finance - Page 11



;M +)*.&+)*/

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH3

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C83 *+()*(+)*. HC *+(,*(+)*.

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB7H>CB
HCKB C; GI@@>J5B$G >G@5B8

.) "

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;\WP[UXW3 1))) F97F95H>CB

9]YRWQU[\ZR

*)&1)))&)2)) F8 DCK9F # @><=HG 0%.))')) +%0.,'+/2/.'1- ,0-%0-/'0-

*)&1)))&*))) F8 >BGIF5B79 -%,))')) *%2+-'1-,2.'1/ -.+%,0.'*/

*)&1)))&*,)) F8 F97F95H>CB 5F95 A5>BH *.%)))')) 1%)/*'.1)')) .-/%2,1'-+

*)&1)))&*-)) GD97>5@ 9J9BHG +.%)))')) *1%*1-'+1.))',2 0,/%1*.'0+

*)&1)))&,*)) F8 DFCD9FHM # 9EI>D DIF7= *+)%)))')) -/%01,'-.)')) ,20,%+*/'..

;\WP[UXW3 ;\WP[UXW3 1))) F97F95H>CB

HX[OV 9]YRWQU[\ZR *0*%1))')) *%1/+')2 2-%)2+'.2 00%0)0'-* )'))

?6@5BHCB )*(*1(+)*/ ,3),3+)DA
SV*-*Z*+Y

DOTR - XS 0

Finance - Page 12



;M +)*.&+)*/

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH3

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C83 *+()*(+)*. HC *+(,*(+)*.

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB7H>CB
HCKB C; GI@@>J5B$G >G@5B8

.) "

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;\WP[UXW3 2))) 58A>B

9]YRWQU[\ZR

*)&2)))&)*)) 58 G5@5F>9G # K5<9G -+*%)))')) +)2%-1/'20,*%,,-')) .)+**%.*,'),

*)&2)))&)+)) 58 DFH GC7>5@ G97IF>HM ,,%)))')) */%,)-'--+%+*0'2* -2*/%/2.'./

*)&2)))&)+*) 58 DFH =95@H= >BGIF5B79 -0%)))')) *-%,.-'+-.%.-0')) ,*,+%/-.'0/

*)&2)))&)++) 58 DFH G' 7' F9H>F9A9BH -0%)))')) ++%**0',1,%0/0'0- -0+-%11+'/+

*)&2)))&)/)) 58 C;;>79 GIDD@>9G +-%)))')) 2%--+'*2+%-//'1* ,2*-%..0'1*

*)&2)))&)/*) 58 HF5J9@ & F97CF89F 0))')) 0))')))')) *)))'))

*)&2)))&)/+) 58 GIDD@>9G & F97CF89F *%)))')) *%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&2)))&)0)) 58 H9@9D=CB9 *0%)))')) 0%*-.',0+%+).',/ -+2%1.-'/,

*)&2)))&)2)) 58 DCK9F # @><=HG 2%)))')) -%*10'.20/.'.. -0-%1*+'-*

*)&2)))&*))) 58 >BGIF5B79 //%)))')) +*%.20',)/%-,-'/+ ,,--%-)+'0)

*)&2)))&*+)) 58 GMGH9AG F9D5>F # A5>BH -)%)))')) .%)*0'*-&0)/'*- *,,-%21+'1/

*)&2)))&*,)) 58 8I9G # 79FH>; ;99G -%.))')) +%)/)'),)')) -/+%-,2'20

*)&2)))&*-)) 58 HF5>B>B< # G9A>B5FG /%)))')) *%21/'1.-1',) ,,-%)*,'*.

*)&2)))&*1)) 58 DFC;9GG>CB5@ G9FJ>79G 2)%)))')) 0,%*..'-2+%*+)'-/ 1**/%1--'.*

*)&2)))&*1-) D@5BB>B< 9LD9BG9 *%)))')) *%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&2)))&*10) 7CIB7>@ 9LD9BG9G /%)))')) .%1-)'+,,.')) 20*.2'00

*)&2)))&*11) <9B9F5@ 58J9FH>G>B< 9LD9BG9G *)%)))')) -%.1+'/1+%*.0'1) -/.%-*0',+

*)&2)))&*2)) 58 @9<5@ # 577CIBH>B< *))%)))')) +.%*,)'0-*)%)--')2 +.0-%1/2'+/

*)&2)))&*2*) 577F9H98 @5B8 & @5KGI>H 9LD9BG9G0)%)))')) &*)%*1-'/+)')) &*.1)%*1-'/+

*)&2)))&*2+) 577F9H98 @5B8 A5B5<9A9BH )')) &*%/)1'-2)')) )*%/)1'-2

*)&2)))&,))) 58 A>G79@@5B9CIG 9LD9BG9G +)%)))')) .%11,'02.%..-')* +2*-%**/'+*

*)&2)))&,*). 75D>H5@ DFC?97H )')) &1.+%/*1'***2,%-),'*/ )1.+%/*1'**

*)&2)))&,**) DFCD # 9EI>D 4 !.))) 0%)))')) &-%*,1'.,,%/-.'.1 &.2**%*,1'.,

*)&2)))&,*+) 6I>@8>B< F9D5FG # A5>BH' )')) )'))&-*)')) ))'))

*)&2)))&,*,) HCKB =5@@ F9@C75H>CB 9LD9BG9G.)%)))')) +/%*.2'/,*%,)-'1+ .++,%1-)',0

*)&2)))&-))) J>7H>AG F><=HG ;IB8 1%)))')) 1%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&2)))&.))) K5H9F 6CB8 F9D5MA9BH +))%)))')) *)%*,0'+.)')) .*12%1/+'0.

*)&2)))&/))) +)*- <C 6CB8 896H G9FJ>79 -+1%1))')) ,2*%)1)')))')) 2*,0%0+)'))

*)&2)))&2))) ;IB8 65@5B79 F9D@9B>G=A9BH 1)%.-/')) 1)%.-/')))')) *)))'))

;\WP[UXW3 ;\WP[UXW3 2))) 58A>B

HX[OV 9]YRWQU[\ZR *%010%.-/')) +0*%2,/')0 *%0)2%*1)'-- 01%,/.'./ )'))

?6@5BHCB )*(*1(+)*/ ,3),3+)DA
SV*-*Z*+Y

DOTR . XS 0

Finance - Page 13



;M +)*.&+)*/

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH3

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C83 *+()*(+)*. HC *+(,*(+)*.

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB7H>CB
HCKB C; GI@@>J5B$G >G@5B8

.) "

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;\WP[UXW3 2.)) 6I>@8>B<

9]YRWQU[\ZR

*)&2.))&)*)) 68 G5@5F>9G # K5<9G +)+%)))')) *)*%,-,'0+*-%1,1'-) .)*))%/./'+1

*)&2.))&)+)) 68 DFH GC7>5@ G97IF>HM */%)))')) 1%.0,'),*%)12'.2 .-0%-+/'20

*)&2.))&)+*) 68 DFH =95@H= >BGIF5B79 +.%)))')) *-%*/-',/*%1).'2- .0*)%1,.'/-

*)&2.))&)++) 68 DFH G'7' F9H>F9A9BH +.%)))')) *,%)/.'//*%1)*'2) .+**%2,-',-

*)&2.))&),)) 68 <5G # C>@ +%/))')) +%,,2'/1)')) 2)+/)',+

*)&2.))&)/)) 68 C;;>79 GIDD@>9G ,%)))')) *%++1'*2*%/,+')) -**%00*'1*

*)&2.))&)/,) 68 GIDD@>9G 6@8< >BGD97H +%)))')) +%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&2.))&)0)) 68 H9@9D=CB9 -%)))')) +%/0*'**+1.'*. /0*%,+1'12

*)&2.))&)2)) 68 DCK9F # @><=HG *%)))')) 0+2'/)-*'1* 0,+0)'-)

*)&2.))&*))) 68 >BGIF5B79 *%)))')) /02',).,'-. /1,+)'0)

*)&2.))&*+)) 68 GMGH9AG F9D5>FG # A5>BH ,%)))')) 0*+'))+%+11')) +-+%+11'))

*)&2.))&*,)) 68 8I9G # 79FH>; ;99G +%)))')) *%0+)'))*-)')) 1/+1)'))

*)&2.))&*-)) 68 HF5>B>B< # G9A>B5FG ,%)))')) +%1*)'))0)')) 2-*2)'))

*)&2.))&*1+) 6N5 9LD9BG9G +%)))')) 0*.'..*+,'/) ,/*%+1-'-.

*)&2.))&*1,) 8F6 9LD9BG9G .%)))')) *%/2.',10.1'2+ ,-,%,)-'/+

*)&2.))&*1.) HF99 7CAA>GG>CB *%.))')) *%-1+'.))')) 22*0'.)

*)&2.))&+.)) HF>AA>B< # DFIB>B< 9LD' 2%)))')) /%-))'))+%/))')) 0*+%/))'))

*)&2.))&,))) 68 A>G79@@5B9CIG )')) &1+'..)')) )1+'..

*)&2.))&,**) DFCD # 9EI>D 4 !.))) .%)))')) .%)))')))')) *)))'))

;\WP[UXW3 ;\WP[UXW3 2.)) 6I>@8>B<

HX[OV 9]YRWQU[\ZR ,*+%*))')) +0%.+1'0/ *--%1.+'-0 */0%+-0'., .-'))

?6@5BHCB )*(*1(+)*/ ,3),3+)DA
SV*-*Z*+Y

DOTR / XS 0

Finance - Page 14



;M ,*+/',*+0

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH4

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C84 +,)*+),*+/ HC +,)-+),*+/

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB8

HCKB C; GI@@>J5B#G >G@5B8

/* !

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;ZUO4 ++ G9K9F ;IB8

9[WPUOSYZXP

++'.***'*+** G5@5F>9G " K5<9G +1.&,2,(/. 3*&1-+(3,+,&1/+(+3 /,2-&//*(0,

++'.***'*,** DFH ' GC7>5@ G97IF>HM +-&--,(0, 1&.+.(*-222(*, /0/&3+2(/3

++'.***'*,+* DFH ' =95@H= >BGIF5B79 ,2&-02(0- +0&*./(.-,&0.0(-, /1+,&-,-(,*

++'.***'*,,* DFH ' G 7 F9H>F9A9BH +2&.+,(/- 3&-.,(.0+&.**(-* /+3&*1*(*1

++'.***'*-** <5G " C>@ ' J9=>7@9G 1&***(** .&231(11*(** 1*,&+*,(,-

++'.***'*-+* 8>9G9@ ;I9@ -&-**(** +&-1-(..*(** .,+&3,0(/0

++'.***'*-,* 8>9G9@ 9EI>DA9BH /&***(** .03(02,&-+2(,3 3.&/-*(-,

++'.***'*.** F9D5>FG ' J9=>7@9G /&***(** .&3.1(.3,-(2* 33/,(/+

++'.***'*0** GIDD@>9G " A5H9F>5@G +*&***(** ,&+01(1/+&1/2(-. ,,1&2-,(,/

++'.***'*0+* HCC@G ,&***(** +&23*(*/*(** 3/+*3(3/

++'.***'*0,* C;;>79 GIDD@>9G 2&1**(** 0&.-/(1*10(2* 1.,&,0.(-*

++'.***'*0-* @56 GIDD@>9G -&1**(** '+&//-(+.1-1(,/ '.,/&,/-(+.

++'.***'*1** H9@9D=CB9 /&0**(** ,&23-(/30/,(.* /,,&1*0(.+

++'.***'*3** DCK9F " 9@97HF>7>HM /2&***(** ,/&.33(,+/&.01(0* ..-,&/**(13

++'.***'+*** >BGIF5B79 +3&***(** 2&10.(,.+&,++(,. .0+*&,-/(10

++'.***'+,** GMGH9AG F9D5>FG " A5>BH 0*&***(** .+&.--(+*.&*30(00 03+2&/00(3*

++'.***'+,*+ G@I8<9 8>GDCG5@ /*&***(** ,3&*2-(*,-03(2/ /2,*&3+0(32

++'.***'+,*, <F>H 8>GDCG5@ +&.**(** 10-(,3,-.(,0 //0-0(1+

++'.***'+,*- IB>;CFAG " 7@CH=>B< +&/**(** 1//(-/-++(.- /*1..(0/

++'.***'+,+* 75D>H5@ >ADFCJ9A9BHG -1.&/**(** ,3*&3*/(0+.&.//(0/ 122-&/3.(-3

++'.***'+-** 8I9G " 79FH>;>75H>CB 2&***(** .&10/(/*-31(/* 0*-&,-.(/*

++'.***'+.** HF5>B>B< " G9A>B5FG /&***(** .&01+(/*,1/(., 3--,2(/*

++'.***'+3** DFC; G9FJ>79G ' 5I8>H /&***(** *(***(** */&***(**

++'.***',*** DFC;9GG>CB5@ ' 9B<>B99FB< +/&***(** 2&112(//+&+.1(*2 /30&,,+(./

++'.***'-*** A>G79@@5B9CIG +&+,.(2, 1*1(*3*(** 0-.+1(1-

++'.***'-+** DFCD " 9EI>DA9BH DIF7=5G9 -+&***(** ,1&+0+(+-*(** 22-&2-2(21

++'.***'-/** 58A>B C; G9K9F 6CB8 1,&***(** 00&1+.(,..&+**(/+ 3-/&,2/(10

++'.***'-/+* @95G9 D5MA9BHG ,3&/02(32 1&122(/1*(** ,0,+&12*(.+

++'.***'-0** K5GH9K5H9F 5B5@ ' @56 GJ7 3&***(** ,&1*0(01+&**/(** -*0&,3-(--

++'.***'-1** 7=9A>75@G ++&***(** ,&.30(,/,/0(-- ,-2&/*-(1/

++'.***'.*** GF; ' G9K9F @>B9 F9=56 *(** ',2.&*2/(31*(** *,2.&*2/(31

++'3***'*+** 58A>B G5@5F>9G .,&*3/(+* +2&+2.(3/-&1*.(1, .-,-&3+*(+/

++'3***'*,** DFH ' GC7>5@ G97IF>HM -&,,*(,2 +&.30(+/,**(*2 .0+&1,.(+-

++'3***'*,+* DFH ' =95@H= >BGIF5B79 -&11+(22 +&13-(+0-,3(13 .2+&312(1,

++'3***'*,,* DFH ' G 7 F9H>F9A9BH .&/22(-1 +&3.-(30.*3(1- .,,&0..(.+

++'3***'3*** F9J9BI9 CJ9F)$IB89F% 9LD9BG9G -/&***(** -/&***(***(** +***(**

;ZUO4 ;ZUO4 ++ G9K9F ;IB8

HVYNT 9[WPUOSYZXP +&+,.&.0/(1/ /+&,,/(/0 02*&*2.(*+ ...&-2+(1. *(**

?6@5BHCB *+)+2),*+0 ,4/34,2DA
QT+.+X+,W

DNRP + VQ -

Finance - Page 15



;M ,*+/',*+0

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH4

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C84 +,)*+),*+/ HC +,)-+),*+/

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB8

HCKB C; GI@@>J5B#G >G@5B8

/* !

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;ZUO4 +, K5H9F ;IB8

9[WPUOSYZXP

+,'.***'*+** G5@5F>9G 5B8 K5<9G +1.&,2,(/. 3+&3+,(+0+,&1+3(/, /-2,&-1*(-2

+,'.***'*,** DFH ' GC7>5@ G97IF>HM +-&--,(0, 1&/*.(*-22/(22 /0/&2,2(/3

+,'.***'*,+* DFH ' =95@H= >BGIF5B79 ,2&-02(0- +0&*./(.-,&0.0(-, /1+,&-,-(,*

+,'.***'*,,* DFH ' G 7 F9H>F9A9BH +2&.+,(/- 3&.1,(32+&-30(2* /+2&3-3(//

+,'.***'*-** <5G " C>@ ' J9=>7@9G 1&***(** .&0.3(,3,.2(./ 00,&-/*(1+

+,'.***'*-+* 8>9G9@ ' J9=>7@9G -&-**(** -&-**(***(** +***(**

+,'.***'*-,* 8>9G9@ 9EI>D( F9D5>FG " A5>BH( ,&***(** '+/,(21,03(-/ '2,&+/,(21

+,'.***'*.** F9D5>FG ' J9=>7@9G /&***(** .&3+-(.3,-(2* 3220(/+

+,'.***'*0** GIDD@>9G " A5H9F>5@G +*&***(** ,&-*+(-.+&-.*(11 ,-1&032(00

+,'.***'*0+* HCC@G +&/**(** '++,(1**(** '2+&0+,(1*

+,'.***'*0,* C;;>79 GIDD@>9G 2&1**(** 0&+,.(/,,..(02 1*,&/1/(.2

+,'.***'*0-* @56 GIDD@>9G ,&,**(** +&**/(1-,0.(03 .0+&+3.(,1

+,'.***'*1** H9@9D=CB9 /&0**(** ,&23-(/00/,(.* /,,&1*0(..

+,'.***'*3** DCK9F " 9@97HF>7>HM -&/**(** +&100(31,22(2/ /*+&1--(*-

+,'.***'+*** >BGIF5B79 +1&***(** 2&*2.(*/33+(,1 .22&3+/(3/

+,'.***'+,** GMGH9AG F9D5>FG " A5>B( -2&***(** +3&+*3(3*/*(/* /*+2&23*(+*

+,'.***'+,*- IB>;CFAG " 7@CH=>B< +&/**(** +&**-(130-(** 01.30(,+

+,'.***'+,+* 75D>H5@ >ADFCJ9A9BHG +2,&/**(** +/1&-/,(1-,/0(-. 20,/&+.1(,1

+,'.***'+-** 8I9G " 79FH>;>75H>CB 3&***(** -&-22(/*1/1(/* -2/&0++(/*

+,'.***'+.** HF5>B>B< " G9A>B5FG .&/**(** -&.0,(3,-*3(** 11+&*-1(*2

+,'.***'+3** DFC;9GG>CB5@ G9F(' 5I8>H /&***(** *(***(** */&***(**

+,'.***',*** DFC;9GG>CB5@'9B<>B99F>B< -/&***(** ,0&103(*/+&+.1(*2 102&,-*(3/

+,'.***'-*** A>G79@@5B9CIG +&/0.(-/ +&+2*(0**(** 1/-2-(1/

+,'.***'-+** DFCD " 9EI>DA9BH DIF7=5G9 ++&***(** 1&0/3(/,*(** 1*-&-.*(.2

+,'.***'-/** HF5BG;9F HC <; ' 6CB8 DAH( +32&/**(** +32&/**(***(** +***(**

+,'.***'-/+* @95G9 D5MA9BHG ,3&/02(** 1&121(/2*(** ,0,+&12*(.,

+,'.***'-0** K5H9F 5B5@MG>G +&,**(** +&,**(***(** +***(**

+,'.***'-1** 7=9A>75@G 2&***(** /&02,(*2*(** 1+,&-+1(3,

+,'.***'-3** =,C D5MA9BH CD9F5H>CB +,-&***(** .2&1./(3,+2&*0/(3, .*1.&,/.(*2

+,'.***'.*** 7DK >ADFCJ9A9BHG 1-&***(** 1-&***(***(** +***(**

+,'3***'*+** 58A>B>GHF5H>CB G5@5F>9G .,&*3/(+* +2&+2.(3/-&1*.(03 .-,-&3+*(+/

+,'3***'*,** DFH'GC7>5@ G97IF>HM -&,,*(,2 +&.30(,*,**(*2 .0+&1,.(*2

+,'3***'*,+* DFH ' =95@H= >BGIF5B79 -&11+(22 +&13-(+2-,3(12 .2+&312(1*

+,'3***'*,,* DFH ' G7 F9H>F9A9BH .&/22(-1 +&3.-(21.*3(1, .,,&0..(/*

+,'3***'3*** F9J9BI9 CJ9F)$IB89F% 9LD9BG9G 0,&***(** 0,&***(***(** +***(**

;ZUO4 ;ZUO4 +, K5H9F ;IB8

HVYNT 9[WPUOSYZXP +&+-1&,*.(-* .1&,00(-3 --1&,-/(/- 133&302(11 *(**

?6@5BHCB *+)+2),*+0 ,4/34,2DA
QT+.+X+,W

DNRP , VQ -

Finance - Page 16



>QNRFSILG BLE 0NDHIPFDPQNBJ 1MOPO

7AFD;I " 3KJJFE 2E@BE>>HBE@ $ 6KHL>M F? 0H>; *#..)%('!

7>HH;<FE 1FEIKCJ;EJI# 4E<% ',#-&&%+&

856 1FHGFH;JBFE ',#&,.%-.

3BCC 1FEIJHK<JBFE '(#+(/%.*

1H>><A " 0IIF<B;J>I *&.#,-.%&&

?MPBJ 3LGILFFNILG " 0NDHIPFDPQNBJ 1MOPO *+.#.,&%))!

1MLOPNQDPIML " ;PHFN 1MOPO

3BCC 1FEIJHK<JBFE -/.#/)(%()

2;=B>I 1FEIJHK<JBFE 1F# 4E< '()#,&.%&&

1A;E=C>H 1FEIJH% 6>HLB<>I )#-&&%&&

6>;DFE 9ABJ>IB=> " 0IIF<B;J>I (#+&'%/.

?MPBJ 1MLOPNQDPIML 1MOPO /(.#-*(%('!

?;?08 ?;A9 5088 1;9>?=@1?6;9 <=;731? ! '#).-#,&(%+*

?;A9 5088 1;9>?=@1?6;9 <=;731?

2FDFKCFN )'# (&'+

4ILBLDF $ <BGF '-



6>HA 9KBJ>K>MDIH >HA =K>DFBK <BM$NJ 4PJBHLBL0 ').#./(%.'!

<BOBK =>HE 4PJBHLBL0 -'#&)*%(.

=K>DFBK 6B>LB '((#/-)%.*

2IHLNFM>HML (,#),'%&&

7DL@BFF>HBINL 4PJBHLBL0 *)#)*'%.'

*&(#,&)%-*!

=IOH 5>FF 4PJBHLBL $ ;BFI@>MDIH " 8JBK>MDIH

1L IC 3B@BG?BK )'# (&'+

Finance - Page 18



PUBLIC FACILITIES
COUNCIL WORKSHOP

February 1, 2016

Chairman Bachman Smith IV
Members Chauncey Clark and Mark Howard

All matters relating to construction, maintenance and improvements of streets, beach paths and
Town-owned buildings; sanitation services including trash and garbage; storm water
management; and energy and resource conservation programs.

Monthly Construction Report Presented by Mr. Robinson (if needed).

Town Hall construction update by C. Clark.

I. Matters pending discussion in Committee
(may include items currently for discussion by Council)

A. Station 17 Street Water Plant surrounding fence — From W&S budget next
year. Should the fence be 6' or 8' (coordinate with W&S)

B. Planning for public facilities and historic structure aesthetic improvements to
grounds and the need for a Budget line item (next year)

C. Review of Space Needs Reports from all departments (11/2/2015)

D.

II. Matters for Action by Council

A. Restrict vehicular access to the Dump (12/15/2015)
B. Review proposal for engineering work to address storm water issues on a temporary basis;

rehabilitation of Sta 18. Pump station; and surrounding pipeline infrastructure
(12/7/2015)

III. Matters for Discussion by Council

A. Sta. 26 boat landing rehabilitation (12/15/2015)

B.



IV. New Matters Presented to Council

A.

V. Matters Pending Further Action by Council
(other than mention these will not be discussed until additional info is received

A. Landscape and enhancement to the Island entrance (12/7/2015)
B. Art wall/display area in the new Town Hall.

VI. Recently Resolved (these items will remain for one full month after resolution)

A.

B.



Fiscal Previous

Jan Dec Jan
Year to

date
Year to

date

2016 2015 2015

TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED 42 34 28 250 196

TOTAL C.O. ISSUED 2 1 2 14 10

NEW HOME PERMITS 1 1 1 11 6

COST OF CONSTRUCTION 2,105,837 3,146,427 1,406,541 17,074,498 8,018,716

PERMIT FEES COLLECTED 21,884.72 33,847.42 14,891.01 241,333.37 156,253.47

Budget amount 250,000.00 245,000.00

96.53% 63%

DEMOLITIONS/MOVING 3 2 1 7 6

INSPECTIONS 47 73 37 445 372

OTHER SITE VISITS 61 49 41 379 205

BUSINESS LICENSE 140,797.57 14,881.22 20,397.00 308,370.55 270,467.03

BUILDING/ BUSINESS LICENSE REPORT

January 2016



LAND USE AND NATURAL RESOURCES
COUNCIL WORKSHOP

February 1, 2016

Chairman Rita Langley
Members Chauncey Clark and Pat O'Neil

All matters relating to the zoning and building ordinances and their implementation, and
natural resources including Town-owned land

Monthly Zoning Report Presented by Mr. Henderson
Monthly Boards and Commission Reports Attached

I. Matters for Action by Council

II. Matters for Discussion by Council

III. New Matters Presented to Council

IV. Matters Pending Further Action by Council



1 
 

JANUARY 2016 

LAND USE AND NATURAL RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
BOARD, COMMISSION & ZONING UPDATE  

 

 

From:  Building and Zoning Department 

Prepared For: Land Use and Natural Resources Committee 

Regarding: Board, Commission, & Zoning Update  

 

ZONING PROJECT UPDATE: 

 

 2016 National Arbor Day Celebration: Tree Commission planning to hold an April 29
th

 Arbor 

Day Celebration. 

 Public Parking Plan- Preparation of mapping for public parking scenarios 

 Nonconforming Dwellings: Field survey and digitization of all properties with second/multiple 

dwelling units. GIS data will be compared with Business License information to count rentals. 

 Beachfront Management Plan- Preliminary Draft Complete (Pending DHEC-OCRM review) 

 Historic District Design Guidelines- Under Design Review Board review- Study Group meeting 

to resume January 2016 

 Protected Land Tree Survey- Online GIS application  

 Program for Public Information (PPI)-FEMA Community Rating System: Under Planning 

Commission review 

 Short-term Illegal Rental Enforcement-Ongoing 

 DNR Floodplain Management Ordinance updates- rewrite ongoing 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION: JANUARY 13, 2016 

 

A. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

1. (Gary Visser, Chair; Sydney Cook, Vice Chair )Election of Commission Officers: Elect 

officers in accordance with Section 17-5 Sullivan’s Island Code of Ordinances.  

 

B. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 

1. Zoning Ordinance Update: Update on past text amendments. 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS: JANUARY 14, 2016 

 

NO MEETING HELD 

 

DESIGN REVIEW BOARD: JANUARY 20, 2016 

 

C. CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS– NON-HISTORIC PROPERTIES 



2 
 

1. Approved-3024 I’on Avenue: Heather Wilson, applicant, requests design approval for additions 

to an existing home, and modification from the zoning standard for principal building coverage 

and required side setbacks. (TMS# 529-12-00-036) 

2. Approved-2430 Raven Drive: Ryan Keutzer, applicant, requests design approval for a home 

renovation, and modification from the zoning standard for the principal building foundation 

height and principal building square footage. (TMS# 529-06-00-098) 

 

3. Withdrawn 3024 Marshall Blvd: Melissa Britton, applicant, requests of an addition and 

modification from the zoning standard for principal building square footage. (TMS# 529-12-00-

079) 

4. Approved-2302 Myrtle Avenue: American Vernacular, applicant, requests design approval for a 

home addition, and modification from the zoning standard for principal building square footage. 

(TMS# 529-06-00-068) 

5. Approved-412 Station 14: Tim Cook, applicant, requests design approval for several additions to 

an existing home and modification from the zoning standard for principal building coverage, 

principal building square footage, principal building side façade, and building orientation. 

(TMS# 529-07-00-014) 

6. Approved-2268 Atlantic Avenue: Rod Heinlen, applicant, requests design approval for a new 

home construction and pool, and modification from the zoning standard for principal building 

orientation. (TMS# 529-12-00-036) 

7. Approved-918 Middle Street: Ron Denton, applicant, requests conceptual design approval for a 

new home construction, and modification from the zoning standard for principal building 

coverage and second story side setback. (TMS# 523-06-00-081) 

TREE COMMISSION: JANUARY 25, 2016 
 

D. TREE REMOVAL REQUESTS 

1. Withdrawn-2662 Goldbug Avenue: Gerald Benoit, applicant, requests approval to 

remove one Category I live oak (22” DBH- diameter at breast height) in accordance with 

Zoning Ordinance Section 21-162.B (Application for relocation, or removal and 

replacement). (TMS # 529-07-00-009) 

2. Approved-412 Station 14: Tim Cook, applicant, requests approval to remove one 

Category I hackberry (18” DBH- diameter at breast height) in accordance with Zoning 

Ordinance Section 21-162.B (Application for relocation, or removal and replacement). 

(TMS# 529-07-00-014) 

E. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

1. 2016 Arbor Day Ceremony: Consideration of ideas for celebrating National Arbor Day 

on Friday, April 29, 2016.  



ADMINISTRATION
COUNCIL WORKSHOP

February 1, 2016

Chairman Mark Howard
Members Sarah Church and Susan Middaugh

All matters relating to oversight of implementation of the following Town administrative
functions: personnel; licensing; Town Attorney; court; rules; solicitation for Boards and
Commissions; administrative infrastructure; communications and community outreach.

I. Matters for Action by Council

A. None

II. Matters for Discussion by Council

A. Discussion of possible modification to uniform terms of service for Board and
Commission seats

III. New Matters Presented to Council

A. Personnel
1. Personnel Report

IV. Matters Pending Further Action by Council

A. Archiving Old Records
A vendor has been retained to digitize and archive Town documents. Work
will be conducted in the near future.

B. Town Communications Plan
Staff is developing an RFP for a municipal website, anticipating release for bid
within a month. Audio/video technical requirements have been identified and
incorporated in the new Town Hall/Police Station project, with the goal of
improving public communications.



 

PERSONNEL REPORT 

February 2016 
 

 

 

Activity as of Friday, January 29, 2016 

 

HIRINGS/RESIGNATIONS:    None 

                    

CURRENT OPENINGS: 

General Administration: None 

Water & Sewer:  None   

Maintenance:   Laborer (FT)   

Police Department:  Patrol Officer (FT) 

Fire Department:  None 
 

 

PERSONAL DAY HOLIDAY/VACATIONS:  
 

Department Heads:  None 

Town Hall Staff:  Maria LoRusso – February 4-5 (Thurs-Fri) 

Ellen Miller – Feb 1-5 (Mon-Fri) and 

 Feb 26 and 29 (Fri and Mon) 

 

 

 

 

 



WATER AND SEWER AGENDA
COUNCIL WORKSHOP
Committee Chair: Susan Middaugh

February 1, 2016

Committee Members: Mark Howard, Bachman Smith

Committee Charge: All matters relating to the Water and Sewer Department and Systems.

I. Monthly Report from Mr. Gress

II. Matters for Action by Council

1. Consensus on method of payment for proposed SRF Revenue Bond (see III below)

III. Matters for Discussion by Council

1. Presentation and discussion of three methods for payment of an estimated $2.2
million State Revolving Fund Sewer Revenue Bond to fund Phase II of the I&I
Reduction Project.

IV. New Matters Presented to Council

1. The next W&S Committee meeting is scheduled: Thursday, February 25, 8:30 AM

V. Pending Items

1. FEMA Grant Review

2. Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant for Submersible Pumps

3. Improvements to fencing at the Water Treatment Site



Town of Sullivan’s Island
Water & Sewer Department

Manager Greg Gress
843-883-5748

Monthly Water Report
For

January 2016
Data as of 1/30/16

FLOW: Distributed 6.580 MG this month, with a daily average flow of .205 MG and a Daily Max of

.337 MG

SALES: ??? MG billed (all water) with a daily average of .??? MG. (6.855 MG billed in January last

year with a daily average of 0.221 MG).

RED WATER: No operational problems.

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM: Water main break near 907 Middle St. One service line leak near 1610

Middle St.

WATER LINE PROJECT: Our crews have resumed work along Atlantic from Station 16 to Station 17

and then along Station 16 from Poe to Atlantic. W. Walsh Company has mobilized to reline 2900 feet

on Middle St from Station 12 to Star of The West. Anticipating a 60 day timeline. There will need to

be 9 excavation points to do this work.



Town of Sullivan’s Island
Water & Sewer Department

Manager Greg Gress
843-883-5748

WATER PLANT: No operational problems.

WORK ORDERS: 8 check for leaks; 0 frozen pipes; 9 monthly rereads; 1 misc. customer complaint; 1

replace customer shut off; 1 turn on; 4 turn off; 39 locates; 0 install irrigation meter; 0 remove

irrigation meter; 0 irrigation quote; 8 read meter; 0 meter box repairs; 5 disconnect delinquent acct; 5

reconnect delinquent acct; 0 pulled meter for demo; 1 reinstall meter from demo; 1 backflow

inspection

CHEMICALS: Used 34 gallons of phosphate.

OTHER: John Myers has passed the “C” Water Treatment exam.



Town of Sullivan’s Island
Water & Sewer Department

Manager Greg Gress
843-883-5748

Monthly Sewer Report
For

January 2016

COLLECTION SYSTEM: No operational problems

SEWER LINE PROJECT: Continue condition assessment of sewer mains and laterals along the path

of water line replacement to determine repair or replacement needs. This work will be done after

waterlines are replaced. W&S committee discussed a detailed financial plan to fund I&I Reduction

Project Phase II without a rate increase. Phase II will begin with some capital rehab and replacements

from Phase I grouting project.

LIFT STATIONS: All starters will need to be replaced this year. Four pumps

FLOW: Processed 17.153 Million Gallons this month, with a daily average of 0.572 MG and a

maximum weekly average of .628 MG. Rainfall total was 3.45inches.

SALES: ??? MG billed this month with a daily average of .??? MG. (6.302 MG billed in January last

year with a daily average of 0.203 MGD).

HEADWORKS: Grit separator Air lift pump compressor is down. Using portable compressor

temporarily. Duplex compressor will need to be rebuilt or replaced.

OXIDATION DITCH: No change since last report.



Town of Sullivan’s Island
Water & Sewer Department

Manager Greg Gress
843-883-5748

CLARIFIER: Scheduling these to be sand blasted and painted this spring. Must be done during low

flows.

OUTFALL: No operational problems.

BIOSOLIDS: 0 cu yd. dry to landfill. 38,500 gallons liquid sludge hauled to MPW.

CHEMICALS: 418 lbs. of chlorine and 186 lbs. of sulfur dioxide used for the month.

COMPUTER SYSTEMS: SCADA PC hard drive crashed and replaced.

WORK ORDERS: 39 locates; 0 pool filling permit inspection; 0 sewer connection inspection (first

time); 0 sewer connection inspection (sewer replacement); 1 sewer reconnect inspection (reconnect

from a demo); 3 sewer disconnect inspection (disconnect for a demo); 0 grease trap inspection; 0

install new tap; 0 repair cleanout; 0 back up; 2 sewer adjustment app.

OTHER: John Myers has passed the “C” Water Treatment exam.



Annual Report of Activities
year 7  /  january 2015 - December 2015

February 2016



I

The Ashley Cooper Stormwater Education Consortium’s Year Seven Annual Report 
of Activities summarizes outreach and involvement programming offered by the 
Ashley Cooper Stormwater Education Consortium (ACSEC) community and education 
partners in 2015. The ACSEC implements a region-wide outreach strategy to educate 
Charleston Tri-County residents on water quantity, quality and the cumulative 
impacts of stormwater. Education programming is steered by the ACSEC Stormwater 
Outreach Strategic Plan 2012-2017, which identifies priority issues to address 
through messaging and outreach that targets residential and commercial audiences. 
The year 2015 marks the fourth year of strategic plan implementation and allows for 
opportunities for evaluation and evolution of new and existing programs.

During 2015, new programming was implemented that provided for hands-on education 
and involvement trainings for technical and commercial audiences, including the 
Carolina Rain Garden Initiative’s Rain Garden for Professionals Workshop, the Master 
Pond Manager course, Post-Construction BMP Inspector certification course, and the 
Carolina Clean Watershed Restaurant program. Several of these programs resulted in 
the development of new permanent exhibits across the Tri-County, including a first 
for the ACSEC, a shorescaping demonstration site at a stormwater pond.

New mass media efforts focused on stormwater pond management, with a commercial 
rotation featuring best practices for stormwater pond function and performance. 
The commercial was rotated in the ACSEC region in Fall 2015 and garnered 135,385 
impacts. The commercial is slated for broadcast again during Spring 2016.

Existing programming also grew during 2015, reaching new audiences across the 
Tri-County region. Highlights include the Seeds to Shoreline restoration program 
targeting youth and teachers, water resource-related training for Master Gardener 
and Master Naturalist volunteers, residential workshops on rain garden installation 
and design, the ACSEC 3rd annual Ivy rain barrel sale and more. ACSEC’s impact 
on print and publications continue to be a strength of the program, with new 
opportunities and topics to reach across the state of South Carolina.

As a result of these new and existing efforts, the ACSEC recorded over an estimated 
1.5 million educational impacts, including 1.2 million through indirect outreach 
methods and almost 400,000 through direct. As the ACSEC’s Strategic Plan exists as a 
“living” document, the ACSEC will incorporate strategies in 2016 to address bacteria 
management in runoff through programming targeting pet owners and homeowners 
in the community. The ACSEC partners look forward to 2016 and our work in and 
around Lowcountry waterways.

eXecuTIVe Summary
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report

ACSEC Co-Coordinators

Kim Counts Morganello (left) and 

Guinn Wallover (right) are Water 

Resource Agents for the Clemson 

Carolina Clear program, and work 

to co-coordinate the Ashley Cooper 

Stormwater Education Consoritum. 

Kim’s professional interest include 

landscape-level best management 

practices, rainwater harvesting, 

rain gardens and community 

involvement projects. Guinn’s 

professional interests include water 

quality monitoring, stormwater 

pond mangement and commercial 

and construction best management 

practices. In their spare time, both 

Kim and Guinn can be found outside 

enjoying SC’s water resources. 

Executive Summary 



II

Outreach activities and  
tOtal number reached (estimated)

•	In 2015, the ACSEC was excited to announce the recognition 
of its first two “Carolina Clean Watershed Restaurants.” 
Through training and adoption of best management 
practices in the workplace, Carolina Clean Watershed 
Restaurants take proactive steps to reduce fats, oil and 
grease, bacteria and other pollution in our waterways.

•	The Carolina Rain Garden Initiative made a splash in 
2015 with new resources for residential and commercial 
audiences alike, including a “Rain Garden Workshop for 
Professionals Workshop” training. This training, hosted 
twice in the ACSEC, provided hands-on application for 
contractors in  rain garden design and installation. 

•	The Master Pond Manager course and Post-Construction BMP 
Inspector course launched in the Tri-County in 2015. These  
courses, developed as a partnership between Clemson 
Extension, The Center for Watershed Excellence, and 
Clemson Online, provide professional level training to staff 
involved in maintenance of stormwater best management 
practices. These courses are “hybrid” trainings with both 
online classroom and field day curriculum. 

•	The College of Charleston Masters of Environmental Studies 
program and the ACSEC wrapped up a multi-year study 
evaluating the use and application of harvested rainwater. 
The implications of this work have led to the development 
of several resources through Clemson Extension, including 
application instructions for use of harvested rainwater on 
edibles in the home and school setting. 

•	The latest mass media blitz focused on stormwater pond 
management tips and resources for pond owners. During 
the Fall of 2015, the pond-focused televsion commercial 
aired reached 135,385 impacts in the ACSEC region. 

2015 Highlights

1. ACSEC Internet Resources including 
ACSEC E-newsletter, Facebook page, 
factsheet series and website.                                           
number reacHeD: 76,985 

2. Mass Media Campaign including television and 
billboard efforts to reach homeowners and 
pond owners.  
NUMBER REACHED: 695,891 

3. Permanent Demonstration Sites across 
the Ashley Cooper region demonstrate 
diverse best management practices 
for protecting water quality.                                             
number reacHeD: 20,415  

4. ACSEC representation at fairs and festivals, 
providing information on ACSEC and ways to 
protect water quality.                   
number reacHeD: 20,210 

5. Diverse array of public workshops, 
trainings, presentations and conferences 
pertaining to stormwater.                                  
number reacHeD: 61,545                                    

6. ACSEC Public Involvement opportunities 
including rain garden installations, 
storm drain marking, litter sweeps, 
oyster reef construction, water quality 
monitoring and rain barrel sales.                                   
number reacHeD: 325,127 

 acSec HIgHlIgHTS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



III
Table OF cOnTenTS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report

Table of Contents

Executive Summary .................................................................................................................. I 
 
2015 Highlights....................................................................................................................... II 
 
Community Partners .................................................................................................................1 
 
Education Partners ...................................................................................................................2 
 
Mission and Goals ....................................................................................................................3 
 
Education and Involvement Program History.....................................................................................4 
 
Report Format ........................................................................................................................5

Public Education 
Indirect Outreach methods 
Internet  ...............................................................................................................................6 
Radio and Television .................................................................................................................9 
Billboards.............................................................................................................................10 
Publications: Articles .............................................................................................................. 13 
Outreach Materials: Brochures, Booklets, Manuals ........................................................................... 16 
Outreach Materials: Postcards.................................................................................................... 17 
Outreach Materials: Promotional Items ........................................................................................ 18 
Permanent Exhibits ................................................................................................................ 19 
Public Events: Fairs, Festivals ................................................................................................... 27

Direct Outreach methods 
Direct Contacts ..................................................................................................................... 29 
Presentations ....................................................................................................................... 30 
Presentations: Youth ............................................................................................................... 32 
Workshops ........................................................................................................................... 34 
Trainings and Certifications ...................................................................................................... 37 
Conferences......................................................................................................................... 43

Public Involvement 
Litter Sweeps ....................................................................................................................... 44 
Storm Drain Marking ............................................................................................................... 47 
BMP Installations ................................................................................................................... 48 
Oyster Reef Construction ......................................................................................................... 50  



III

Public Involvement (continued) 
Water Quality Monitoring ......................................................................................................... 50 
Rain Barrel Sales ................................................................................................................... 51 
Native Plant Sales .................................................................................................................. 51 
Yard Certification Programs ...................................................................................................... 52 
Pet Waste Bag Dispenser Programs .............................................................................................. 52 
Boater Pumpout Program ......................................................................................................... 52 
 
Year Seven Highlights 
Rainwater Harvesting: A Tool for Stormwater Outreach .......................................................................6 
Commercial: Shoreline Management Solutions for Healthy Waterways ................................................... 11 
Carolina Clean Watershed Restaurant Program ............................................................................... 15 
Carolina Rain Garden Initiative .................................................................................................. 40 
Master Pond Manager .............................................................................................................. 41 
Partner Highlight: Stormwater Pond Research and Management Collaborative .......................................... 56 
 
ACSEC Year Seven Outreach Summary .......................................................................................... 56

Appendix A: Articles ............................................................................................................... 58

Appendix B: Strategic Plan Education Timelines .............................................................................. 61

 

Table of Contents

Table OF cOnTenTS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



1
cOmmunITy ParTnerS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report

Community Partners

The majority of designated Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (SMS4) communities in the Charleston 
Urbanized Area, representing approximately 90% of the population, have committed to the ACSEC regional 
collaboration. These communities are represented by a dedicated group of public servants who have been engaged 
for many years in building the partnership.

Local SMS4 Consortium Representatives

Berkeley County Clint Busby, Kelsey Gagnon

Charleston County
John Carullo, Frank Pandullo, Stuart Ruelle, Chris 
Wannamaker, Taylor Anthony

Dorchester County Kacy Byrd

City of Charleston Laura Cabiness, Kinsey Holton

City of Folly Beach
Represented by Charleston County via 
Inter-Governmental Agreement (IGA) 

City of Goose Creek Steve Price, Chick Foster

City of Isle of Palms Represented by Charleston County via IGA

Town of James Island Represented by Charleston County via IGA

Town of Lincolnville Represented by Charleston County via IGA

Town of Mount Pleasant Hillary Repik, Brett Champion

City of North Charleston Mike Dalrymple, John Peckham, Merry Barton

Town of Sullivan’s Island Represented by Charleston County via IGA

Town of Summerville Ross Cornette, Bonnie Miley



2
acSec eDucaTIOn ParTnerS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report

Education Partners

Collaboration is integral in developing and delivering a successful watershed-scale outreach 

program that reaches diverse audiences. The ACSEC is fortunate to have a variety of 

organizations in the Charleston Tri-County region that have joined the effort. Education 

partners include universities, state and local government agencies, utilities and non-profits. 

Each brings unique expertise, resources, ideas and programs to the ACSEC. The ACSEC 

fosters communication among organizations and through this cooperative effort programs 

are being created or enhanced.

ACSEC Education Partners



3
acSec mISSIOn anD gOalS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report

Mission and Goals

acSec mISSIOn STaTemenT  
Improve water quality within the Ashley and Cooper 
River basins by providing educational opportunities 
on stormwater impacts and our community roles 
in supporting healthy, fishable, and swimmable 
waterways.

• Develop and implement an education plan that defines a 
cohesive education strategy which outlines target audiences 
and associated target pollutants relevant to the region using a 
prioritized approach.

• Facilitate compliance with existing and future educational 
regulatory requirements by capitalizing on local resources and 
service providers.

• Foster citizen involvement in stormwater management through 
ACSEC education and participation programs. 

• Encourage behavioral change towards environmental quality 
improvement through stormwater education.

• Utilize mainstream and developing technologies and tools to 
maximize citizen exposure to ACSEC stormwater goals and 
objectives.

• Create an interactive reporting process to facilitate information 
exchange and dissemination among member entities. 

PrOgram gOalS 



4

To meet the ACSEC program goals, community and education partners meet twice a year or more frequently as needed 

to work collaboratively in the development, implementation, and evaluation of new and existing programming. These 

meetings and decision making process is also open to the public. 

ACSEC programming priorities were identified and developed through the Ashley Cooper Stormwater Education Consortium 

Stormwater Outreach Strategic Plan 2012-2017. The Stategic Plan can be found online at: www.ashleycooper.org. The 

Strategic Plan provides a framework for prioritizing regional issues, developing target outreach methods, and determining 

program evaluation metrics to improve the delivery and impact of ACSEC efforts. It is considered a “living” document to 

allow for refinement, supplementation, and flexibility as regional efforts evolve over the five-year period. The development 

of the Strategic Plan was a multi-year effort that involved community and education partner input and an evaluation of 

geography, pollutant concerns, and public perception as identified from the 2008 Carolina Clear Statewide Survey. 

The Strategic Plan process helped identify priority issues and education strategies to address pollutants of concern in the 

region. The ACSEC residential and commercial audience priorities are as follows:

 

 

Education and 
Involvement Program 
History

These priority issues have formed the core of efforts by the ACSEC; education strategies include five-year timelines 

for program implementation (see Appendix B.). To evaluate the effectiveness of outreach and involvement campaigns, 

evaluation metrics include but are not limited to:

• Five-year surveys to gauge perceptions, knowledge gained, and behavior change of residents living in the consortium 

area.

• Google analytics to evaluate impacts of web-based programming and outreach.

• Short-term and long-term program evaluation to evaluate workshop and training success in delivering information, 

assisting participants in overcoming barriers to practice implementation, and meeting the needs of the target audience.  

• Other methods including analysis of distribution numbers, feedback, viewership, and participant reach.

The ability of the ACSEC to implement and deliver consistent messaging and programming as well as leverage partner-

lead initiatives helps the Consortium-model to successfully address community priorities and concerns across multiple 

waterway “lines.”

 

 

RESIDENTIAL AUDIENCE PRIORITIES
issue goal 

Home landscaping nutrient 

management

Proper application of fertilizer, use 

of low or no-phosphorous fertilizers

Residential stormwater 

pond management

Proper maintenance, homeowner 

association responsibilities, and 

neighborhood awareness

Home auto repair 

harzardous material

Proper management and disposal 

of oil, grease and other automotive 

fluids

COMMERCIAL AUDIENCE PRIORITIES
issue goal 

Landscapers and pond 

management company nutrient 

management

Proper application of fertilizer, use of 

low or no-phosphorus fertilizers, post 

construction BMP (pond) maintenance

Restaurants and hospitality 

fats, oil, and grease (FOG) 

management

Proper disposal of fats, oil and grease

Automotive businesses oil, grease 

and hazardous fluids management

Proper management and disposal of 

petroleum and hazardous materials



5

 

 

annual rePOrT OF acTIVITIeS FOrmaT
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report

Annual Report  
of Activities Format

The annual report utilizes the same general format as the first six ACSEC reports and the other regional stormwater 

consortiums in South Carolina. This annual report, the seventh for the Consortium, is intended to give the reader 

a comprehensive look at the ACSEC from January 1, 2015 and December 31, 2015.  This report delineates activities 

into public education and public involvement categories. For each activity, a brief description is provided as well 

as information on lead provider, supporting partners, date, number of impacts, and target audiences. Furthermore, 

public education activities are identified as either direct or indirect outreach strategies. 

Clemson Extension’s Carolina Clear program developed an online database in the first ACSEC reporting cycle to record 

detailed information on activities conducted by Consortium partners. The data collected in the online database 

includes information on target audiences, pollutants addressed, activity type, lead service providers, supporting 

partners, number of impacts, location and several other categories. This annual report provides a condensed version 

of the information collected in the online database as well as additional, supplementary information sourced from 

ACSEC partners. 

The activities in the report are listed in table format.  Due to space limitations, target audiences are abbreviated 

as follows: 

Target Audience Abbreviations

GP General Public

R Residential: Homeowners and Renters

YT K-12 Youth and Teachers

HE Higher Education

T Technical: Engineers, Contractors, Landscapers, Developers, Staff

EA Elected and Appointed Officials and High Level Staff

C Commercial

SP Stormwater Pond Managers

B Boat Owners, Boat Operators, and Marinas

P Pet Owners



6

Year Seven Highlight

research: The Clemson Extension Service partnered with the College of Charleston Master 

of Science in Environmental Studies Program to sponsor a student thesis research project 

on water quality in harvested rainwater systems. The objective of the research was to 

examine the effectiveness of the first flush diverter on bacteria presence and other pollutant 

indicators in two cistern systems in the Charleston region. Findings were used to create 

management recommendations incorporated in new resources and training opportunities.

new resources: Two newly published Clemson Extension HGIC publications: 

HGIC 1728 “Best Practices for Application of Harvested Rainwater on Edibles”                                                                                       

HGIC 1729 “Rainwater Harvesting Systems Guidance for Schoolyard Applications.”  

Additionally, a rainwater harvesting interpretive sign was created for use in demonstration 

areas to provide information on system components, design and recommendations for use. 

education & Public Involvement: Rainwater harvesting training was provided to 

technical audiences during the Clemson Extension bmP Inspection and maintenance course 

which piloted in the Charleston region during the summer/fall of 2015. This hybrid course 

includes a 7-week online portion & a day in the field for hands-on training. The field day 

took place at Trident Technical College (TTC) on September 9, 2015 with 35 participants and 

included a visit to cisterns as well as other BMPs on TTC campus.

Information on rainwater harvesting was provided to residential audiences during the 

carolina yards gardening School Water-Wise edition on June 6, 2015 at Trident Technical 

College. Hosted by Clemson Extension, the Tri-County Master Gardeners, Carolina Clear   

and the ACSEC, programming was provided on rainwater harvesting and other “water-wise” 

practices to over 50 participants. 

The carolina Schoolyard Program was piloted in the Ashley Cooper Region with focus on 

rainwater harvesting. Teachers were trained in the practice and two area schools recieved 

standards-based curriculm on rainwater harvesting & schoolyard implementation of a rain 

barrel and rain garden. 

The 2015 acSec Ivy rain barrel Sale took place from May 28 to 30th in Gahanagan Park in 

downtown Summerville, the City of Goose Creek Water Tower and the Charleston County 

Public Services Building in North Charleston. The ACSEC partnered with Rainwater Solutions 

to provide Ivy Rain Barrels at a near 50% reduced price to the general public. Through this 

partnership, over 500 rain barrels were purchased, nearly twice as many as were purchased 

in the 2014 sale.

Rainwater Harvesting: A Tool for Stormwater Outreach

year SeVen HIgHlIgHTS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



7
PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report

Public Education

Public education activities are classified into two broad categories, direct and indirect outreach methods, to 

express mechanisms by which information has been communicated to the public. Direct methods include activities 

that are implemented via direct personal contact. Examples of direct methods include workshops, presentations, 

trainings and public involvement activities. In contrast, indirect outreach methods refer to contacts through 

traditional media channels including television, radio, print and billboards. Indirect methods generally reach a 

much greater portion of the population due to the nature of their mediums; however, it is often more difficult to 

gauge specific impacts. Whereas when dealing with direct methods, smaller numbers of people are reached yet the 

ones that are reached generally provide a forum for direct evaluation and feedback. Each method is important in 

the overall education campaign, and are both part of the five year educational strategy for the ACSEC. Throughout 

the document, the words “direct” or “indirect” are provided at the top of each reporting table to indicate which 

category an effort belongs.

Data provided are as accurate as possible and are reviewed by multiple individuals involved in the reporting process. 

However, due to the nature of indirect outreach initiatives, indirect impact numbers are typically estimates.

 

Internet (Indirect)
leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

Website, Clemson Extension 
(stormwater related only), Carolina 
Yards, Carolina Clear, and ACSEC: 
Impacts are based on Google 
Analytics unique page views.

Continuous 50,432 GP, R, PO, 
P, T, B, C

WebSITe: The ACSEC website is part of the Carolina Clear website, 
which continues to add new features for the public, including links to 
free resources like the SCWaterWays factsheet series, an ACSEC Facebook 
feed and archived editions of the ACSEC’s e-newsletter, the “Ripple Ef-
fect”. The ACSEC website also includes archived information including 
annual report and meeting minutes, and the ACSEC Strategic Education 
Plan. Clemson Extension maintains a Stormwater Pond Management web-
site and the Carolina Yard website. The Stormwater Pond Managment 
website provides targeted information on pond inspection and mainte-
nance to ensure stormwater pond function and water quality protection; 
the Carolina Yard website serves as a gateway to information on best 
management practices for an environmentally friendly lawn and garden.



8

Internet (Indirect) continued 

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

ACSEC SMS4 
and Education 
Partners

ACSEC Electronic Newsletter: The 
Ripple Effect: Bimonthly Consortium 
e-newsletter.

Bi-monthly
(6 editions 
Total)

2,310
GP, R, HE, 
EA, PO, P, 
T, B, C

WebSITe: The ACSEC e-newsletter “Ripple Effect” is designed to 
provide awareness of ACSEC-related activities, including past, ongoing 
and future events. The “Ripple Effect” also includes links to pertinent 
electronic  resources  providing  information  on good stewardship 
practices. The “Ripple Effect” is issued on a bi-monthly basis. ACSEC 
community and education partners are encouraged to submit information 
for inclusion in the “Ripple Effect” and also to distribute the e-newsletter 
to others. The “Ripple Effect” is archived on multiple partner 
websites; therefore, the number of impacts is likely underestimated. 
Archived editions can be viewed at www.ashleycooper.org.  

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

ACSEC  
Partners

 ACSEC Facebook Page: Provides 
daily/weekly information regarding 
ACSEC activities, news, and events.

Continuous 24,243 GP, R, PO, 
P, T, B, C

acSec FacebOOk Page: The ACSEC Facebook page is visually driven, 
utilizing photographs to provide awareness of Consortium-related activities 
and information. The page also provides time sensitive information including 
camp and workshop registration deadlines, volunteer opportunities, watershed 
stewardship reminders and other pertinent news items. Facebook allows 
for an additional avenue for communication as followers may post to the 
page or message the administrators (ACSEC co-coordinators). A live news 
feed of the ACSEC Facebook page is provided on www.ashleycooper.org. 

During Year Seven, 393 people followed the ACSEC Facebook page, 100 posts 
were made totaling 24, 243 “views.” Average Facebook views were 242 per post.

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report

Public Education



9
PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report

Public Education

Television (Indirect)
leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Clemson 
Extension SC ETV

Television, Making It Grow: 
Award-winning weekly one-hour 
TV program on ETV. Live call-
in show airs Tuesday evenings 
from 7-8PM and answers home 
gardening and landscape 
questions from around South 
Carolina.

Continuous 24,358 GP, R

Clemson 
Extension, 
Clemson 
Carolina Clear

Knology, 
Comcast 

Television, Stormwater Ponds 
Commercial: Commercial 
rotation on Knology and Comcast 
stations that featured best 
management practices for a 
stormwater pond management, 
and highlighted resources 
available through the Clemson 
Extension service and Carolina 
Clear program. For more 
information, see Highlight, p. 
11-12.

September 21, 
2015 through 
October 11, 
2015

135,385 GP

Making It Grow, a production of Clemson Extension, 
is a live call-in television show hosted on ETV. It 
features Clemson Extension agents and special 
guests to answer questions on home gardening 
and landscaping topics. A member of the Clemson 
Extension Water Resources program team and 
Carolina Clear program is a host on the show; each 
week, she highlights a water-related stewardship 
practices and address questions concerning best 
management practices for protecting water quality.  



10

Public Education

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report

Billboards (Indirect)
leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

Billboard, Buffer Zones: Part of 
the Carolina Yards billboard series. 
Two locations: Interstate 26 at 
Montague Avenue; Highway 17 South, 
approximately 15 miles south of 
downtown Charleston.

205,540; 
12,000 GP

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

Billboard, Healthy Soils: Part of 
the Carolina Yards billboard series. 
Billboard located on Interstate 26, 
three miles west of Heriot Street.

250,672 GP

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

Billboard, Give it a Rest: Part of 
the Carolina Yards billboard series. 
Billboard located on Insterstate 26, 
four miles east of State Route 453.

67,936 GP

bIllbOarD: The statewide “Carolina Yards: Do you have one?” 
billboard series promoted shoreline buffers, proper grass and lawn 
maintenance and healthy soil management. Outreach messages 
were selected to address nutrient reduction in stormwater and 
pond management. Billboards were located in select Tri-County 
locations and number of impacts represent daily estimated counts. 



11

Year Seven Highlight

Commercial: Shoreline Management Solutions for 
Healthy Waterways
To assist connecting residents to information and resources, and in support of widespread efforts focused on 

nutrient and shoreline management, Carolina Clear filmed our latest media campaign along the shoreline of a 

pond in South Carolina. With assistance from an animated water drop, the commercial seeks to educate viewers 

on five simple actions to protect lake and pond health:

1. Raise mowers and mow less often along the shoreline.

2. Create a fertilizer and herbicide-free zone around the full perimeter of your pond.

3. Plant pond-friendly and native plants along the shoreline to prevent erosion and bank loss.

4. Do not feed Canada Geese, as high fiber foods like bread upset their simple digestive system (and encourage 

them to break their natural migration pattern).

5. Be responsible about stormwater runoff up-gradient of your pond by soil testing and fertilizing only as 

recommended for plant growth.

With partnership efforts across the state that include shoreline stabilization workshops and demonstrations, 

Master Pond Manager hybrid course, SC WaterWays fact sheets on shoreline vegetation and resident Canada Goose 

management, floating treatment wetland demonstrations and videos, and the Stormwater Pond Conference, 

Carolina Clear sought to highlight these to interested viewers by offering assistance and directing viewers to 

www.clemson.edu/carolinaclear.

The Clemson acting crew arranged plant materials along the shoreline while Guinn Wallover, Extension Agent, 

conversed with our animated water drop about best practices. 

Screen shot of commercial featuring 
Guinn Wallover, Charly McConnell, 
and Daniel Dixon.

year SeVen HIgHlIgHTS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



12

Year Seven Highlight

The commercial was tested before release to evaluate its impression on 50 South Carolina viewers; feedback 

included the following: 

• The majority of viewers perceived this as an environmental protection piece, and not solely about pond 

health.

• Approximately 75% of respondents agreed that the topic is important to their community, and over half agreed 

that the topic is important to themselves and their family. 

• Much of the feedback focused on benefits to wildlife that result from better care of waterways (in this case, 

ponds and lakes). 

• Panelists commented that they were unaware previously of the hazards of feeding geese and that fertilizer 

resulted in algae in ponds.

• 84% of panelists felt that the segment made it clear what the individual could do, and 75% agreed that their 

action in response to this segment would make a difference. 

The ACSEC logo was on display in the front and back of the commercial aired in the Lowcountry. The commercial 

aired this past fall on cable and local channels in partnership with these Knology, Viamedia and Comcast. The 

commerical aired 846 times and garnered an estimated 135,385 total views. The ACSEC is looking forward to airing 

segment again with broadcast networks in the spring of 2016! 

The commercial is available for embedding and sharing through the Carolina Clear YouTube Channel at www.

youtube.com/carolinaclear. A billboard for this commercial is being considered for development in 2016. Fifteen 

billboards are still featured across the state that reference the previous media campaign, encouraging Carolina 

Yard actions of composting, rainwater harvesting, less mowing, and planting native plants along shorelines.

Wordle created from 
Water Words That Work 
panelists’ descriptors of 
commercial. 

Commercial: Shoreline Management Solutions for 
Healthy Waterways

year SeVen HIgHlIgHTS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



13

Public Education

Publications (Indirect)
arTIcleS

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

SC DNR ACE 
Basin CTP NERR, 
SC Sea Grant 
Consortium, 
North Inlet-
Winyah Bay CTP 
NERR

ARTICLES, Manual: Low Impact Development 
in Coastal South Carolina: A Planning and 
Development Guide; manual is hosted on 
North Inlet-Inlet Winyah Bay website.

Continous 23,662 T, C, EA

The Post and 
Courier

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

ARTICLES, Newspaper: “Buffers Protect 
Tidal Creeks”

January 
11, 2015 96,005 GP, R

The Gardeners 
Guide for 
Charleston and 
the Lowcountry

Garden 
Club of 
Charleston, 
Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

ARTICLES, Guide: “Native Plants for 
Lowcountry Gardens”; chapter featured 
in the Charleston Garden Club’S The 
Gardener’s Guide for Charleston and the 
Lowcountry publication.

Summer 
2015 500 GP, R, C

Naturally Kiawah

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

ARTICLES, Magazine: “Native Plants for 
Lowcountry Gardens”

Summer/
Fall 2015 6,636 GP, R

The Low Impact Development in Caostal South Carolina: A Planning and 
Design Guide was produced through a partnership between the SC Department 
of Natural Resources ACE Basin NERR CTP, SC Sea Grant Consortium, the 
University of South Carolina’s North Inlet-Winyah Bay NERR CTP, NOAA’s 
National Esturine Research Reserve (NERR), and the Center for Watershed 
Protection. The manual provides guidance for South Carolina stormwater 
management and design community on the use of low impact development 
in coastal communities. Since it’s publication on the North Inlet-Winyah Bay 
NERR website in early 2015, the manual has been downloaded 23,662 times 
by interested constiuents. 

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



14

Public Education

Publications (Indirect)
arTIcleS

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

The 
Conservation 
Corner Annual 
Report 
Newsletter

Charleston 
Soil & Water 
Conservation 
Distric

ARTICLES, Newsletter: “The Conservation 
Corner Annual Report Newsletter” reported 
on the District’s 2015 initiatives and 
opportunities.

September 
18, 2015 1,000 GP, R, EA, 

T

The Post and 
Courier

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

ARTICLES, Newspaper: “Using Rain on 
Garden” described best practices for 
application of harvested rainwater on 
edibles.

September 
20, 2015 96,005 GP, R

Charleston 
County 
School 
District

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

ARTICLES, Online Guide: “Planning 
Construction and Operation Guide for 
Gardens, Greenhouses and Rain Barrels”, 
included in a manual on the CCSD website.

Fall 2015 100 YT, GP

Clemson 
IMPACTS

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

ARTICLES, Magazine and Online: “Extension 
helps eateries serve waterways a healthier 
diet”

Fall 2015 16,140 GP, R, C

The Post and 
Courier

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

ARTICLES, Newspaper: ”Planting for a Rainy 
Day” focused on efforts in the ACSEC region 
to increase rain garden awareness and use.

November 
15, 2015 96,005 GP, R

In 2015, Clemson IMPACTS and Naturally Kiawah 
both featured articles highlighting ACSEC programs 
and messaging. Clemson IMPACTS is a publication 
of the Clemson University Public Service and 
Agriculture, with 16,140 copies distributed per 
edition statewide to agriculture and natural 
reosurce clientel, Clemson Extension offices, 
and Clemson University staff. Naturally Kiawah 
is a publication of the Kiawah Conservancy; its 
readership includes Kiawah Island surrounding 
community residents and visitors. Distribution of 
Naturally Kiawah is 6,636 per edition. For a copy 
of these and other articles, please see Appendix A. 

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



15

Year Seven Highlight

Carolina Clean Watershed Restaurant Program
Improper handling and disposal of fats, oils, and grease (FOGs) from restaurants can contribute to sanitary and 

stormwater sewer system blockages and the degradation of downstream water quality. As part of its Strategic 

Plan development, input from municipal and county level stormwater management programs the ACSEC showed a 

demonstrated demand for outreach encouraging restaurant industry staff to adopt stormwater pollution prevention 

practices. 

To address the identified industry audiences as well as community needs, in 2015, the ACSEC kicked off the 

Carolina Clean Watershed recognition program for restaurant and food preparation services. The Carolina Clean 

Watershed Restaurant program encourages adoption of proper FOG disposal and pollution prevention best 

management practices through the recognition of participants as watershed stewards. This recognition can be used 

as a marketing tool in greater Tri-County community that has a growing interest in sustainable or environmentally 

friendly opportunities. The Carolina Clean Watershed program included a facility walkthrough, a user workbook, a 

toolbox of resources including spill kit, posters and training guides, and a Train-the-Trainer session with manager 

staff resulting in potential modifications to work practices.

The ACSEC is proud to announce that two restaurants have been certified in the Charleston Tri-County region, 

including Triangle Char and Bar in Mount Pleasant and West Ashley, with others in the initial stages of participation. 

Recognized restaurants have taken steps to modify outdoor area management, spill cleanup and employee training 

to address the potential for polluted runoff from the workplace. Train-the-Trainer sessions with restaurants have 

been conducted, directly impacting 20 managerial staff and owners but with indirect impacts on all restaurant 

staff (estimated 30-40 each). Through work with these pilot restaurants, feedback, lessons learned, and additional 

needs were identified; modifications were incorporated to strengthen the Carolina Clean Watershed program 

delivery and impacts. 

The ACSEC looks forward to working with new restaurant participants in the community. This program offers a role 

model for how a unique partnership between multiple stakeholders can address community wide concerns water 

quality protection.

year SeVen HIgHlIgHTS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



16

Public Education

Outreach Materials (Indirect) 
brOcHureS, bOOkleTS, manualS

Carolina Clear produced both a Rainwater Harvesting and 
Rain Garden Manual specifically geared towards residential 
audiences in South Carolina. The Rainwater Harvesting 
manual is written to assist homeowners with designing and 
installing small-scale rainwater harvesting systems, primarily 
rain barrels. The Rain Garden manual provides information 
on constructing a rain garden and emphasizes the step-by-
step planning process including site selection, plant design, 
and soil preparation. Both manuals are distributed at public 
events, including fairs and festivals, as well as to individuals 
attending workshops and presentations. The publications are 
also made available, as free low-resolution downloads in the 
Carolina Clear toolbox to best serve the public and water 
resource protection. 

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe

number  
OF 

ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Clemson 
Extension SCDHEC

Booklet, Carolina Yardstick Workbook: 
Highlights Carolina Yards principles for 
sustainable landscapes.

Continuous 170 GP, R, P

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

Brochure, Leaf it on the Lawn: Discusses tips 
for proper disposal of lawn debris; flyer in 
Spanish and English.

Continuous 100 C, R, GP

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

Manual, Rain Gardens-Green Solutions to 
Stormwater Pollution: Provides overview and 
procedures for installing a rain garden in the 
landscape

Continuous 250 GP, R

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

Manual, Rainwater Harvesting for Homeowners: 
Provides an overview and procedures for 
installing and maintaining a residential 
rainwater harvesting system

Continuous 250 GP, R

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

Multiple

Poster, Stickers, Magnets, “Fats, Oil, and 
Grease (FOG) Restaurant Guidance”: Materials 
distributed for use in food-prep areas focused 
on proper handling and management of FOG.

Continuous 30 C

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



17

Outreach Materials (Indirect) continued
POSTcarDS

Public Education

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Clemson 
Carolina Clear Multiple 

POSTCARD, What is a Rain Garden?: Provides 
brief description and purpose of a rain garden 
and links interested individuals to online 
resources and additional information.

Continuous 200 GP, R, YT

Clemson 
Carolina Clear Multiple

POSTCARD, Trashing Our Environment: Provides 
information on what can be done to prevent 
litter in SC.

Continuous 100 GP, R, YT

Clemson 
Carolina Clear Multiple

POSTCARD, What To Do About Pet Waste: 
Provides information to pet owners on the 
hazards of pet waste in runoff and how to 
properly dispose of waste.

Continuous 300 GP, R, YT,  
P

Clemson 
Carolina Clear Multiple

POSTCARD, We All Live Downstream: Highlights 
that stormwater is not treated; includes tips to 
preventing stormwater pollution. 

Continuous 300 GP, R, YT

Clemson 
Carolina Clear Multiple

POSTCARD, Septic Systems Care and 
Maintenance: Tips for maintaining septic 
systems to reduce negative impacts on water 
quality.

Continuous 100 GP, R

Clemson 
Carolina Clear Multiple

POSTCARD, Better Manage Fats, Oil and Grease 
(FOGs): Provides information on the hazards of 
FOGs in our sewer system; includes information 
on proper FOG disposal. 

Continuous 100 GP, R, C

Clemson 
Carolina Clear Multiple

POSTCARD, A More Green Way to Clean: Tips 
on proper pressure washing to protect water 
quality.

Continuous 100 GP, R, C

Clemson 
Carolina Clear Multiple

POSTCARD, What is a Rain Barrel?: Describes 
rainwater harvesting; promotes the use of rain 
barrels for smarter lawn care as well as for 
water quality.

Continuous 200 GP, R, YT

Clemson 
Carolina Clear Multiple

POSTCARD, Freshwater Shorescapes: Describes 
the benefits of shorescaping and tips and 
resources for pond owners. 

Continuous 200 GP, R, SP

Educational postcards provide a take-home outreach material for distribution 
to residents and visitors at tabling events, workshops and presentations, 
office displays and more. All postcards provide links to free resources for 
more information. Postcard impacts are in thanks to distribution by the 
ACSEC education and community partners. 

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



18

Outreach Materials (Indirect) continued
PrOmOTIOnal ITemS

Public Education

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

PROMOTIONAL ITEMS, Stormwater Pond 
Management Sticker: Promotes the Clemson 
Stormwater Pond Management website. 

Continuous 200 P, T, C, R, 
GP, SP

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

PPROMOTIONAL ITEM, www.ashleycooper.org 
Sticker: ACSEC logo and website utilized to 
promote website visitation and Consortium 
awareness.

Continuous 200 GP, R, YT

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

PROMOTIONAL ITEM, Pocket Ashtray: 
Encouraged responsible disposal of cigarette 
butts.

Continuous 75 GP, R

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

PROMOTIONAL ITEM, Clean Water Hero
Bracelets: Promoted water stewardship, 
distributed to youth during programs.

Continuous 200 GP, YT

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

PROMOTIONAL ITEM, Thank You! Reusable
Bags: Promoted the ACSEC and protection of 
local waterways. 

Continuous 75 GP, R

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

PROMOTIONAL ITEM, ACSEC Koozies: 
Promoted the ACSEC and includes a “Ask 
About Watersheds message.” Distributed at 
events and programs.

Continuous 200 GP, R

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

PROMOTIONAL ITEM, Fish Sponges: Includes 
a “Only Rain Down the Storm Drain!”  
message. Distributed to youth at tabling 
events and presentations.

Continuous 50 GP, YT

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

PROMOTIONAL ITEM, Dog Bag Dispenser:
Distributed to dog owners at tabling events 
to remind owners to pick up pet waste.

Continuous 150 GP, R, P

SC DNR, SC 
Sea Grant 
Consortium

PROMOTIONAL ITEM, Life in the Salt Marsh 
Poster: Provides information on salt marsh 
ecology and ecosystem health; distributed as 
part of Seeds to Shoreline training. 

Summer 
2015 100 YT

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



19

Public Education

Permanent Exhibits (Indirect)
SITe DeVelOPmenT

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Clemson 
Extension

Carolina 
Clear, 
Tri-County 
Master 
Gardeners

PERMANENT EXHIBIT DEVELOPMENT: Clemson 
University Research and Education Center’s “Ed 
Shed.”

Continuous 500
GP, R, YT, 
HE, T, EA, 
P, C

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number OF 

ImPacTS
TargeT 

auDIence

Clemson 
Extension, 
Tri-County 
Master 
Gardeners

Carolina Clear PERMANENT EXHIBIT DEVELOPMENT: Urban Re-
search and Demonstration Area Rain Garden Continuous 1,000

GP, R, 
YT, HE, T, 
EA, P, C

The “Ed Shed” located at Clemson University’s Coastal 
Research and Education Center, provides a demonstration 
and training area with several examples of stormwater 
best management practices to include pervious pavers, 
pervious concrete, both above-ground and below-
ground rainwater harvesting systems, rain gardens, 
and landscaping utilizing native plants and no-till 
gardening techniques. During Year Seven, “Carolina 
Yards” interpretive signage was added to highlight 
environmentally-friendly gardening practices such as 
reducing runoff and supporting willidfe. The “Ed Shed” 
was used to host 4-H2O summer camp, teacher workshops, 
ACSEC meetings, Master Naturalist and Master Gardener 
trainings and more. 

In the fall of 2015 the rain garden located at the Clemson Urban 
Research and Demonstration Area, located on the premisis of the 
Clemson Coastal Research and Education Center was revamped. This 
effort required removal of existing trees, which were too large for 
the rain garden, and reshaping the area to provide ponding depth in 
the rain garden. The soil was amended, native perennials and grasses 
were planted and cedar mulch added. This project was completed 
in partnership between the Clemson Research and Education Center 
staff, Master Gardeners and the ACSEC members. Furthermore, a 
rain barrel and interpretive signage was added to the existing kiosk. 

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



20

Public Education

Permanent Exhibits (Indirect)
SITe DeVelOPmenT

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

The Town 
of Mount 
Pleasant

Clemson
Carolina Clear, 
SC DNR ACE 
Basin NERR 
CTP

PERMANENT EXHIBIT DEVELOPMENT: A 
rain garden was installed at the Town 
of Mount Pleasant Fire Station #2; 
interpretive signage was also installed.

Continuous 800 GP, R, YT, 
T

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Berkeley 
County, Keep 
Hanahan 
Beautful

Clemson
Carolina Clear, 
SC DNR ACE 
Basin NERR 
CTP

PERMANENT EXHIBIT DEVELOPMENT: A 
rain garden and cistern were installled 
at the Hananahan Library as part of Keep 
Hanahan Beautiful’s Butterfly Garden.

Continuous 350 GP, R, YT

As part of the Rain Garden for Professionals Workshop, a 
rain garden was installed at the Town of Mount Pleasant 
Fire Station Number 2. This rain garden captures water 
off of a portion of the fire station roof surface, any 
overflow is directed towards adjacent turf area and 
stormwater pond. Interpretive signage is present. The 
rain garden is also in close proximity to a Town of Mount 
Pleasant Recreation Center. 

As part of Keep Hanahan Beautiful’s 
Butterfly Garden located at a Berkeley 
County Public Library, a rain garden 
and 500 gallon cistern were installed. 
The rain garden features butterfly 
plantings and interpretive signage. The 
cistern captures water from a portion 
of the library roof surface area, 
overflow is then directed towards the 
rain garden. 

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



21

Public Education

Permanent Exhibits (Indirect)
SITe DeVelOPmenT

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Camp St. 
Christopher, 
Clemson 
Carolina 
Clear

SC Master 
Naturalists, 
CCPRC

PERMANENT EXHIBIT DEVELOPMENT: A 
rain garden was installed at the Camp 
St. Christopher Activity Hall on Seabrook 
Island, a visit to the garden is included 
in their “human impacts” class that is 
offered to visitors.

Continuous 650 GP, R

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Dorchester 
County, Keep 
Dorchester 
County 
Beautiful

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT DEVELOPMENT: 
A rain garden and rain barrel were 
installed at the bus stop in front of the 
Dorchester County Government Building.

Continuous 1,000 GP, R, EA, 
T

In partnership with Keep Dorchester 
County Beautiful and Dorchester 
County Government, a new BMP 
demonstration site was established 
at the County building located in 
downtown Summerville. A rain barrel 
captures the runoff from a bus stop 
waiting area, and the overflow is 
directed to an adjacent rain garden. 
Overflow from the rain garden enters 
the existing storm drain system. 
Interpretive signage is present. 

Before             After

As part of the Master Naturalist 
State Conference, a rain garden was 
installed on the campus of Camp 
St. Christopher adjacent to the 
activities center. The rain garden 
is highlighted as part of an ongoing 
class offered at the camp; the class 
educates visitors on human impacts 
on the environment and ways to 
mitigate those impacts. 

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



22

Public Education

Permanent Exhibits (Indirect)
SITe DeVelOPmenT

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Charleston 
County

Clemson 
Extension, 
Clemson 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT DEVELOPMENT: A 
shoreline planting project was installed 
at a stormwater pond located on the 
Charleston County Public Services 
Building campus.

Continuous 100 GP, R, EA, 
T, C

Permanent Exhibits (Indirect)
SITe DeVelOPmenT - ScHOOl InITIaTIVeS

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Cape Romain 
Envionmental 
Education 
Charter 
School 
(CREEC)

Clemson 
Extension,
Carolina 
Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT DEVELOPMENT, 
SCHOOL INITIATIVES: As part of the Carolina 
Schoolyards Intiative, a rain garden and 
rain barrel were installed at the CREEC 
School.

Continuous 175 YT

Charles 
Towne 
Montessori 
School

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT DEVELOPMENT, 
SCHOOL INITIATIVES: As part of the Carolina 
Schoolyards Intiative, a rain garden was 
installed at Charles Towne Montessori 
School.

Continuous 100 YT

As part of the Master Pond Manager class in Spring 2015 and Shorescaping 
Workshop in Fall 2015, a planted shoreline was installed at a stormwater 
pond on the Charleston County Public Services Building’s campus 
in North Charleston. This new demonstration site is a first for the 
ACSEC and showcases best managemnet practices that can be used in 
stormwater pond to provide for erosion control and bank stabiliation, 
as well as other potential water quality and habitat benefits.

The Carolina Schoolyard Initiative was piloted in 2015 
to provide standards-based curriculum to teachers 
and students on watershed stewardship topics. 
This pilot effort placed particular emphasis on the 
practices of rain gardens and rainwater harvesting; 
participating schools recieved a rain barrel and rain 
garden installation. 

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



23

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

SC Native 
Plants Society

Charles Towne 
Landing State 
Historic Site, 
Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT EXISTING:  Rain 
garden demonstration site at the Legare-
Waring House at Charles Towne Landing 
State Historic Site. This site includes 
interpretive signage and is frequented 
by public walking the grounds of Charles 
Towne Landing, as well as those visiting 
for other public and private events.

Continuous 1,000 GP, R

SC Aquarium
Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT EXISTING: Rain 
barrel display at the SC Aquarium; site
located at Aquarium entrance. 

Continuous 1,000
GP, R, YT, 
HE, T, EA, 
P, C

Clemson 
Extension,  
Carolina Clear

Tri-County 
Master
Gardeners

PERMANENT EXHIBIT EXISTING: Bowens 
Island rain garden is a 900-square foot 
large-scale rain garden managing nearly 
2000-square feet of roof area runoff. This 
popular dining destination provides rain 
garden exposure to the public.

Continuous 1,000 GP, R, C

St. Julian 
Divine 
Community 
Center

City of 
Charleston, 
Charleston 
Horticulture 
Society, 
Clemson 
Extension,  
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT EXISTING: Two 
55-gallon rain barrels are installed at 
the entry way to the St. Julian Divine 
Community Center. The rain barrels 
are connected to drip irrigation system 
utilized for adjacent landscaping. 

Continuous 1,500 GP, YT, R

Permanent Exhibits (Indirect) 
eXISTIng SITeS

Public Education

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



24

Public Education

 

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

SC Department 
of Natural
Resources

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT EXISTING:  Ft. 
Johnson Community Garden is a 
demonstration garden adjacent to the 
SCDNR outdoor classroom at the Marine 
Resources Center on James Island. 
Stormwater best management practices 
present include two rain gardens, a 
1500-gallon cistern, over 30 species of 
native plants and multiple waterwise 
irrigation practices. An additional 
demonstration site exists on the Fort 
Johnson Campus at the Marine Turtle 
Conservation Office, at this location a 
small-scale cistern and rain garden are 
present with interpretive signage. 

Continuous 5,000 GP, R, HE, 
YT

Charleston 
County Park 
and Recreation 
Commission

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT EXISTING: Caw Caw 
Interpretive Center is home to a full-
shade rain garden located at the park’s 
picnic shelter. The site includes a 50-gal-
lon rain barrel which overflows into the 
rain garden. This location is visited by 
school groups, birding groups and various 
other types of visitors to Caw Caw. 

Continuous 2,000 GP, R, YT

Charleston 
County Park 
and Recreation 
Commission

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

ERMANENT EXHIBIT EXISTING: Wanna-
maker County Park’s “Whirlin Waters” is 
home to a residential scale, full sun rain 
garden that was installed with the help 
of area youth. The rain garden captures 
stormwater from surrounding impervious 
areas, including sidewalks and patios, 
and includes educational signage. 

Continuous 500 GP, R, C

Permanent Exhibits (Indirect) 
eXISTIng SITeS

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



25

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

College of 
Charleston

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT, SCHOOL 
INITIATIVES: The Green Teaching Garden 
demonstrates stormwater best management 
practices at the Grice Marine Lab. Features 
include a rain garden, cistern, multiple rain 
barrels, composting station, native plants 
and raised beds. Tours are provided upon 
request. 

Continuous 500 HE, GP, R, 
YT

College of 
Charleston 

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT, SCHOOL 
INITIATIVES: Rainwater harvesting cistern 
and pump located adjacent to the Political 
Science Building on College of Charleston’s 
downtown campus. 

Continuous 500 HE, GP, R, 
YT, C

College of 
Charleston

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT, SCHOOL INITIATIVES: 
Early Childhood Development Center 
features rain barrels to raise awareness of 
water quality sustainability features.

Continuous 100 YT, HE, 
GP, R

Farms to 
Schools 
Initiative

Clemson
Extension, 
Clemson 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT, SCHOOL INITIATIVES: 
Alston Middle School utilizes harvested 
rainwater and drip irrigation for raised beds. 

Continuous 900 YT, GP

Charleston
Children’s 
Garden Project

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT, SCHOOL INITIATIVES: 
300-gallon rainwater harvesting system 
installed at Stono Park Elementary School.

Continuous 400 YT, GP

Permanent Exhibits (Indirect) 
eXISTIng SITeS - ScHOOl InITIaTIVeS

Public Education

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



26

Public Education

Permanent Exhibits (Indirect) 
eXISTIng SITeS - ScHOOl InITIaTIVeS

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Green Hearts 
Project, Keep 
America 
Beautiful, Keep 
Charleston 
Beautiful

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT DEVELOPMENT, SCHOOL 
INITIATIVES: Mitchell Elementary School- 
As part of the Green Hearts Project, a 
1550-gallon cistern was installed to supply 
water to surrounding raised beds using drip 
irrigation.The cistern is located adjacent to 
the school’s outdoor classroom and captures 
runoff from the structure’s roof.

Continuous 350 YT

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT DEVLOPMENT, SCHOOL 
INITIATIVES: Ashley River Creative Arts 
School- Bicycle pump installed on existing 
300-gallon cistern. Students peddle the 
stationary bicycle as part of the bicycle 
pump system that moves water from the 
cistern to garden areas. 

Continuous 500 YT

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT DEVELOPMENT, SCHOOL 
INITIATIVES: Goodwin Elementary School- 
Two 50-gallon rain barrels were installed 
adjacent to the school’s small greenhouse 
and butterfly garden area. 

Continuous 100 YT

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

PERMANENT EXHIBIT DEVELOPMENT, SCHOOL 
INITIATIVES: James Island Charter High 
School- Four 50-gallon rain barrels were 
installed at a school garden used by biology 
students, science club and camp youth. 

Continuous 390 YT

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



27

Public Education

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Lowcountry 
STEM 
Collaborative

Multiple

EXHIBITS: Charleston STEM Festival; 
Youth visited multiple education 
partners as part of this one-day 
Science, Technology, Engineering, 
and Math Festival; the ACSEC hosted 
a booth and used the Enviroscape to 
discuss connections with waterways.

February 
7, 2015 7,500 YT

Charleston 
Soil and Water 
Conservation 
District

SC DNR, NRCS

EXHIBITS: Southeastern Wildlife 
Exposition: Exhibits in the 
Conservation Tent provided Program 
informational handouts on water 
quality, soils and other conservation 
topics. Focus on educational and 
water quality materials.

February 
13-15, 
2015

1,500 GP, YT, R, C

Charleston 
County

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

EXHIBITS, The Black Expo 2015: 
Informational handouts and 
giveaways accompanied stormwater 
education program discussion at 
this event held at the the North 
Charleston Colesium. 

March 14, 
2015 85 GP

Berkeley 
County

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

EXHIBITS: Naturescope/Kids Who 
Care; Enviroscape activity as 
part of the Berkeley County K-5 
Naturescope “Kids Who Care” 
program.

April 9, 
2015 2,000 YT

Santee Cooper Clemson 
Carolina Clear

EXHIBITS: Santee Cooper Earth 
Day Festival; Discussed ACSEC 
programming and opportunities with 
Santee Cooper employees. 

April 15, 
2015 250 GP, R

Medical 
University of 
South Carolina

Clemson 
Carolina Clear, 
Community 
Pride, Inc.

MUSC Earth Day Festival: Hosted on 
the MUSC campus; multiple ACSEC 
partners were present to provide 
information to MUSC staff, students, 
visitors and general public. 

April 15, 
2015 1,000 HE, GP, R, 

YT

Public Events (Indirect)
FaIrS anD FeSTIValS

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



28

leaD PrO-
VIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Charleston 
County Multiple

EXHIBITS: Charleston County Earth Day 
Festival; The festival is a hands-on, science 
based-experience with multiple ACSEC 
education partners provided information on 
watershed stewardship. 

April 15, 
2015 1,500 GP, R, YT

Town of 
Mount 
Pleasant

Clemson 
Carolina Clear, 
Charleston 
Waterkeeper

EXHIBITS: Shem Dig; With twenty booths 
representing multiple ACSEC partners, 
the Shem Dig was hosted at Shem Creek 
Park along the boardwalk. Visitors learned 
how to protect area waterways through 
interactive exhibits.

May 10, 
2015 150 GP, R, YT, 

BO

Ashley Scenic 
River Advisory 
Committee

Multiple

EXHIBITS: Oakbrook Ashley Riverfest;  Event 
held along the Ashley River at Jessen Boat 
Landing & Colonial Dorchester State Park. 
Participants meet representatives from 
various natural resource organizations.

May 10, 
2015 2,000 GP, R, YT, 

BO

Charleston 
Green Fair Multiple

EXHIBITS: Charleston Green Fair; Held at 
James Island County Park, Fair provides a 
venue for participants to learn more about 
environmental stewardship. ACSEC tabled 
the event and provided information on 
watershed stewardship topics. 

September 
20, 2015 3,000 GP, R, YT

Charleston 
County

Clemson 
Carolina Clear

EXHIBITS: Truck or Treat; Held at the North 
Charleston Coliseum. The Enviroscape was 
used to discuss community connections to 
waterways with youth. 

October 
17, 2015 525 YT

Medical 
University 
of South 
Carolina

Multiple

EXHIBITS: Charleston Arbor Day; Hosted on 
the MUSC campus; multiple ACSEC partners 
were present to provide information to 
MUSC staff, students, visitors and general 
public.

December 
2, 2015 700 HE, GP, R

Public Events (Indirect) continued
FaIrS anD FeSTIValS

Public Education

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



29

Public Education

In-Person, Phone, Email (Direct)

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Clemson 
Extension, Tri-
County
Master 
Gardeners

 

In-Person, Phone, Email: In the Tri-
County, Clemson Extension Agents 
and Master Gardeners answered 
questions relating to a variety of 
home landscaping issues; topics in-
cluding compost, mulch, fertilizers, 
native plants, irrigation, etc.

Continuous 49,000 GP, R, C

Clemson 
Extension

In-Person, Phone, Email: Clemson 
Extension Agents answered 
questions and provided services to 
a variety of home owners, pond 
owners, commercial, and teachers 
throughout the Tri-county area.

Continuous 500 PO, R, C, 
YT 

Clemson 
Extension, 
Clemson’s 
Agricultural 
Service Lab

Soil Samples: Clemson Extension, 
in cooperation with Clemson’s 
Agricultural Service Lab processed 
soil samples for the Tri-county 
residents and commercial audiences.

Continuous Tri-County Total: 
4,426 R, C

The charleston Tri-county area is home to 12 clemson extension agents 
and nearly 450 active master gardeners. Throughout the year, Extension 
Agents and Master Gardeners in the Berkeley, Charleston and Dorchester 
County Extension offices respond to calls, walk-ins and emails from the 
public, as well as field questions during public events. Information is 
requested by individuals representing both the private and commercial 
sector, with diverse interests ranging from agriculture, forestry, home 
landscaping, horticulture and pond management. Extension offices also 
provide services in concert with the University, including processing soil 
samples, irrigation water analysis, plant and weed identification and 
identification of plant problems. These direct contacts with the public 
yield some of the most positive results in addressing specific concerns and 
problems, most of which relate to water quality at some level. 

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



30

Public Education

Presentations (Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

SCDNR SCORE

PRESENTATION: “Oysters as living 
shorelines” on the water quality, shoreline 
stabilization and habitat effects of oyster 
reefs (5 separate presentations).

Continuous 125 R, HE

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

PRESENTATION: Presentation on 
stormwater pond management and new 
resources available through Clemson 
Extension, provided to “SC Vegetation 
Management Association” annual meeting

January 8, 
2015 200 GP, SP, C

Charleston 
County Soil 
and Water 
Conservation 
District

PRESENTATION: Presentation provided to 
legislators on program updates and water 
quality initatives through statewide Soil 
and Conservation Districts.

February 
24, 2015 310 EO

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

PRESENTATION: Presentation to Moncks 
Corner Rotary Club on community water 
resources and actions to protect water 
quality.

March 5, 
2015 24 GP, R

Charleston 
County Soil 
and Water 
Conservation 
District

PRESENTATION: Presentation at the 
Charleston District’s Environmental 
Awards Recognition Program  
honored outstanding educators and 
Conservationists who promote stormwater, 
water and soil quality conservation issues. 

June 2, 
2015 50 GP, R, YT, EO

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

PRESENTATION: Presentation provided to 
Ashland Plantation HOA Garden Club on 
the benefits of shoreline plantings for 
stormwater ponds.

June 12, 
2015 10 R

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

SC Native 
Plant Society

PRESENTATION: “Rainwater Harvesting 
101” presentation provided at SCNPS 
Symposium; presentation describes the 
basic premisis of rainwater harvesting

June 13, 
2015 20 GP, R, C

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

PRESENTATION: Presentation to Hickory 
Hill Garden Club on rain garden design in 
residential landscape.

October 1, 
2015 15 GP, R

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

PRESENTATION: Presentation at the SC 
Community Association Insitutute’s Annual 
Conference on purpose of stormwater 
ponds and maintenance needs

October 1, 
2015 120 GP, SP, C, R

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



31

Public Education

Presentations (Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

ACE Basin 
NERR CTP, 
SC Sea Grant

PRESENTATION: “Resources for Your 
Community” presentation at the 
“Neighbors for Clean Water Stormwater 
Pond Conference” provided information 
on stormwater pond management 
resources.

October 
22, 2015 20 GP, SP, C, R, 

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

ACE Basin 
NERR CTP, 
SC Sea Grant

PRESENTATION: “Upland Management: 
Protecting Water Quality Before the Pond” 
presentation at the “Neighbors for Clean 
Water Stormwater Pond Conference” 
provided information on stormwater pond 
management resources.

October 
22, 2015 22 GP, SP, C, R,

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

ACE Basin 
NERR CTP, 
SC Sea Grant

PRESENTATION: “Shorescaping for Healthy 
Ponds” presentation at the “Neighbors 
for Clean Water Stormwater Pond 
Conference” provided information on 
benefits of shorelines buffers as well as 
installation and design tips.

October 
22, 2015 40 GP, SP, C, R,

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



32

Youth Presentations (Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

SC DNR 
SCORE

YOUTH PRESENTATION: “Oysters as living 
shorelines”; water quality, shoreline stabilization 
and habitat benefits of oyster reefs.

Continuous 824 YT

Keep 
Charleston 
Beautiful

Palmetto 
Pride

YOUTH PRESENTATION: School-based litter 
preventation programs for grades K-8; 18 
programs held in 2015

Continuous 1,000 YT

Charleston 
Waterkeeper

YOUTH PRESENTATION: In-School Education 
Program for youth focused on waterway 
protection; 12 programs held in 2015

Continuous 578 YT

Keep 
Dorchester 
County 
Beautiful

Dorchester 
County

YOUTH PRESENTATION: Youth education program 
focused on recyling and litter prevention. Continuous 478 YT

SC Sea Grant 
Consortium

YOUTH PRESENTATION: Enviroscape model used 
with James Island Elementary School students 
to discuss community connection with local 
waterways.

January 
22, 2015 24 YT

Charleston 
County Soil 
and Water 
Conservation 
District

NRCS

YOUTH PRESENTATION: Presentation provided 
at Math & Science Fair at Eaglenest Elementary 
School. A coastal Watershed Demonstration was 
shown to attending students and parents.

March 5, 
2015 350 YT

SC Sea Grant 
Consortium

YOUTH PRESENTATION: Enviroscape model used 
with CE Williams Elementary School students 
to discuss community connection with local 
waterways.

March 25, 
2015 110 YT

Charleston 
County Soil 
and Water 
Conservation 
District

YOUTH PRESENTATION: “Essay Award 
Presentations;” Education outreach awards 
presented to and presentations by students, 
teachers, and families on water quality topics.

May 26 to 
June 3, 
2015

385 YT, R

Public Education

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



33

Youth Presentations (Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Mount 
Pleasant 
Waterworks

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

YOUTH PRESENTATION: Presentation using 
the Enviroscape model to teach youth 
about their connection to community 
waterways. 

September 
17, 2015 30 YT

Charleston 
County School 
District

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

YOUTH PRESENTATION: “Life in a 
Watershed” presentation provided 
to youth at the CCSD’s Sustainability 
Symposium; students learned about our 
shared connection with local waterways 
and action to protect.

September 
18, 2015 350 YT

SC Sea Grant 
Consortium

YOUTH PRESENTATION: Enviroscape model 
used with Mitchell Elementary School 
students to discuss community connection 
with local waterways.

October 
14, 2015 32 YT

Ashley Hall 
School

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

YOUTH PRESENTATION: Ashley Hall 
teachers worked with the Enviroscape 
model to discuss stormwater and 
actions to protect water quality in the 
community.

October 
26, 2015 150 YT

SC Sea Grant 
Consortium

YOUTH PRESENTATION: Enviroscape model 
used with Whitesides Elementary School 
students to discuss community connection 
with local waterways.

October 
27, 2015 87 YT

Town of Mount 
Pleasant, 
Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

YOUTH PRESENTATION: Students at Cario 
Middle School learned about watershed 
stewardship through the interactive and 
hands-on Stormwater Jeopardy! activity.

October 
29-30, 
2015

200 YT

Charleston 
County Soil 
and Water 
Conservation 
District

YOUTH PRESENTATION: “Twiggy the Twig” 
visited area schools to discuss benefits of 
trees to communities, including their role 
in stormwater management.

December 
4, 2015 115 YT

Public Education

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



34

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Clemson 
Extension; Tri-
County Master 
Gardener 
Association

WORKSHOP: Carolina Yard Gardening Series, 
“Healthy Soils” edition; Participants learned 
about aspects of soil health, including best 
practices for fertilizer application.

March 14, 
2015 100 GP, R

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

Berkeley 
County, Keep 
Hanahan 
Beautiful

WORKSHOP: A rain garden workshop for 
homeowners including a rain garden 
installation at Berkeley County’s Hanahan 
Library.

May 27, 
2015 15 GP, R

Clemson 
Extension; Tri-
County Master 
Gardener 
Association; 
Carolina Clear

WORKSHOP: Carolina Yard Gardening 
Series, “Water-Wise Gardening” edition; 
Participants learned a variety of water 
smart practices for landscaping. Sessions 
included the lecture and hands-on discussion 
of rain garden design, installation, and 
maintenance, entitled “Somewhere Over the 
Rain Garden”.

June 6, 
2015 50 GP, R

Workshops - Residential Audiences (Direct)

Public Education

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



35

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Charleston 
County Soil 
and Water 
Conservation 
District

SC DNR

WORKSHOP: Hands-on outdoor environmental 
camp that provides the knowledge and 
appreciatiion needed to protect and wisely use 
our natural resources. Instruction is given in areas 
of fisheries, water quality, and other related 
natural resource topics.

June 
21-27, 
2015

150 YT

SC Sea Grant 
Consortium

SC DNR, 
Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

WORKSHOP: From Seeds to Shoreline (S2S) 
Teacher Workshops (2): Two full-day trainings 
held at the Fort Johnson Marine Center. Provided 
curriculum and step-by-step information for 
teachers on how to grow Spartina alterniflora 
with students. Workshop allowed for hands-
on training opportunities including greenhouse 
construction and salt marsh exploration. 
Presentations included “Carolina Schoolyards” and 
“The Salt Marsh Watershed.”

June 24, 
2015; 
June 
25, 2015

21; 17 YT

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

Master 
Naturalist 
Program

WORKSHOP: Naturalist Gardening for the Green 
Thumb workshop held as part of the SC Master 
Naturalist Annual Conference. This workshop 
focused on best practices in the home landscape 
and included a rain garden installation.

October 
9, 2015 14 GP, R

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear, 
ACE Basin 
NERR CTP

Charleston 
County

WORKSHOP: Shorescaping Workshop: Planted 
Shorelines For Your Pond; Half-day workshop for 
pond owners and managers focused on shoreline 
management for stormwater ponds. Workshop 
included classroom lecture and shoreline plant 
installation at a pond on Charleston County’s  
Public Services Building complex.

October 
14, 2015 19 GP, R, SP

Workshops - Residential Audiences (Direct)

Public Education

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



36

Workshops - Professional Audiences (Direct)

Public Education

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

ACE Basin NERR 
CTP

North Inlet 
Winyah Bay 
NERR CTP

WORKSHOP: Breaking Through 
Barriers; The Breaking Through 
Barriers series provided big 
concepts and practical tips to 
help professionals communicate 
environmental issues with multiple 
audiences. 

January 14, 
2015 62 T, EA

Clemson 
University

 Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

WORKSHOP: 2015 Turf School; All-
day training on turf management 
for commercial landscapers; topics 
included fertilizer application and 
integrated pest management.

February 10, 
2015 40 C

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

Dorchester 
County, Keep 
Dorchester 
County 
Beautiful

WORKSHOP: A rain garden workshop 
geared for public works and 
stormwater department staff; the 
training included an installation of a 
rain garden at a Dorchester County 
Government Building.

May 21, 2015 16 EA, T

ACE Basin NERR 
CTP

Army Corps of 
Engineers

WORKSHOP: Coastal Wetlands 
Identification; This one-day training 
sought to increase the ability of 
local decision-makers in identifying 
wetlands and wetland boundaries 
based on the hydrologic, soil, and 
vegetative indicators commonly 
found in Lowcountry wetlands. 
Training included both classroom 
and field instruction.

November 17, 
2015 14 EA, T

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



37

Training	and	Certifications	(Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Clemson 
University  

TRAININGS: Clemson’s Department of Pesticide 
Regulation provides training and certification for 
commercial, non-commercial and private applicator 
licenses. Number of impacts represents the number 
of Tri-County area licensed applicators current 
through 2015.

Certification 
exams given 
quarterly

1135 C, R, GP, 
SP

Clemson 
University

TRAININGS: Clemson provides training and 
certification for the Certified Erosion Prevention 
and Sediment Control Inspector (CEPSCI) program to 
assist in pollution prevention control on construction 
projects. Number of impacts represents the number 
of Tri-County certifications current through 2015.

Recertification 
class taught 
June 10, 2015

151 C, T

Land disturbing activities  and sediment pollution have significant 
potential to adversely impact water quality. The Certified Erosion 
Prevention and Sediment Control Inspector (CEPSCI) program 
educates field personnel on the proper installation, maintenance 
and inspection of erosion prevention and sediment control measures. 

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

 

TRAININGS: Carolina Clean Watershed Restaurant 
program trains and certifies restaurants who 
incorporate best management practices for 
stormwater pollution prevention into their facility 
and everyday operations.To date, two restaurants 
have been certified with two others taking action 
to improve their site. Impact numbers represent 
number of upper management, owners and staff 
trained as part of the program.

Continually 20 C

Triangle Char and Bar in West Ashley and Mount 
Pleasant were recognized as the first Carolina 
Clean Wateshed Restaurants! See Highlight, pg 
X, for more information on the program and 
restaurant involvement. 

Public Education

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



38

Charleston 
County Park 
and Recreation 
Commission

Clemson 
Extension, 
College of 
Charleston, 
SCDNR

TRAININGS: Master Naturalist 
Certification Programs hosted in Spring and 
Fall 2015

Spring 
2015; 
Fall 2015

24 GP, R

Charleston County Park and Recreation Commission is the lead provider 
for the Charleston Area Master Naturalist program. Master Naturalists 
receive training in a 13-week field study course led by a variety of 
experts. Participants learn about coastal ecology by visiting unique 
and diverse habitats. Water resource education is a fundamental 
component of the program, as participants learn about stormwater 
runoff and associated water quality issues. During Year Seven, all 
Master Naturalists in training participated in a rain garden installation 
project. Master Naturalists help disseminate information to the public, 
ideally becoming leaders in their community to support conservation 
and education of coastal resources. 

As part of the Master Gardener (MG) coursework training, information 
and programs are incorporated on both structural and behavioral 
stormwater best management practices (BMPs). Once an individual 
has completed the course, their status remains active by performing 
internship and volunteer hours focused on community outreach. 
MGs are an enormous asset to the Charleston Tri-County area as 
each year this dedicated group of volunteers provide garden and 
landscape information to thousands of people from the public via 
phone, email, office visits, etc. (as reported in “Direct Contacts”, 
p.30). The MGs provided support to the ACSEC during Year Seven in a 
variety of ways including assistance with rain barrel sales, workshops 
and demonstration site projects. 

Training	and	Certifications	(Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Clemson 
Extension 

Tri-County 
Master 
Gardener 
Association, 
Carolina Clear

TRAININGS: Master Gardener Training; A four 
month cerficiation program. Special topics 
include fertilizer application, benefits of native 
plants, stormwater best management practices 
(rain gardens and rainwater harvesting), and 
stormwater ponds. 

Fall 2015 28 GP, R

Public Education

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



39

Training	and	Certifications	(Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear 

TRAININGS: Rain Gardens for Professionals; A full-day 
workshop for landscape professionals that is focused 
on rain garden purpose and design, installation, and 
maintenance. 

Spring 
2015; Fall 
2015

36 GP, R

Public Education

The Rain Gardens for Professionals Workshop is a one-day intensive 
training developed for landscape professionals interested in 
learning more about residential-scale rain garden installation 
and design. The program includes classrom lecture and hands-on 
training, including installing a rain garden at the workshop host 
location. In 2015, the workshop was hosted twice in the Tri-County; 
in the Spring, the ACSEC and ACE Basin NERR CTP partnered with 
Berkeley County and Keep Hanahan Beautiful to offer the training 
at the Hanahan Public Library. In the fall 2015, the workshop 
was hosted in partnership with The Town of Mount Pleasant and 
offered at FIre Station Number 2, located at one of the Town’s 
recreation complexes. This workshop is part of the Carolina 
Rain Garden Intiative and is a requirement to be recognized as 
a Certified Rain Garden Installer. For more information on the 
Carolina Rain Garden Initative, see the highlight on page 40.

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

SC DNR-
SCORE 
Program

TRAININGS: SCORE program trained new volunteers 
to monitor water quality parameters in the 
Charleston Harbor and vicinity. 

Continually 10 GP, YT

Charleston 
Waterkeeper

TRAININGS: Charleston Waterkeeper trained 
new volunteers to monitor water quality in the 
Charleston Harbor as part of their monitoring 
program.

Continually 7 GP

SC Department of Natural Resources’ SC Oyster Restoration and Enhancement (SCORE) program trains volunteers to 
monitor water quality at designated sites around the Charleston Harbor vicinity. Charleston Waterkeeper’s water 
quality monitoring program trains and works with volunteers to measure bacteria presence in popular waterways in the 
Charleston Harbor area. Read more about the impacts of these programs in the “Public Involvement “ section of this 
report.    

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



40

Year Seven Highlight

The Carolina Rain Garden Initiative was piloted and launched in the 
ACSEC region in 2015 with the objective of increasing the number 
of residential-scale “pocket” rain gardens in South Carolina. The 
program brings together new and existing resources that provide 
awareness and practical information on the practice, installation 
and maintenance of rain gardens. 

As part of this initiative, one of the newly developed resources is 
the Professional Rain Garden Design and Installer Certification 
Program, which was piloted in the Berkeley, Charleston, and 
Dorchester County region in 2015. This full-day training was hosted at 
a Berkeley County Library in spring 2015 and a Town of Mount Pleasant 
Fire Station in fall 2015 with a total of 36 participants attending, 
representing 16 private sector businesses, 12 university staff, ten 
county/municipal government and two non-profit organizations. 
Individuals who attended this training have the option to become a 
Certified Rain Garden Design and Installer by submitting their rain 
garden portfolio to a review committee. In 2015, four professionals 
have become certified with more expected in 2016; a list of those 
recognized is provided on the Carolina Rain Garden Initiative website: 
www.clemson.edu/extension/raingarden/professional.html

Also as part of the Carolina Rain Garden Initiative, the Virtual rain 
garden was developed over the course of 2015; created to provide 
a step-by-step approach for rain garden design, installation and 
maintenance. This series of 17 short videos guides the viewer through 
all aspects rain gardening including site assessment, soil analysis, 
rain garden sizing, design, plant selection, maintenance and more. 
The Virtual Rain Garden is intended to assist with addressing flooding 
and erosion issues in the home landscape and provide information 
to those interested in environmentally friendly gardening practices. 

Other Carolina Rain Garden Initiative’s resources, including the rain 
garden Tracker, rain garden of the month,  and plant selection 
tools, along with the Virtual Rain Garden can all be viewed at: 
www.clemson.edu/extension/raingarden.

Carolina Rain Garden Initiative 

year SeVen HIgHlIgHTS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



41

Year Seven Highlight

South Carolina’s unique water resources provide for agriculture, 
recreation, tourism, and commercial industry opportunities that help 
support the state’s economy. Recreational and stormwater pond systems 
can play a significant role in watershed function and, if poorly managed, 
may impact the health of the pond and services provided, adjacent 
land values and profitability, and potentially, downstream water quality. 
As the result of a demonstrated demand across the state for in-depth 
and comprehensive pond management resources, including in the ACSEC 
community, the Master Pond Manager course was launched in 2015 
through a partnership between Clemson Extension and Clemson Online. 

The Master Pond Manager (MPM) certification course provides 
participants with the tools to assist in developing an integrated pond 
management approach that provides for healthy pond function and 
water quality. Curriculum incorporates multi-week online and field 
based training, allowing for participants to learn in a self-paced and 
hands-on environment. Course tract can be tailored to the individual 
participant, whether a pond management professional or HOA board 
member tasked with pond management. 

The ACSEC was excited to serve as host for the field days associated with 
the pilot offering of the Master Pond Manager class in Spring 2015. Field 
site locations were held at Charleston County and Charleston County 
Park and Recreationa Commission facilities and included a shoreline 
planting installation at a newly retrofitted stormwater pond. More 
than 30 participants across the state took part in the pilot Master Pond 
Manager offering, resulting in the certification of 11 professionals. 

The course was offered again in the Fall 2015, with 23 individuals 
participating representing South Carolina, Georgia, and North Carolina. 
Field days were hosted in the Waccamaw region, at the Baruch Institute 
and Horry County Government locations. 

With a growing demand for the course across the region, look for 
another course to be hosted in the Spring/Summer of 2016! For 
more information on the Master Pond Manager program, visit:  
 www.clemson.edu/watershed/mpm. 

Master Pond Manager

year SeVen HIgHlIgHTS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



42

Training	and	Certifications	(Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Clemson 
Extension, 
Clemson 
Online, 
Center for 
Watershed 
Excellence

Multiple

HYBRID TRAINING: Master Pond Manager; Online and 
field-based training in stormwater and recreational 
pond management. The class was offered twice in 
2015; there were 52 total participants with more 
than 20 pursuing certification. 

Spring 
2015; Fall 
2015

52 C, SP, 
R, T

Public Education

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Clemson 
Extension

Carolina 
Clear

HYBRID TRAINING: Post-Construction BMP Inspector; 
Online and field-based training focused on inspection 
and maintenance of best management practices used 
for stormwater management. The class was offered 
once in 2015, with field days hosted at the Trident 
Technical College Campus.

Summer 
2015 35 C, SP, T

The statewide Master Pond  Manager course 
offers research-based pond management 
strategies to pond owners and managers through 
an online classroom and in-person field training. 
The course was offered twice in 2015; in the 
Spring, field days were hosted at the Charleston 
County Park and Recreation Commission and 
Charleston County Government sites. In the fall, 
field days were hosted at Clemson University 
and Horry County Government facilties. For 
more information on the Master Pond Manager, 
see the highlight on page 41.

Another hybrid training offered through 
Clemson Extension, the Post-Construction BMP 
Inspector course is a statewide tehnical training 
with lectures hosted in an online classroom and 
field days sponsored in different communities 
to allow applied learning. In the Summer 2015 
course, field days were hosted at the Trident 
Technical College’s campus where students had 
a chance to discuss and view  bioswales, dry 
detention basins, wet detention basins, green 
roofs, pervious pavement, rainwater harvesting 
and more. 

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



43

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Clemson 
Extension Carolina Clear

ONLINE TRAINING: Carolina Yards 
and Neighborhoods, Online Guide to 
Environmentally Friendly Gardening; Online 
course based on Carolina Yards principles with 
an emphasis on stormwater best practices for 
residential audiences.

Spring 
2015 34 GP, R

Clemson 
Extension

ONLINE TRAINING, Master Gardener Online 
Training: Online hoticulture programs training 
and certifying Master Gardeners. Two online 
classes were offered in 2015.

Spring 
2015;  
Fall 2015

78 GP, R

The Carolina Yards and Neighborhoods Online Guide to Environmentally Friendly 
Gardening is a five-week course that was first piloted in the Charleston Tri-
County area during Spring 2013. Deemed as a success, the class is now offered 
statewide. Participants learn about the Carolina Yards principles through interactive 
presentations and discussion forums, complete tasks in their own home landscape 
and have the opportunity to certify their yard as a “Carolina Yard.”

Training	and	Certifications	(Direct)

Public Education

Conferences (Direct)
leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

SC Statewide 
Conservation 
Districts

Charleston 
County Soil 
and Water 
Conservation 
District

CONFERENCE: Conservation District’s Annual 
Partnership Conference; This event highlights 
awards and achievements accomplished in 
conservation and water quality. Presentations 
and Displays are provided with brochures 
and handouts on water quality and other 
conservation topics. Speakers addressed ways 
to improve water quality initiatives at this 
event.

February 
24-25, 
2015

 300 GP, EA, T

PublIc eDucaTIOn
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



44

Public Involvement

Litter Sweeps (Direct)
leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

SC Sea Grant 
Consortium SC DNR LITTER SWEEPS: Beach Sweep/River 

Sweep
September 
15, 2015 1,631 GP, R, C

During the 2015 Beach Sweep/River Sweep litter cleanup, 1,631 
volunteers in Berkeley, Charleston, and Dorchester Counties 
collected 16,822 pounds of litter from the local beaches, 
waterways, and surrounding uplands. A total of 85.44 miles of 
shoreline were cleaned. By participating in Beach Sweep/River 
Sweep, the public is more informed about natural resource 
issues, such as litter’s detrimental effects on the landscape and 
wildlife, and people are empowered to take action and become 
environmental stewards. Results are available online at: 
www.scseagrant.org

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

SC Sea Grant 
Consortium Multiple LITTER SWEEPS: Clean Marine April 25, 

2015 66 GP, R, C

During 2015, SC Sea Grant Consortium worked with multiple 
ACSEC partners, including Charleston County Park and Recreation 
Commission, Charleston Waterkeeper, SC DNR, Clemson Extension, 
Keep Charleston Beautiful and the City of Charleston to host the 
Clean Marine event series. Clean Marine focused on reducing and 
preventing marine debris in the Charleston Harbor and surrounding 
waterways by sponsoring litter dropoff events, removing marine 
debris from waterways, and implementing an anti-litter campaign. 
A two-day litter collection event included nine drop-off sites at 
popular public boat ramps; 66 volunteers were on hand to help 
receive 9.64 tons of material and equipment, like fishing gear, 
used oil, and event boats, from residents. Through this event, the 
volunteers helped protect our waterways by keeping this type of 
material and equipment from becoming marine debris.

PublIc InVOlVemenT
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



45

Keep Charleston Beautiful (KCB) promotes 
the cleanliness and beautification of the 
City of Charleston through education, public 
awareness and community involvement. KCB 
strives to teach litter prevention and waste 
responsibility through  education programs 
and public awareness campaigns, all of which 
are offered free of charge to the community. 
During the 2015 reporting year, kcb organized 
1,877 citizens whom volunteered 3797 hours 
of community service and removed 40,321 
pounds of trash. 

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Keep 
Charleston 
Beautiful (KCB)

Multiple
LITTER SWEEP: Community groups host 
two hour cleanups in marshes, parks and 
green spaces. 

Continuous 1,877 GP, HE, R, 
C, YT

Keep Charleston 
Beautiful (KCB) CARTA

LITTER SWEEP, Adopt-A-Stop: Volunteers 
collect litter and service trash cans once a 
week at local CARTA bus stops.

Continuous 13 GP

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number OF 

ImPacTS
TargeT 

auDIence

Keep 
Dorchester 
County
Beautiful

 Multiple 

LITTER SWEEP: Community cleanups were 
hosted in partnership with concerned 
citizen groups to remove litter along area 
waterways and roadways. 

Continuous 228
GP, R, YT, 
C

Keep Dorchester County Beautiful (KDCB) promotes 
public interest in the general improvement of the 
environment of Dorchester County and coordinates 
programs for litter control and recycling. During the 
2015 reporting year, kDcb organized 228 citizens 
whom removed 12,160 pounds of trash from 
roadways and waterways.

Public Involvement

Litter Sweeps (Direct) 

PublIc InVOlVemenT
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



46

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number OF 

ImPacTS
TargeT 

auDIence

DHEC-OCRM

 Surfrider 
Foundation 
Charleston 
Chapter, Folly 
Green, NOAA

LITTER SWEEP: “Litter Butt Study”; 
Volunteers collected littered ciga-
rette butts from Folly Beach public 
spaces and completed a survey on 
prevalence and impact in landscape.

September 
2, 2015; 
September 
8, 2015

29 GP, R, YT, C

The Charleston Chapter of The Surfrider Foundation 
is a volunteer organization that concentrates on 
reducing litter in area beaches and waterways and 
works to raise awareness of the importance of 
ocean stewardship. The Charleston Chapter of The 
Surfrider Foundation has roughly 300 members and 
offers educational programming and litter removal 
efforts throughout the year. A highlight for 2015 
included the “Litter Butt Study”. 

Litter Sweeps (Direct)

Public Involvement

Initiated in South Carolina in 1988, the Adopt-A-Highway program utilizes 
volunteered time of caring citizens to combat litter along SC highways. The 
program eliminates thousands of pounds of debris from roadsides, which can 
end up in nearby waterways, as well as improve South Carolina’s scenic beauty. 
During the 2015, X volunteers X adopted miles of highway to remove X 
pounds of litter in the Tri-county.

County Total Pounds 
Collected

Total Miles 
Adopted

Total Groups 
Participating

Total Volunteers 
Participating

Berkeley

Charleston 64,442 412 206 2,898

Dorchester

Totals

2015 aDOPT-a-HIgHWay TOTalS FOr TrI-cOunTy

leaD PrOVIDer SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Adopt-a-Highway, 
Community Pride Inc, 
Clemson Extension

SC DOT

LITTER SWEEPS: Adopt-a-Highway 
conducts four sweeps seasonally 
each year. Volunteers adopt a 2 mile 
stretch of highway. 

Quarterly GP, R, C

PublIc InVOlVemenT
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



47

Public Involvement

Storm Drain Marking (Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

Charles 
Towne 
Montessori

STORM DRAIN MARKING: The 12 volunteers 
worked to mark 30 storm drains along the West 
Ashley Greenway.

Feburary 
18, 2015 12 YT

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

Charleston 
Good

STORM DRAIN MARKING: The five volunteers 
worked to mark 25 storm drains in Downtown 
Charleston.

March 9, 
2015 5 GP, R

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

Ashley Hall 
School

STORM DRAIN MARKING: The 82 volunteers 
worked to mark 50 storm drains in Downtown 
Charleston.

March 20, 
2015 82 YT

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

STORM DRAIN MARKING: A volunteer marked 
four storm drains along Dorchester Road.

September 
8, 2015 1 R

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

Surfrider 
Foundation

STORM DRAIN MARKING: The 10 volunteers 
worked to mark 26 storm drains along Middle 
Street on Sullivan’s Island. 

November 
16, 2015 10 GP, R, C

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

College of 
Charleston

STORM DRAIN MARKING: The 18 volunteers 
marked 94 storm drains in downtown 
Charleston.

November 
21, 2015 18 HE

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

College of 
Charleston

STORM DRAIN MARKING: The eight volunteers 
marked 39 storm drains in downtown 
Charleston. 

December 
5, 2015 8 HE

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

Ashley Hall 
School

STORM DRAIN MARKING: The 24 volunteers  
marked 13 storm drains around Ashley Hall 
School.

December 
15, 2015 24 YT

During the 2015 reporting year, 160 individuals participated in storm drain marking, resulting in 281 newly 
marked storm drains in the Tri-county. Messaging on both the plastic and metal storm drain markers markers read 
“Don’t Pollute, Flows to Waterways” as a reminder. Reported impact numbers are conservative as nearly all houses or 
businesses located along marking routes received a door hanger with information on watershed stewardship. 

PublIc InVOlVemenT
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



48

Best Management Practice Installations (Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Clemson 
Extension

Cape Romain 
Environmental 
Education 
Charter School 
(CREEC)

RAIN GARDEN INSTALLATION: As 
part of the Carolina Schoolyards 
Initiative, the ACSEC worked with 
students and teachers at CREEC to 
install a rain garden. 

Spring 2015
See Site 
Development, 
p. 22

YT

Clemson 
Extension, 
CCPRC

RAIN GARDEN INSTALLATION: 
Participants in the Spring 2015 
Master Naturalist in Training program 
helped to install a rain garden at the 
CREC “Ed Shed.”

Spring 2015 See Training, 
p. 38 GP, R

Charleston 
County

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear, 
ACE Basin 
NERR CTP

SHORESCAPING INSTALLATION: As 
part of the Master Pond Manager 
class and Shorescaping Workshop, 
a planted shoreline was installed 
by program participants at the 
Charleston County Public Services 
Building.

Spring 
2015; 
October 
14, 2015

See Training 
(p.35) and 
Workshops 
(p.42) 

SP, R, C, 
EA, T

Dorchester 
County, Keep 
Dorchester 
County 
Beautiful

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina Clear

RAIN GARDEN INSTALLATION: “Rain 
Garden Workshop for Public Works” 
As part of this workshop, a rain 
garden was installed at a Dorchester 
County Government building by 
Public Works staff and volunteers 
with Keep Dorchester County 
Beautiful. 

May 21, 
2015

See Workshops 
(p. 34) and 
Trainings (p. 39)

T, EA

Public Involvement

The installation of best management practices in trainings and workshops allows residential, commercial and youth 
audiences the opportunity to learn about practices through hands-on experience and involvement. For the practices  
installed and included as part of this “Best Management Practice Installation” section, please use the associated 
workshop, presentation, site development or training participant impact highlighted in the “Public Education” 
chapter of this report. 

PublIc InVOlVemenT
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



49

Public Involvement

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Berkeley 
County, 
Keep 
Hanahan 
Beautiful

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

RAIN GARDEN INSTALLATION: As part 
of trainings associated with the Rain 
Garden for Professionals program, 
as well as a residential workshop 
training for homeowners, a rain 
garden was installed by participants 
at the Hanahan Library.

May 27, 
2015

See Training, 
p. 39 GP, R, C

Clemson 
Extension, 
Camp St. 
Christopher

Charleston 
County 
Park and 
Recreation 
Commission 

RAIN GARDEN INSTALLATON: A rain 
garden was installed with Master 
Naturalists at the “Gardening for 
the Green Thumb” program, held 
at Camp St. Christopher and part 
of the SC Master Naturalist Annual 
Conference.

October 9, 
2015

See 
Presentations, 
p. 35

GP, G

Clemson 
Extension, 
Tri-County 
Master 
Gardener 
Association

Carolina 
Clear

RAIN GARDEN INSTALLATION: As part 
of the Fall 2015 Master Gardener in 
training program, a rain garden  was 
installed at the Clemson Research 
and Education Center. 

October 
29, 2015

See Training, 
p. 38 GP, R

Town of 
Mount 
Pleasant

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear, ACE 
Basin NERR 
CTP

RAIN GARDEN INSTALLATION: 
Participants involved in the Fall 
2015 Rain Garden for Proefessionals 
program helped to install a rain 
garden at Fire Station #2 in Mount 
Pleasant. 

November 
5, 2015

See Training, 
p. 39 GP, R, C

Best Management Practice Installations (Direct)

PublIc InVOlVemenT
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



50

Public Involvement

Oyster Reef Construction (Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

SC DNR 
SCORE Multiple

OYSTER REEF CONSTRUCTION: SCORE facilitated 
28 oyster reef building events and 32 oyster 
bagging events.

Continuous 2,397 GP, R, YT, 
HE

The SC DNR’s South Carolina Oyster Restoration and 
Enhancement (SCORE) program coordinates oyster shell 
recycling and community-based restoration. During the 
2015 ACSEC reporting year, SCORE utilized 1,149 individuals 
volunteering 2,092 hours of time to construct the bags for 
oyster reef builds. An additional 1,248 people donated 
2,615 hours of volunteer time to construct oyster reefs in 
the Berkeley, Charleston, and Dorchester County areas. 
The total combined number of volunteers and hours for 
bagging oyster shell and reef building events was 2,397 
volunteers donating 4,707 hours. A component of the 
SCORE volunteer events includes presentation or discussion 
on the impacts of stormwater on the Lowcountry’s oyster 
reefs. The SCORE program not only involves the public and 
provides awareness of water quality and the need to recycle 
oysters, but the reefs themselves help to improve water 
quality as new oysters inhabit them and filter the water. 

Water Quality Monitoring (Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

SC DNR 
SCORE Multiple

MONITORING: SCORE program utilized trained 
volunteers to gather water quality parameters 
at multiple sites. During this reporting year, 
32 volunteers donated 250 hours to monitor 
water quality in the Tri-County area at twelve 
locations. Data can be found at:  
score.dnr.sc.gov.

Weekly - 
Monthly 32 GP, R, HE

Charleston 
Waterkeeper

College of 
Charleston

MONITORING: Charleston Waterkeeper 
implements a volunteer-based water quality 
monitoring program to conduct bacteria 
monitoring in the Charleston Harbor vacinity. 
In 2015, eight volunteers participated in 
monitoring 15 sites. Data can be found at: 
charlestonwaterkeeper.org

Weekly - 
Monthly 15 GP, B

PublIc InVOlVemenT
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



51

Native Plant Sales (Direct) 
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

SC Native 
Plants 
Society

 
NATIVE PLANT SALE: The biannual SCNPS native 
plant sale is open to the public and offers a 
variety of native plants for home landscaping.

February  
226, 
2015; 
October 
24, 2015

500 GP, R,

Public Involvement

Landscaping with native plants requires little to no fertilizer, 
and typically requires less irrigation, or no irrigation once 
established. Therefore, use of native plants in landscaping 
is considered an important best management practice for 
protecting water resources. The Lowcountry Chapter of the 
Native Plant Society sponsors two native plant sales per year; 
the plant sales are open to the public, free of charge, and 
provide an opportunity to purchase native plants for home 
landscaping that may not be readily available otherwise. 

Rain Barrel Sales (Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Rainwater 
Solutions, 
Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

Charleston 
County, 
City of Goose 
Creek, 
Town of 
Summerville 

RAIN BARREL SALE: ACSEC general public sale held 
at three centralized locations in the Tri-County; 
501 barrels were sold at a discounted rate 
through partnership with Rainwater Solutions and 
community partners.

May 28-
30, 2015 501 GP, R

Rainwater harvesting provides a platform to increase 
awarness of impervious surfaces, volume of stormwater runoff 
and potential pollutants that may be picked up with runoff 
when water is unable to infiltrate. Furthermore, harvested 
rainwater can be utilized for a number of household needs, 
primarily irrigation, to help conserve water. In order to raise 
awareness about the practice, the ACSEC partnered with 
Rainwater Solutions to provide Ivy Rain Barrels at a discounted 
price to the general public. Through this partnership, there 
were 501 rain barrels purchased in the ashley cooper region 
during the Spring 2015 sale. Funds generated from the ACSEC 
rain barrel program are utilized to support community-based 
rainwater harvesting education projects and awareness. 

PublIc InVOlVemenT
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



52

Yard	Certification	Programs	(Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Clemson 
Extension 
Service, 
Carolina 
Clear

 

Yard Certification Program: Carolina Yards is a yard 
certification program offered by Clemson Extension 
Service that encourages environmentally friendly 
gardening practices. In the Tri-County, there are 61 
yards currently certified through the program, with 
30 of those yards certified in 2015 alone.

Continuous 61 R

Surfrider 
Foundation

Charleston 
Chapter 
of the 
Surfrider 
Foundation

Yard Certification Program: Ocean Friendly 
Gardens is a yard certification program offered 
by Surfrider Foundation that encourgaes water 
conservation, permeability and retention in the 
home landscape. 

Continuous 2 R

Public Involvement

Pet Waste Bag Dispenser Programs (Direct)
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Keep 
Charleston 
Beautiful, 
City of 
Charleston

Pet Waste Bag Dispenser Program: Keep Charleston 
Beautiful’s “Pick Up After Your Pet” program has 
sponsored the installation of 100 pet waste bag 
stations with pickup bags in the City of Charleston; 
in 2015, the community used 283,200 bags as part 
of the program.

Continuous 283,200 P

Surfrider 
Foundation

Pet Waste Bag Dispenser Program: Since 2007, 
the Surfrider Foundation has sponsored the “Mutt 
Mitt” program which stocks pet waste pick ups 
in dispenser sites on Folly Beach. In 2015, 30,000 
bags were used by residents and visitors to the 
beach community.

Continuous 30,000 P

To encourage proper pet waste disposal and prevention of bacteria in stormwater runoff, mutliple partners sponsor 
pet waste pickup and dispensing stations in the community. The bags and stations often contain signage on the 
benefits of pet waste pickup and tips for proper disposal. 

PublIc InVOlVemenT
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



53

Boater Pumpout Program (Direct)

In an effort to reduce the discharge of untreated sewage to our waterways, Charleston Waterkeeper, in partnership 
with SCDNR’s Clean Vessel Act Program, offers a free sewage pumpout program to boat owners in the Charleston 
Harbor community. In 2015, the charleston Waterkeeper’s “no. 2” pumpout boat has helped properly dispose 
of 19,960 gallons of sewage from boat sanitary waste tanks through 310 pumpouts. Currently, the “No. 2” 
services 76 regular customers with 20 of those new as of 2015. 

leaD 
PrOVIDer

SuPPOrTIng 
ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  

OF ImPacTS
TargeT  

auDIence

Charleston 
Waterkeeper SCDNR 

BOAT PUMPOUT PROGRAM: Charleston 
Waterkeeper provides a sewage pumpout 
service to boat owners in the Charleston 
Harbor.

Continuous 76 B

Youth Involvement Events (Direct) 
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Charleston 
County Soil 
and Water 
Conservation 
District

SC DNR; 
state-wide 
conservation 
districts 

WORKSHOP: SC Envirothon; Youth 
educational week-long program at Sandhills 
Research Center in Columbia. Students study 
soils, water quality, aquatics, and other 
conservation topics. 

May 1, 
2015 126 (local) YT

PublIc InVOlVemenT
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



54

Public Involvement

Youth Involvement Events (Direct) 
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

Clemson 
Extension, 
Carolina 
Clear

SC Sea Grant 
Consortium, 
Multiple

YOUTH INVOLVEMENT: 4-H2O “Exploring 
Lowcountry Waterways” Summer Camp 
for youth ages 10-13 and is a week 
long day camp emphasizing watershed 
stewardship and water resource 
protection. 

June 15-19, 2015; 
July 20-24, 2015 42 YT

The 4-H2O Exploration Program is a statewide effort implemented by 

Clemson University Cooperative Extension Service and provides hands-

on, experiential learning opportunities with emphasis on water quality, 

conservation and watershed stewardship. In the ACSEC region, the 4-H2O 

program is entitled “Exploring Lowcountry Waterways” and is available 

to children living in Berkeley, Charleston, and Dorchester Counties. 

During the two week-long sessions, students have the opportunity to 

learn about and travel through local watersheds, from cypress swamps 

to barrier islands. Activities include macroinvertebrate sampling, water 

quality testing, seining, kayaking, fishing, birding and much more. In 

the ACSEC region, Consortium partners play a vital role in the camps’ 

success with partnerships including the SC Sea Grant Consortium, 

SC Department of Natural Resources, Charleston County Park and 

Recreation Commission and others.  

PublIc InVOlVemenT
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



55

Youth Involvement Events (Direct) 
leaD 

PrOVIDer
SuPPOrTIng 

ParTner acTIVITy DaTe number  
OF ImPacTS

TargeT  
auDIence

SC Sea Grant 
Consortium

SC DNR, 
Clemson 
Extension 
Service

YOUTH INVOLVEMENT: From Seeds to Shoreline 
initiative involves students in germination and 
planting of Spartina alterniflora to emphasize 
the significance of the salt marsh and actions 
for clean water.

Continuous 959 YT

From Seeds to Shoreline is the first of its kind, student driven wetland restoration project in South Carolina. 
Led by SC Sea Grant Consortium and offered in partnership with SC Department of Natural Resources and 
Clemson Extension, Seeds to Shoreline is a school program aimed at engaging students in hands-on education 
that includes seed collection, germination, cultivation and planting of Spartina alterniflora, the dominant plant 
in a SC salt marsh. The program creates an opportunity to learn about the importance of salt marsh ecosystems 
and water quality while participating in a community service learning project with emphasis on environmental 
stewardship. Charleston Tri-County schools participating during the 2013-2014 school year included James Island 
Charter, Fort Johnson Middle, Cape Romain Environmental Education Charter School, James Island Middle, 
Mason Prep, Whitesides Elementary, James B. Edwards Elementary, Sullivan’s Island Elementary, Ashley Hall, 
University School of the Lowcountry, Garrett Academy, and Stratford High. collectively, the effort of these 
schools resulted in the transplanting over 3,000 seedlings to multiple local restoration sites. 

Public Involvement

PublIc InVOlVemenT
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



56

Partner Highlight

Effective management of stormwater runoff is especially challenging in the S.C. coastal communities because 
of the low elevation, shallow water tables, continued rise in population, and in the face of climate change and 
sea level rise.  Recent estimates indicate about 21,000 engineered ponds exist in the coastal counties alone, but 
almost no information exists regarding their effectiveness, long-term functionality, maintenance requirements, 
and potential impacts on the adjacent coastal landscape. 

The S.C. Sea Grant Consortium has begun establishing partnerships and implementation of the S.C. Stormwater 
Pond Research and Management Collaborative program to help address these information gaps.  This new Program 
brings together scientists and resource managers from across the state to further investigate and address 
challenges associated with stormwater ponds in the coastal areas.

As part of this effort three products are nearing completion including: a) a geospatial inventory and classification 
of existing stormwater ponds; b) a State of the Knowledge Report, and; c) a strategy for public awareness and 
outreach messaging. Several ACSEC partners are involved with this Sea Grant-lead collaborative and research, 
including: the College of Charleston, the SC Department of Natural Resources and the ACE Basin NERR Coastal 
Training Program, Clemson Extension, and Clemson University. 

SC Sea Grant Consortium: Stormwater Pond Research and 
Management Collaborative

year SeVen HIgHlIgHTS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



57

DIrecT meTHODS Summary, 
TOTal eSTImaTeD ImPacTS: 386,358

Outreach Summary

OuTreacH Summary
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report

Workshops/
Conferences,	  818	  

Public	  
Involvement,	  

325,127	  

Trainings/
CerBficaBons,	  

1,610	  
Direct	  Contacts,	  

53,926	  

PresentaBons,	  
5,191	  

Publica(ons/Ar(cles,	  
336,054	  

Outreach	  Materials,	  
4,225	  

Internet	  Resources,	  
76,985	  

Permanent	  Exhibits,	  
20,415	  

Fairs/Fes(vals,	  20,210	  

Billboards,	  536,148	  

TV/Radio,	  159,743	  

The ACSEC employs indirect outreach methods, 
including mass-media, permanent exhibits, festivals, 
internet, and print publications, to reach diverse 

audiences across the community. In 2015, total 

estimated impacts from acSec indirect outreach 

methods reached 1,153,780 individuals. Indirect 
outreach highights included the Carolina Yard 
billboard series, new permanent exhibits, the 
stormwater pond commercial, and publications 
featured in multiple local and statewide print and 
online news and magazine resources. 

InDIrecT meTHODS Summary, 
TOTal eSTImaTeD ImPacTS: 1,153,780

ACSEC program success is, in part, measured by outreach impacts and represent an estimate of individuals reached 

through direct and indirect education and involvement activities. Total impacts for the year Seven reporting year 

(january 1, 2015-December 31, 2015) total an estimated 1,540,138 individuals.



58

PublIc InVOlVemenT Summary*, 
TOTal eSTImaTeD ImPacTS: 325,127

Outreach Summary

OuTreacH Summary
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report

Direct method impacts include initiatives from direct contacts, presentations, training and professional development, 

certification courses, workshops, and public involvement opportunities. Public involvement is considered to be an 

activity that provided hands-on opportunities for target audiences to take part in stormwater management and 

pollution prevention. estimated impacts in year Seven attributed to direct methods of outreach was 386,672. 
This represents more than a 300% growth from impacts attributed to direct methods reported during Year Six; this 
signficant increase in direct impacts is a result of growth in public involvement opportunities. 

Na#ve	  Plant	  Sales,	  
500	  

Li2er	  Sweeps,	  6,742	  

Oyster	  Reef	  
Construc#on,	  2,397	  

Water	  Quality	  
Monitoring,	  47	  

Youth	  Involvement,	  
1,127	  

BMP	  Installa#ons,	  
314	  

Storm	  Drain	  
Marking,	  160	  

Rain	  Barrel	  
Sales,	  501	  

Yard	  Cer#fica#ons,	  
63	  

Boater	  Pumpout,	  76	  

* Pet waste bag dispenser program impacts, which totaled 313,200, were not 
included in this summary graph in order to show impact of all public involvement 
activities. Impacts of pet waste bag dispenser programs does contribute to the 
total estimated impacts of Public Inovlvement activities. 

In 2015, total impacts attributed to public 

involvement activities grew from 11,704 

individuals reported in year Six, to an 

estimated 325,127 individuals in year Seven. 
This growth in public involvement activities is 
attributed to inclusion of new programming, 
including ACSEC partner-sponsored pet waste 
bag dispenser programs, a Tri-County wide 
rain barrel sale, yard certification programs, 
boater pumpout program and more. 



59

Appendix A

Articles 
The Summer/Fall 2015 edition of Naturally Kiawah (Volume 34) featured an article penned by Clemson Extension 

agents Amy Dabbs and Kim Counts Morganello. The article focused on native plant use for the South Carolina 

Lowcountry; native plants require little to no fertilizer, and typically requires less irrigation. Use of native plants in 
landscaping is considered an important best management practice for protecting water quality.

aPPenDIX a
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



60

Appendix A

The Clemson University IMPACT magazine, a magazine of the Clemson University’s Public Service and Agriculture 

service, highlighted the ACSEC’s Carolina Clean Watershed Restaurant program intitative as part of its Fall 2015 

edition.

Articles 

aPPenDIX a
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



61

Appendix A

Articles 
The Post and Courier’s “Home and Real Estate” section, included in the Sunday edition of the newspaper, featured  

two stormwater outreach articles. As part of this series, in January, Kim Counts Morganello provided information on 

the benefits on buffers along tidal creeks for water quality; in September, Morganello offered tips on best practices 

for using harvested rainwater on vegetables. 

aPPenDIX a
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



62

Appendix B

ACSEC 2012-2017 Strategic Plan: Education Timelines

aPPenDIX b
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



63

Appendix B

ACSEC 2012-2017 Strategic Plan: Education Timelines

aPPenDIX b
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



64

Appendix B

ACSEC 2012-2017 Strategic Plan: Education Timelines

aPPenDIX b
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report



65

Prepared By:

Carolina Clear is a program of Clemson University’s Public Service  
Activities. Information is provided by Faculty and Cooperative Extension 
Agents. Clemson University Cooperative Extension Service offers its 
programs to people of all ages, regardless of race, color, sex, religion, 
national origin, disability, political beliefs, sexual orientation, marital  
or family status and is an equal opportunity employer.

Produced 02/01/2016

SPecIal THankS TO THe FOllOWIng reVIeWerS: 
................

and
Ashley Cooper Stormwater Education Consortium Representatives

auTHOrS
january 2015 - December 2015 annual report

auTHOrS

kImberly cOunTS mOrganellO
ACSEC Co-Coordinator
Water Resources Agent

Clemson University Cooperative Extension Service
Carolina Clear

259 Meeting Street, Charleston, SC
843-730-5212

kcounts@clemson.edu

guInn WallOVer
ACSEC Co-Coordinator
Water Resources Agent

Clemson University Cooperative Extension Service
Carolina Clear

259 Meeting Street, Charleston, SC
843-730-5210

cggarre@clemson.edu

SPecIal THankS TO THe FOllOWIng DaTa cOnTrIbuTOrS: 
Katie Buckley, Dr. Amy Scaroni, Sara Tice, Angela Crouch, Amy Dabbs, Jeremy Pike, Dawn White, Terasa Lott, 
Michael Griffin, Blaik Pulley Keppler, Marty Morganello, Jamie Gilette, April Turner, Jared Hulteen, Elizabeth 

Vernon Bell, Hillary Repik, Brett Champion, Debbie Eckard, Carolyn Tomlinson, Keith McCullough, Susan Ferris 
Hill, Liz Mihalik, Jeff Jackson, Colette Degarady, Andrew Wunderly, Cheryl Carmack, Stuart Ruelle, Ashley Harris, 

Cindy Hall, Julie Binz, Lynn Ruck, Mike Ruck



www.clemson.edu/carolinaclear
          Follow us at www.facebook.com/pages/Carolina-Clear

ACSEC meeting at the Clemson University Coastal Research and Education Center’s “Ed Shed.” 
ACSEC Community and Education Partners discuss education strategies and future program-
ming efforts.



PUBLIC SAFETY
COUNCIL WORKSHOP

February 1, 2016

Chairman Chauncey Clark
Members Pat O'Neil and Sarah Church

All matters relating to the Police and Fire Departments, and other matters regarding
emergency preparedness.

Monthly Report by Chiefs Howard and Stith

I. Matters for Action by Council

II. Matters for Discussion by Council

A. Managed Parking — Staff update on managed parking plan

III. New Matters Presented to Council

IV. Matters Pending Further Action By Council



Committee Report 
	

Sullivan's Island Fire Department 
	

January 2016 

Type of Incident Total Incidents 

Structure Fire _ 
Alarm Malfunction 1 
Unintentional Alarm 3 
Emergency Medical 10 
Water Rescue 1 
Citizen Assist 4 
Hazardous Condition 
Automobile Fire 
Trash, Rubbish, or Grass Fire 1 
Smoke Scare 
Other Misc. 

Total Responses 20 

Incidents Where Aid was Given 
Mutual Aid 
Automatic Aid 

Fire Department Activities: 

Fire Department performed 32 vacation rental inspections. 

Tours given to 36 adults and 146 children. 

Oyster Roast fundraiser Saturday the 6th. 

Training: 

Volunteer drill held on 1/13 and 1/27. 

Beach Calls 
1 

Contacts 
1 



SULLIVAN’S ISLAND POLICE DEPARTMENT
MONTHLY REPORT SUMMARY

JANUARY 2016

01/01 – Officers responded to an assault in the business district, officers located the
subjects involved and learned that the parties were in a physical dispute about a female,
neither party wished to pursue charges.

01/01 – Officers responded to a report of a disturbance at the apartments at 2057 Middle
Street. On arrival officers located a male and female who stated they were in a verbal
argument and the male subject was trying to leave, officers stood by to allow the male to
gather his things and call a cab so that he could leave the location.

01/02 – A complainant reported that a lock securing a storage room had been removed;
after checking, the complainant did not observe any items missing.

01/02 – An officer responded to the area of the school to look for a vehicle out of Berkley
County with a possible suicidal subject inside, the vehicle was located and the subject
agreed to go with EMS to the hospital for treatment.

01/02 – A complainant reported that she had met a subject on-line and they agreed to see
each other on the island; during the meet the male subject physically and sexually took
advantage of the victim. The victim was interviewed and the advised the procedure and at
this point does not wish to pursue charges.

01/07 – Officers responded to a medical incident involving an unconscious female, after
investigation it is believed that the female may have overdosed in an attempt to commit
suicide.

01/09 – A complainant reported that someone removed a bicycle from under her
residence; a bicycle was left under the complainant’s residence when her bicycle was
taken.

01/09 – Officers responded to a report of a possible overdose, on arrival it was learned
that a subject had over taken some prescribed medication unintentionally.

01/10 – A complainant reported that a subject had stolen some bricks from the school
property, the subject was located at his residence escorted but to the school where the
bricks were returned and the subject cited for larceny.

01/11 – A complainant reported an open door at a neighbor’s residence, the residence
was checked by officers, the door lead to a game room with no entrance into the main
house which was secured and no one was home, the door was secured.

01/11 – Officers responded to an alarm at a local business, on arrival the officer found a
door closed but unsecured, a search of the building revealed negative results and a key
holder was contacted, who responded and secured the door.



SULLIVAN’S ISLAND POLICE DEPARTMENT
MONTHLY REPORT SUMMARY

JANUARY 2016

01/12 – A complaint reported that her son’s bicycle had been stolen from under her
residence while they were out of town.

01/17 – A complainant reported that his dog had been attacked and killed by what
appeared to be coyote(s), the remains of the dog were picked up by PD and FD personnel
until the owner could make arrangements for proper disposal.

01/17 – The fire department reported that a vehicle had parked on the ramp in front of the
fire station, a check with the local restaurants to locate the owner produced negative
results, the vehicle was towed in order to provide exit of the fire apparatus.

01/20 –The PD received a report from Lowcountry Children’s Center about a sexual
assault involving a minor that occurred three years ago, the investigator continues to
work with the center in the investigation.

1/22 – A complainant reported that his son was at a party and two subject were asked to
leave; as they were leaving the subject kicked the complainant’s vehicle several times
causing damage to the side of it.

01/28 – A complainant reported that he had placed his book bag outside his place of
employment and when he returned it was gone.

01/28 – Officers responded to Station 18.5 and the beach in reference to a vehicle on the
beach. On arrival the officer located a vehicle stuck in the sand, after investigation it was
learned that none of subjects with the vehicle did not have a driver’s license. The owner
was cited and the vehicle was towed.

01/30 – While on patrol, the gate of the SPAWAR building was found open. The building
was checked and found to be secured; the gate was secured.



SLED Inhouse Code / Description Last Year This Year

Comparison Offense Report for 01/01/2016 to 01/31/201602/01/2016 Page: 1

ALCOHOL CRIMES
90D 90D DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE
90E 90E DRUNKENNESS
90G 90G LIQUOR LAW VIOLATIONS

0 0Total for Category:

ARSON/SUSPICIOUS FIRE
200 200 ARSON
978 978 SUSPICIOUS FIRE

0 0Total for Category:

ASSAULTS
100 100 KIDNAPING / ABDUCTION
11A 11A RAPE - FORCIBLE
11B 11B SODOMY - FORCIBLE
11C 11C SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH AN OBJECT
11D 11D FONDLING - FORCIBLE
13A 13A ASSAULT - AGGRAVATED
13A CDA CDV - AGG ASSAULT
13B 13B ASSAULT - SIMPLE         1
13B CDV CDV - SIMPLE ASSAULT         1
13C 13C ASSAULT - INTIMIDATION
36A 36A INCEST
36B 36B RAPE - STATUTORY
36C 36C INDECENT EXPOSURE (SEXUAL NATURE)
753 753 TELEPHONE CALLS - OBSCENE, HARASSING

1 1Total for Category:

DRUG CRIMES
35A 35A DRUG / NARCOTIC VIOLATIONS         1
35B 35B DRUG EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS         1

2 0Total for Category:

HOMICIDE CRIMES
09A 09A MANSLAUGHTER
09B 09B NEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER
09C 09C JUSTIFIABLE HOMICIDE

0 0Total for Category:

INFORMATION ONLY REPORTS - NRP
NRP 90T ALL TRAFFIC EXCEPT DUI & FAILURE TO STOP
NRP NRP INCIDENT NOT REPORTED         1        10

1 10Total for Category:

LARCENY CRIMES
120 120 ROBBERY
210 210 EXTORTION / BLACKMAIL
220 220 BURGLARY / BREAKING & ENTERING
23A 23A POCKET-PICKING
23B 23B PURSE-SNATCHING
23C 23C SHOPLIFTING
23D 23D THEFT FROM BUILDING
23E 23E THEFT FROM COIN OPERATED MACHINE
23F 23F THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE         1
23G 23G THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS OR ACCESSORIES
23H 23H LARCENY - ALL OTHER         2         3



SLED Inhouse Code / Description Last Year This Year

Comparison Offense Report for 01/01/2016 to 01/31/201602/01/2016 Page: 2

LARCENY CRIMES
240 240 MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT
250 250 COUNTERFEITING / FORGERY
26A 26A FRAUD / CONFIDENCE GAME / BREACH OF TRUST
26B 26B TELLER MACHINE FRAUD
26C 26C IMPERSONATION
26D 26D WELFARE FRAUD
26E 26E WIRE FRAUD
270 270 EMBEZZLEMENT
280 280 STOLEN PROPERTY OFFENSES         1
756 756 USING MOTOR VEHICLE WITHOUT CONSENT
90A 90A BAD CHECKS

3 4Total for Category:

OTHER CRIMES
370 370 PORNOGRAPHY / OBSCENE MATERIAL
520 520 WEAPON LAW VIOLATIONS
64A 64A HUMAN TRAFFICKING / COMMERCIAL SEX ACTS
64B 64B HUMAN TRAFFICKING / INVOLUNTARY SERVITUDE
90B 90B CURFEW / LOITERING / VAGRANCY VIOLATIONS
90C 90C DISORDERLY CONDUCT
90F 90F FAMILY OFFENSES, NONVIOLENT
90H 90H PEEPING TOM
90I 90I RUNAWAY
90J 90J TRESPASS OF REAL PROPERTY
90K 90K INCORRIGIBLE
90L 90L TRUANCY
90N 90N RESISTING ARREST
90P 90P CONTRIBUTING TO DELINQUENCY OF A MINOR
90Z 90Z ALL OTHER OFFENSES         1         1
979 979 MISSING PERSONS
980 980 SUICIDES
992 992 PROWLER

1 1Total for Category:

OTHER MONEY CRIMES
39A 39A BETTING / WAGERING
39B 39B ASSISTING GAMBLING
39C 39C GAMBLING EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS
39D 39D SPORTS TAMPERING
510 510 BRIBERY

0 0Total for Category:

PROSTITUTION
40A 40A PROSTITUTION
40B 40B ASSISTING OR PROMOTING PROSTITUTION
40C 40C PURCHASING PROSTITUTION

0 0Total for Category:

VANDALISM/DAMAGE
290 290 VANDALISM OF PROPERTY         2

0 2Total for Category:

8 18Total for Reporting Period:



Monthly Report for January 2016

OFFENSES REPORTED02/01/2016 Page 1

Inhouse Code
Monthly

Total
Year

To Date
Monthly

Total
Year

To Date

Current Previous

13B ASSAULT - SIMPLE        1        1        0        0
23F THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE        0        0        1        1
23H LARCENY - ALL OTHER        3        3        2        2
280 STOLEN PROPERTY OFFENSES        1        1        0        0
290 VANDALISM OF PROPERTY        2        2        0        0
35A DRUG / NARCOTIC VIOLATIONS        0        0        1        1
35B DRUG EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS        0        0        1        1
90Z ALL OTHER OFFENSES        1        1        1        1
CDV CDV - SIMPLE ASSAULT        0        0        1        1
NRP INCIDENT NOT REPORTED       10       10        1        1

18 18 8 8TOTALS



90Z Breakdown

Case Number Date Description

For Period 1/2016

DRIVING ON THE BEACH (STATION 18.5)16-00020 01/28/2016



NRP Breakdown

Case Number Date Description

For Period 1/2016

INFORMATIONAL REPORT16-00002 01/01/2016
AGENCY ASSIST16-00004 01/02/2016
ATTEMPTED SUICIDE16-00006 01/07/2016
FOUND PROPERTY - OTHER BICYCLE16-00007 01/09/2016
SICK PERSON16-00008 01/09/2016
OPEN DOOR16-00010 01/11/2016
ALARM/OPEN DOOR16-00011 01/11/2016
DOG ATTACK16-00014 01/17/2016
TOWED VEHICLE16-00015 01/17/2016
UNSECURED GOVERNMENT BUSINESS16-00021 01/30/2016



Monthly Report for January 2016

VICTIMS REPORTED02/01/2016 Page 1

Inhouse Code
Monthly

Total
Year

To Date
Monthly

Total
Year

To Date

Current Previous

13B Assault - Simple        2        2        0        0
23F Theft from Motor Vehicle        0        0        1        1
23H Larceny - All Other        3        3        2        2
280 Stolen Property Offenses        1        1        0        0
290 Vandalism Of Property        2        2        0        0
35A Drug / Narcotic Violations        0        0        1        1
35B Drug Equipment Violations        0        0        1        1
90Z All Other Offenses        1        1        2        2
CDV CDV - SIMPLE ASSAULT        0        0        2        2
NRP Incident Not Reported        1        1        1        1

10 10 10 10TOTALS



Type

Monthly Report for January 2016

02/01/2016 Page 1PROPERTY VALUES

Total for Month Total for Year

Burglary Stolen         0.00         0.00

Larceny Stolen      1246.00      1246.00

Criminal Damage       670.00       670.00

MVT Stolen         0.00         0.00

Other Stolen         0.00         0.00

Burglary Recovered         0.00         0.00

Larceny Recovered         0.00         0.00

MVT Recovered         0.00         0.00

Other Recovered      1000.00      1000.00

Total Stolen      1246.00      1246.00

Total Recovered      1000.00      1000.00

Total Seized        50.00        50.00



Type

Monthly Report for January 2016

02/01/2016 Page 1PERSONS ARRESTED

Total Individuals Arrested for Month:   2 With 2 Counts

Total Individuals Arrested for Year:   2 With 2 Counts

Total Arrest Codes for Month Total Arrest Codes for Year To Date

The Total Arrests Codes will probably be more than the Total Individuals Arrested.
Each Individual can have as many as Three (3) Arrest Codes Associated.

1 - Adults

2 - Juveniles

3 - Narc - Adults

4 - Narc - Juveniles

Male Female

Male Female

Male Female

Male Female

Male Female

Male Female

Male Female

Male Female

     2      0

     0      0

     0      0

     0      0

     2      0

     0      0

     0      0

     0      0

Male Female     2      0 Male Female     2      0TOTALS



Race/Sex Breakdown for Arrested
For Period 1/2016

       0

       0

       1

       0

       1

       0

Male

Female

White

Black

Other

Male

Female

Male

Female

For Period So Far This Year

       0

       0

       1

       0

       1

       0



Monthly Report for January 2016

02/01/2016 Page 1PERSONS ARRESTED

0 0

2 2

Juveniles

This Month

Adults

This Year To Date



RECREATION
COUNCIL WORKSHOP

February 1, 2016

Chairwoman Sarah Church
Members Rita Langley and Susan Middaugh

All matters relating to the creation, expansion or improvement of facilities and programs
in the area of parks and recreation; and community wellness programs.

I. Matters for Action by Council

II. Matters for Discussion by Council

1. Drainage and Erosion Study for the Mound – Review of scope of work
prepared by staff

2. Island Club — Update on inspectors report on detailed scope of work
3. Battery Gadsden Cultural Center – update on grant application for engineering

study
4. Farmers Market- update on progress – Vendor applications are online

III. New Matters Presented to Council

IV. Matters Pending Further Action by Council

1. Bamboo on the Mound – Consideration of trimming bamboo back on the
mound and near the field. This is on hold until improvements are made to
the drainage on the mound.


	Workshop Agenda
	Public Safety Minutes from January 28, 2016
	Administrator's Report
	St. Patrick's Day Applications
	Finance Committee
	December Financial Report
	Public Facilities Committee
	January Building Report
	Land Use & Natural Resources Committee
	January Board, Commission & Zoning Update
	Administration Committee
	February Personnel Report
	Water & Sewer Committee
	January Water Report
	January Sewer Report
	Storm Water Education Consortium Annual Report- Year 7
	Public Safety Committee
	January Fire Report
	January Police Report- Summary
	January Police Report
	Recreation Committee

